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DAZN GROUP LiMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors, in preparing this Strategic report, have complied with $414C of the Companies Act Z006.

This Strategic report has been prepared for the DAZN Group as a whole and therefore gives greater emphasis to those
matters which are significant to DAZN Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings when viewed as a
whole (the “DAZN Group”, the “Group”).

Review of the business

A summary of the Group’s business activities is given below. Further details can be found on the Group's website at:
https://media.dazn.com. On 19 August 2019 the Company changed name from Perfarm Group Limited to DAZN Group
Limited and by reference the Group changed from the “Perform Group” to the “DAZN Group”. This followed the split and
rebranding of the DAZN and Perform Cantent brands of the Group in September 2018 and subsequent sale of the Perform
Content business of the Group on 12 July 2019.

The Groupis a global market leader in the commercialisation of muitimedia sports content across multiple internet-enatled
digital platforms. The Group uses proprietary content caltection, production and distribution capabilities, alongside
industry-leading digital products, 1o generste revenue through a mix of licensing content and media (advertising and
sponscrship), as well as delivery direct to consumers via its subscription based digital over the top (“0TT") service.

The Group's portfolio of digital sports media rights serves as the basis for its revenue generating activities. The Group seeks
to use long-standing relationships with rights owners to acquire rights to 8 broad portfolio of sporting leagues, tournaments
and events with differing schedules to Orive its business.

Ouring the current financial year, the Group has extended its strategy of rights acquisitions in order to support the ongoing
growth of the DAZN platform, driving 3 growth in underlying subscriber bases in established markets in addition to the 2018
launches in Spain and Brazil and the launch of the global platform in 2020, taking the numbar of active countries and
territories to more than 200. The continued cash expenditure has been funded by capital injections from the uttimate parent
of the Group, Access Industries, via loans.

Following the disposal of the Perform Content business in 2019, during the 2020 financial year the Group disposed of several
investments, subsidiaries and assets in order to further streamline operations and focus on the core OTT business. The
following sales occurred during the 2020 financia! year:

« A majority stake in the Footballco Group, comprising the news websites Goal.com, Spox, and Voetbalzone, was soid
to TPG for $70.0 miflion on 19 October 2020. The Group retained a 3% stake in the newly formed group.

» The Group’s 50% share in FIMGSA LLP [FC Diez) joint venture was sold on 20 March 2020 for $37.0 million
consideration. This investment had previous!y been classified as held for s3le as at 31 December 2018,

» The Sporting News business was disposed of on 11 December 2020 as part of an asset sale to Pax Holdings Limited
for $10.5 miltion.

OTT(DAZN)

In response to rapid changes in the consumption of sports and media content (for examgle, the shift from analogue and
pay TV platforms to g range of digitat devices, including smartphones, tablets and smart TVs} and increasing consumer
demand for streamed sporting cantent, the Group iaunched its direct-to-consumer media subscription platform ‘DAZN in
August 2016. During 2016 the Group launched DAZN in Germany, Switzerland, Austria ("DACH”) and Japan, Further to this
DAZN was launched in Canada in August 2017, Italy and the USA in 2018, and Spainin early 2019. In December 2020 DAZN
launchad its global platform, expanding into mare than 200 countries and territories. The Group continues to invest in
research and development around the DAZN platform, including the DAZN 2.0 application which will allow greater support
scalability, application performance and flexibility, and greater customer experience,

DAZN Media

The Group generates revenue from advertising inventory that is sold to sit alongside Ieading video and editorial sports
cantent acquired ar created by the Group. In 2018 DAZN Media alsa launched advertising on the DAZN glatform, completing
its first full year of operations in 2019 in addition to new Yaunches in Spain and the USA.

Pricr to the sale of the majority of the Group’s own branded websites, revenue was generated through display and video
advertising and sponsorship through the safe of advertisements across websites and maobite products, as well as third-
patty digital sports products. Video agvertising is delivered on the Group's DAZN Player, an embeddable sports video-on-
demand platfarm. Subsequent to the sale of the Sporting News and Footballco businesses, the majority of the Group's
Media revenue relates to sale of advertising on the DAZN platform.
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Ventures

Our Ventures business represents long-term agreements with rights holders where we have a significant input on overall
strategy, production, distribution and marketing. For the majority of these partnerships, we act as a provider of services to
the rights holders to facilitate the broadcasting of the content associzted with the related rights to multiple territories.
There is one arrangement where we licence the rights from the rights holder for direct sale to broadcasters. Each
partnership will have varying degrees of involvement based on the individual agreements and run for differing lengths of

time.

Financing

During 2020, the Group's immediate parent company, Al Perform Holdings LLP, extended an additional $1.05 billion in
funding through the fallowing facilities:

On 7 January 2020, DAZN Group Limited entered into a loan commitment with Al Perfarm Heldings LLP. DAZN Group
Limited can utilise the commitment by drawing down in tranches of at least $10.0 million up to a total commitment
of $250.0 million. The first $100.0 million was drawn down on 8 January 2020, with a further $150.0 million drawn
down on 27 January 2020. These first tranches attracted interest at a rate of 10% and incurred an arrangement fee
of $3.8 miltion.

On 25 February 2020 the commitment was increased to $450.0 million, and a final tranche of $200.0 million was
drawn down on 27 February 2020. The final tranche attracted interest at g rate of 30%.

On 24 July 2020, the Group entered into a new loan agreement with Al Perform Holdings LLP for a total of $200.0
million. The agreement was split across two grawdowns: $125.0 millign an 24 July, with the balancing $75.0 miltion
drawn on 27 August 2020. The loan attracted interest at a rate of 30%.

0n 17 September 2020, the Group entered into an additional new loan agreement with Al Perform Holdings LLP for
a total of $200.0 million. The agreement was split across three drawdowns: $65.0 million on 17 September, $70.0m
an 29 September with the balancing $65.0 million drawn an 21 Octaber 2020. The loan attracted interest at a rate of
30%.

During the year the lending parties to the Group were changed. On 30 Qctober 2020 Al Perform Heldings LLP was
released and discharged as the lender of $650.0 miltion of 1oan facilities entered into in 2020, which were replaced
with new loan agreements on identical terms with Perform DAZN Holdings 3 LLC and Perform DAZN Haldings 4 LLC,
both members of the Access Industries Group. On the same date Al Perform Holdings LLP was released and
discharged as the lender to the 17 September 2020 $200.0 million facility, which was replaced with a new loan
agreement on identical terms with Perform DAZN Holdings 4 LLC. On the same date Al Perform Holdings LLP was
released and discharged as the lender ta the October 2018 $275.0 million convertible loan facility agreement, which
was replaced with a new loan agreement on identical terms with Perfarm DAZN Holdings 2 LLC. )

0On 18 November 2020, the Group extended the September facility with Perform DAZN Holdings 4 ELC by a total of
$200.0 million on the same terms. $75.0 million was drawn down on that date and $125.0 million was drawn down
on 29 December 2020. The loan attracted interest at a rate of 30%.

Post year end DAZN Group Limited entered into further loan agreements of $1.1 billion with Access Industries in order to
fund ongoing activities.

The September loan facility was increased several times, in addition to the original facility of $400.0 million in 2020
(‘Facility A'), on 25 January 2021 the agreement was increased by $275.0 riliion, with $125.0 millicn drawn down on
the same day and $150.0 million drawn down an 16 February 2021 (‘Facility B').

{n 9 March 2021 Facility B was increased further by $325.0 million, with $175.0 million drawn down on the day and
$150.0 miltion drawn down on & April 2021, On 30 April 2021 an additional $150.0 million was extended under Facility
B, which was drawn down on 4 May 2021.

On 18 May 2021 the convertible loan that was originally extended in October 2019 was amended to increase the
interest rate from 10% to 30% and to remove the conversion right in consideration for a fee of $35.9 million. On this
same date the January 2020 loan was amended to increase interest on the first tranches of $250.0 million from10%

to 30%.

0On 14 June 2021, an additional $250.0 million was extended under Facility B, with $150.0 millicn drawn down on 15
June 2021 and a further $100.0 miltion drawn down on 26 July 2021,

On 8 September 2021 Facility B was extended by an additional $100.0 million, of which $65.0 million was drawn down
on the same day and $35.0 million was drawn down on 26 October 2021,
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Financing {continued)

On 29 December 2021, the Group and its shargholders and Access in its capacity as lender undertook certain staps resulting
in the $1.5 billion borrowings that existed at the 2020 year-end, as well as anadditional $1.1 bilkan of borrowings subsequent
to year end, together with accruedinterest, being released in consideration for the issue of ordinary and preference shares.
In addition, preference shares with an aggregate issue price and accrued preferential return of $0.96 billion were convertad
into ordinary equity instruments. This resulted in the settiement of all the Group's borrowings, amounting to $3.3 billion,
and the issuance of $1.2 billion of & ardinary shares and $2.1 billion of new growth preference shares. Additionally, $150.0
million of funding was received on 29 December 2021, in exchange for $75.0 millian of A ardinary shares and $75.0 miltion
of growth preference shares.

The terms attached to the growth preference shares issued are set aut in the Company’s Articles of Association. The
growth preference shares have no fixed repayment date but carry rights ta preferential settlement in the event of certain
contingent events including sale of the Company’s shares, and will automatically convert into ordinary shares in certain
circumstances, including in the event that the Company’s shareholders holding the greatest number of growth preference
shares ang Z ordinary shares agree to serve a conversion notice on the Company.

Financial review and key performance indicators

Revenue
2020 2018 Movement  Movement
$'000 4000 $'000 %

Restated

oTT 724,049 601038 123,011 Y
Media 101,381 101,457 {88} A)
Ventures 46,406 16,550 [70,44) (60.2)
52,781 6.4

871,836 813,055

The Group's revenue has increased $52.8 million {5.4%) to $871.8 million (2019 $819.1 millian).

OTT revenue totalled $724.¢ million (2019: $601.0 million) following the fourth full year of DAZN trading in mature markets
like DACH and Japan, the second full year of italy and the USA, and the first full year of Spain. Revenue growth in 2020 was
impacted by the COVID-18 pandemic, with most sporting events heing significantly reduced or cancelled during the initial
few months of the pandemic. When sports cantent resumed in the fatter half of the year, the Group saw improved
subscriber and revenue growth. This has resulted in a significant 20.5% increase in OTT revenue, despite the challenges of
the global pandemic.

Media revenue remained canstant at $101.4 million (2018: $131.5 million}. Similar to the trend in OTT revenue, media and
advertising revenue reduced over the months impacted most by the COVID-19 pandemic but saw a recovery in the latter
part of the financial year.

Ventures revenue decreased by $70.) million to $46.4 million (2019 $116.6 million), largely due to disruptions to sporting
events caused by the COVID-18 pandemic. In addition, the revenue from certain partnership deals such as the International
Basketball Federation (“FIBA") is cyclical in nature, which has contributed towards the decline in the current finangial year,

Other income
Other income fell from $12.8 million to $11.0 million during the current financial year. This was driven by a fall in income from

Transitionaf Services Agreements from $12.8 million to $6.6 million, which has been partially offset by the receipt of $4.4
million of goverament grant income in relation to COVID related support.

Share in resufts of joint ventures and associotes
During the current year the Group included its share in the result of three separate joint ventures and associates:

¢« Matchroom USA LLC is 3 joint venture establisheg in 23 March 2018 in which the Group has joint controt and 40%
ownership interest. During the current year the Group recognised its share of losses of $0.2 miliion (2019: profit of
$2.1 million). As at 31 December 2020 the carrying amount for the investment in Matchroom USA LLC was $1.5
million (2019: $2.1 miliion);
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Financial review and key performance indicators (continued)
Share in resuits of joint ventures and associates (continued)

+  Peak Jersey Topco Ltd is the uitimate parent entity of the STATS Perform Group, which DAZN acquired a minority
share of as part of the sale of the Perform Content businesses in 2018, This investment consisted of a 20% share
of the ordinary and preference shares of STATS Perform. During the current year the Group has recognised its
share of lgsses of $19.3 million (2019: $12.8 million) and its further share of losses through other comprehensive
incame of $0.9 miflion {2018: $2.5 miilien). A1oss on remeasurement to fair value of the preference shares of $114.1
million was recognised (2019: $14.4 million}. As at year end the carrying amount for the investment in associate
and the investment in preference shares is $36.5 million (2019; $170.8 million).

«  Fopotballco Media Ltd is the parent entity of the Footballco Group, which DAZN retained a 31% stake in following
the sale of the majority interest in the group in October 2020. This investment consisted of 3 31% share of the
ordinary and preference shares of the Footballco Group and was initially recognised at its fair value of $33.5
millign. In Novernber, the Groug disposed of an additional 1% of the investment to management of the Footballco
Group, resulting in 2 decrease in the carrying amount of $1.0 million. During the current year, the Group has
recognised a share in losses of $0.1 million for the period post-acquisition. As at year end the carrying amount for
the investment in associate and the investment in preference shares is $32.3 million.

Operating costs

2020 0 2019 ‘Movement Movement
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Restated
Rights costs T T 08,610 4,707,990 (509,380)  (29.8)
Production costs 53,899 37,259 16,640 447
Content distribution and delivery 191,285 192,810 (1,525) [0.8)
Sales and marketing 149,090 321,582 (172,492) (53.6)
Staff costs 207,322 204,32 2,40 12
Other costs 125,800 143,354 {17,554) n2.2)
Less on fereign exchange 12,613 40,619 (28,0086) (68.9)
Amortisation 35,270 52,029 06,759) (32.2)
Amartisation on acquisition intangibles 1,025 3,405 [2,380) (69.9)
Depreciation of right of use assets 14,126 16,741 (2,615) (15.8)
Depreciation 22,786 27,545 {4,759] (17.3)
Goodwill impairment 512 1,139 (627) (55.0]
Acquisition intangibles impairment - 535 (535) 00.0)
- - 2,012,338 2749,920 (737,582) (26.8)

The Group's operating costs have fallen by 27% from $2,750.0 million to $2,012.3 million. The operating loss fell by $774.5
million from ${1,924.6) million to $(1,150.1) miliion, with a current year operating margin of (131.9)% (2019: (235.0)% ).

Rights costs fell in the year from $1,708.0 million ta $1,798.8 million as a result of rebates received and the termination of
rights deals relating to the impacts of COVID 19 on the prevalence of live sport. Production costs incregsed by $16.6 million
to $53.9 million as the Group continued to develop its production activities and the generation of original content. Sales and
marketing costs fell by $172.5 million to $149.1 million in the year associated with the reduction in OTT marketing spend
following CQVID restrictions on live sports content. Content distribution and delivery costs remained static year on year.
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Financial review and key performance indicators [continued)
Operating costs

Exceptional items are included within other costs above andincreased by $33.8 million to $84.5 million {2019; $50.7 miltion}
and include the following in 2020:

. Restructuring costs of $59.4 million in the current year incluge $42.0 million (2019: $ nil} in relation to the
settlement of rights contracts following the restructuring of the Group’s rights portfolio, $9.9 million incurred in
relation to the Footballco sale transaction (2019: $28.2 million in relation to the Perform Content sale) and a further
$4.2 million (2019: $ nil} in relation to advice received in relation to the impacts of Coronavirus,

. Exceptional legal costs of $7.0 million in the current year include $4.5 million in.relation to provisions for disputes
2nd professional investigations (2019: $0.1 million);

. Exceptienal costs in relation to Group funding of $3.1 million (2019: $7.9 million) relate to professional fees from
third parties operating in an advisory capacity to the Group; and

«  315.0 million of onerous contract expenses recopnised as 8 result of internal assessments on rights contracts
(2n9: $ nii).

Net finance costs

Net finance costs {excluding remeasurement of options) increased $97.0 miflion to $142.3 millian (2019: $45.3 million] due
to the following:

. interest, bank fees and related charges {including the amortisation of arrangement fees) due on the Group's
senior secured notes and revolving credit facility of $4.2 million (2018: $18.6 mitlion];

. interest on shareholder loan of $134.7 million (2019; $18.1 million};

. finance expenses on lease liabilities of $7.1 million (2019: $7.0 million), offset by $0.2 million {2019: $0.1 million) of
finance income from an investment in a sublease;

. a decrease in bank interest receivable of $0.9 million to $0.7 million [2019; $1.7 million); and
. net foreign exchange gains of $62.6 million on financial instruments (2019: net gains of $8.3 million).

During the year a $0.4 million gain was recognised for the revaluation of the option to convert toan instruments to equity.
In the prior period the initial derivative value of $15.9 million was recognised directiy through equity.

Taxation

The tax charge for the continuing operations for the year is $9.7 miilion (2019: $2.1 million charge). This includes a current
tax charge of $13.6 million (2019: $7.8 million charge) and a deferred tax credit of $3.9 millian [2019: $5.6 million credit). The
current tax charge nas increased in comparison with the prior year, The deferred tax credit primarily arises from recognising
deferred tax in respect of the arigination and reversal of timing differences of $3.5 miflion (2G19: $4.8 miltion}. The tax
charge for giscontinued nperations in the prior year was $0.7 million charge.

Loss after tax

Loss after tax for the continuing operations for the year is $1,304.9 million (2019: $1,986.4 million). This loss derives from an
operating loss for the year of $1,150.1 miftion from continuing operations (2019: $1,924.6 million ipss), a tax charge for the
year of $6.7 million for continuing operations (2019: $2.1 million charge), net finance costs of $142.3 millian from continuing
operations [2019: $45.3 million), and a fair value loss on remeasurement of STATS Perfarm preference shares of $114.
rmillion {2019: $14.4 million). This has been offset by the gain on disposats during the year of $110.7 million [2019: $nil},
consisting of & gain of $75.3 mition from the Footbalico sale, $31.6 million from the FC Diez sale and $3.8 million from the
Sporting News sale.

Cash outfiow from operating activities

Cash outflows from operating activities decreased by $486.0 millian to 8 $968.0 million cutflow {2019 $1,454.0 million
outflow). This was caused by 8 $743.3 million reduction in operating cash cutflows before working capital to a2 $1,048.6
milfion net outflow (2019: $7,791.9 million net outflow).
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Financial review and key performance indicators (continued)
Financing activities

Cash inflow from financing activities decreased by $15.8 miltion to an inflow of $3,031.0 million {2019: $1,046.8 million inflow}.
This was driven by further proceeds from borrowings of $1,050.0 million [2019: $750.1 million) following investments from
Access Industries during the current year, in addition to the repayment of interest charges and lease payments totalling
$19.0 mitlion [2019; $31.0 million).

Investing nctivities

Cash from investing activities decreased by $220.2 million from a cash inflow of $261.2 miilion in the prior year to a $41.0
miflion ¢ash inflow during the current year. $77.8 million related to the cash praceeds from the sale of the Footballco
business. Cash putfiows from the purchase of intangibie assets fell by $22.1 million to $34.4 milion in the current year, and
cash outfiows from the purchase of property plant and equipment dacreased by $32.5 million to $3.6 million.

Debt and liquidity

As at 31 December 2020 the Group had net debt of $1,293.9 million (2019: $199.8 million) representing cash of $186.0 million
{2019: $79.0 million) offset by borrowings of $1,479.9 million {2019: $278.8 million).

Fixed assets

During the year the Group continued ta capitalise expenditure on additions and improvemnents 10 its technical software as
new updates were developed. Total intangible asset adgitions were $30.1 million {2019: $55.7 million), which included
capitalised internal staff costs of $18.7 million (2019 $13.5 million) and capitalised external development and software costs
of $11.4 million (2019: $42.2 million).

The Group continued its investment programme to update and improve the equipment used to support its technical
hardware platform including continued investment in the live video delivery platform and invested $4.9 million during the
current year (2019: $9.9 million). In adgitian, the Group invested $1.7 million in leasehaold improvements and furniture and
fittings (2012 $21.6 million).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Directors betieve that the Group’s continuing success in creating value from its digital rights, its broad product offering,
the iength and nature of existing contracts and its international customer base will protect and grow future revenues. In
order to deliver and expand its range of services the Group needs to invest continuously in software devetopment and
technical hardware. This investment ensures that the Group remains able to provide an innovative, scalable technical
platform and to deliver new and improved products to the market and its customers. The Group plans to maintain this
investment ta deliver new products and services, particularly across mobite devices. The licensing of sports rights is critical
to the success of the business. Such rights are usually licensed for pericds of between three to five years. The majority of
the Group's revenue relates to the OTT business, where consumer subscription periods are significantly shorter than the
Group’s rights obligations. Where the Group is principal in Ventures partnership deals, rights obligations of the Group are
generatly longer than its broadcasting agreements with customers, with the Group re-contracting broadcasters or entering
new agreements over time. In these instances, the Directors monitor the level of this contract exposure and endeavour,
wherever possible, to progress revenue confract renewal negotiations well before the contracts are due 1o terminate, thus
limiting the financial risk of such exposure.

In addition to the risks set out above, additional risks are s&t out in the table below, all of which were considered risks at the

prior year end.

Risk Impact and mitigating actions

Liguidity risk The Group has made significant losses in the current financial year and until such time as the OTT
business is fully establisned, the Graup will be dependent on the continued support of its
shareholders to fund its operations. The Group also has high fixed costs, such as commitments to
acquire rights in the OTT business. While in the medium term the Group expects to fund these rights
from operating cash flows, there are significant short-term funding requirements in order to
maintain and grow the business. Reler Lo the going concern section of the Directors’ report and
notel.
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Risk

Dependency on digital
technologies and
communications
networks

Rights costs and
margin

Prorection of the
Group's content,
brands and intellectual
property

Personal data

Exchange risk

Tax

Content liability

Products

Impact and mitigating actions

The Group is dependent on third-party internet, mobile and other technology and service
providers to deliver its products and services. However, the ultimate control of these platforms
angd technologies is outside of Management's control. The Group constantly monitors changes in
technological trends which could affect the sustainability, usability and economic viability of its
products and services to minimise the adverse impact that may resuit.

There is strong comgetition from third parties for certain rights. Therefore, there is 8 risk that the
Group wilt experience Increased costs for those rights it acquires or either the Group is outbid for
or chooses not to acquire or renew certain rights it would like. The Group has a specific team
focused on the acquisition and management of rights. Management continuously assesses the
Group's requirernents for rights-cleared content (including carefuf assessment of the economic
viability of each set of rights) in grder o ensure that it makes strategicslly appropriate ang
ecenomically informed decisions. The Group has a highly developed approach to the seiection of
rights and the scheduling of content in its services to ensure that value is derived from the rights
purchases it makes.

The digital ecosystem brings with it an inherent risk of content piracy and rights/IP infringement.
If substantial piracy of certain of the Group’s content were to occur this may diminish gemand for,
or the value of, some of the Group's services. The Group manitars infringement of its content,
brands and intellectual property rights and cantinues ta develap a range of strategies with which
to respond where requfred,

The Group contrals increasing quantities of personal data which requires adequate protection and
managerment to ensure compliance with applicable laws. The Group cantinues to invest in the
legal and reguiatory compliance function and ensure we are in complisnce with the Generai Data
Protection Regulation. Management reqularly assess the tegal and requiatary requirements of the
Group and adjust the level of respurce as necessary.

A significant portion of the Grougp’s revenue and costs are in Sterling, Euros, Dollars and Yen and
the Group is increasingly exposed to trading in other currencies. Management prepare cash flow
forecasts by currency and attempt, where apgropriste to do so, ta naturally hedge the Group's
cash flow. Management will continue to carefully monitor the Group's cash flow and consider
alternative arrangements if there is 8 material unhedged exposure.

Adverse changes in taxation could affect the Group’s results and the Group could be exposedto a
variety of tax risks in various countries. Management work closely with external tax advisers on ari
ongoing basis o mitigate 1ax risks.

The Group may be subject to legal or regulatory proceedings if an item of content that the Group
produces or handles breaches a third-party’s rights, law or requlation. The Group requires thatits
editorial stafl abide by the relevant editarial cade of practice. Content praduced is reviewed
against that code by its senior and managing editors prior to publication to ensure suitability for

each geographical market it is published in.

Constant technological and user behaviour changes necessitate that the Group engages in
continuous and sometimes rapid product development. Management are highly focussed on
ensuring that the Group makes maximum progress in this respect, but the Group's strategy or its
productinnovations may not be successful or may take lonyer Lo deliver to the market or monetise
than anticipated. This could impact the Group's econamic perfoermance.
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued}

Risk

Litigation risk

COVID-19 and access
to sports content

Brexit

political and economic uncertainty remains.

Impact and mitigating actions )

In the ordinary course of business, the Group could be involved in iawsuits, arbitrations and other
formal and informal dispute resolution procedures, the outcomes of which will determine the
rights and obligations under contractual agreements. Tha Group could also be invalved, fromtime
to time, In investigations and regulatory proceedings, certain of which could result in adverse
judoments, settlements, fines and other outcomes. The financial impacts of legal risks might be
considerable but are difficult to estimate or quantify, so that amounts eventually paid may exceed
the amount of provisions set aside to cover such risks. The Group does nat currently believe any
present lawsuits, arbitrations or dispute resglution procedures (actual or threatened) would lead
to 8 material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or resuits of operations or could
cause significant reputational harm.

In early 2020, a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was discovered and on 11 March 2020 the World Health
Organisation characterised the COVID-19 gutbreak as a pandemic. Global responses to COVID-19
were driven on & country by country basis but were typified by varying levels of restrictions ta both
national and international movernents of people and control over mass gatherings.

Within 2020, measures to restrict the spread of the coronavirus have had a significant impact on
the glabal sporting industry, with events initially being performed behind closed doars in late
February and early March 2020, with a swift escalation to the suspension of sporting seasons
across numerous sparts. Despite the pandemic continuing to have a globalimpact, sport returned
in the second half of the year and almost all leagues and events have resumed with increased
health and safety restrictions. During the months between March and June/July when sport
started to return, there was 2 significant reduction in the amount of live sport available to
customers on the DAZN OTT platform, resulting in a8 reduction in subscribers and revenue, The
Group took various mitigating actians during this time to reduce the impact on the business and
its stakeholders, including producing priginal and innovative content to provide to subscribers in
place of live sport and engaging in conversations with rights holders to temporarily pause
payments while content was unavailable. The Group continues to follow the local government and
health authority guidelines in respanse to coronavirus in all regions in which it operates.

Following the return of live sport in the second half of 2020, new measures have been put in place
with regards to safeguarding players, support staff and fans, including secure bio-bubbles around
sporting events, vaccinating players and crowds, regular COVID-19 testing regimes across
different sporting codes and, where necessary, the restriction of fans within stadiums based on
national and regional guidelines. This has allowed for the continuation of the majority of sporting
events, with the return of supporters to stadiums in most locations, based on local COVID
guidance and protocols.

Although live sport has not been significantly affected since the first wave of the pandemic, and
the majority of the impacts on the industry have been mitigated with vaccinations and additional
precautions around social distancing and testing, the fultimpact of the pandemic is not yet known
and the macroeconomic environment is likely to remain uncertzin and unpredictable for a peried
of time. There is still a risk that a resurgence of infections or new variants could result in further
disruption to live sport.

The Group generated 5% (2019: ?7%) of revenue from the United Kingdom, which continues to
experience political, requiatory, economic and market uncertainty following its exit from the
European Union in January 2020, commanily referred to as ‘Brexit'. While the United Kingdom and
the European Union have entered into a trade and co-operation agreement, which provides a
framework for the United Kingdom’s future relationship with the European Union, significant
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Section 172 - Stakeholder engagement

The Directors have had regard to a variety of stakeholders other than the Group's shareholders when making strategic
business decisions. The Group is committed to engaging and reflecting on stakehoider needs through regular dialogue and
communication. The Directors recognise the unique nature of reiationships with different key stakeholders and the
dependencies of different elements of the business upan them. Relationships with key stakeholders arg managed through
relevant engagement activities in order to inform the board in thelr dacision making and delivery of stratagy.

The key stakehoider groups ang mechanisms of engagement are set out below.

“Stakeholder

“Relationship and engagement activities

Customers

Em_plnys.éé

Through the operation of the DAZN 01T Platform, the USIESS NBS 4CCess Lo CUStomers in.

gver 200 territories following the Iaunch of the globat offering, providing aver 516 miltion
hours of streamed content and generating original signal for ever 32,000 sporting events in
2020.

The Group has completed over a billion custamer communications in 2020, initialising in
a3pH communications, push notifications, paid media, message centre and email. The Group
has now developed a Customer Relationship Management (CRM} platform which is fully
scalable over the Group's 200+ territories and pperational in multiple languages.

As part of the aim of becoming the best in cfass for its one ta one refationship with
customers, the Group has also completed over half a million surveys with customers,
moving towards improved survey automation and expanging the current number of
countries and territories surveyed in 2020 using 4 core surveys available in 17 different
languages.

TAS at 31 December 2020 the DAZN Group has approximately 2,600 employees operating in

countries around the world. Maintaining an engaged and motivated workforce driven by the
desire to change how people consume sport is @ key priority for the Board. Through
recruiting and retaining exceptional talent the Group aims to build industry leading teams
at the farefront of technofogy, content and production, medis, ogerations and commercial,
and busingss development.

The Bogard maintains active communication with emgployees, through 3 series of
written/video communications and live events, culminating in the 2020 DAZN Vision
conference for all empioyees. DAZN also entered an agreement with a new employee
engagement and feedback partner, Peakon, to provide key input into the people planming
process pperated by the Board which is rolled out in each operational area of the Grouf.

DAZN is committed to baing an inclusive, global company, promaoting diversity and equity
within the werkplace, in adgition to creating a8 more inclusive sports media industry. The
business appeinted its first Head of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE!) and established
Employee Resource Groups (ERGS]) s part af the new DE! strategy.

Health and Safety is @ main focus for the board, with the Group operating a Health and
Safety poficy across all globaf facilities, including a strong focus on CGVID-19 safety
measures far those warking on site, and wellbeing support for sli empioyees. Continued
training and development is alsc offered to staff through the DAZN Learning Portal and
ingustry-facused Brown Bag teaching sessions run internally.
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Section 172 - Stakehaider engagement (continued)

. Stakeholder

Relationship and engagement activities

“Suppliers and Rights

Holders

Community

The Group's primary s_upoliefs are rights holders orovidinga'lfent forthe OTT service—,Vvi_tF\“
DAZN rapigdly becoming one of the largest acquirers of sports rights utilising over a decade
of experience in sports rights across almost every sport globally.

The Board remains committed to securing live sporting rights and highiights, often on an
exclusive basis, as well as investing in impactfu! original programming. Securing and
utilising rights is recognised as a collaborative process, creating open and communicative
relationships to develop and maintain globa! multi-year relationships.

During 2020 the Group has worked coflaboratively with rights holder partners to manage
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and the related cessation of live sport during the
period. The Group has engaged directly in restructuring and renegetiations, showing the
strength of the relationship with its rights halders and receptiveness to the needs of
licensees. This has included the suspension of payment obligations and recognition of
rebates for changes to competition formats during the periad.

The Group follows a procurement framework to ensure a structured and transparent
process to supplier engagement, alongside a third-party code of conduct. Additicnally,
DAZN operates a Brand Safety policy to ensure all advertising on DAZN platforms minimises
the risk of ad misplacerment and aligns with white and biack lists ta protect both chients and
publisher partners,

A dedicated DEI (diversity, equity, and inclusion) function within the People business
function is essential in the implementation of employee-retated DEI priorities. In 2020, this
included demonstrating company-wide commitment to DEl via minority recruitment
network partnerships, diverse interview panels, job specification language updates,
candidate surveys and AB testing, first-of-its-kind global emgloyee diversity snapshot
survey, and first ever global mentorship program inclusive of global C-suite mentarship of
diverse funior level employees.

To better amplify voices of employees from a diverse set of backgrounds, ERGs (empioyee
resgurce groups) are voluntary, emgloyee-led groups company-wide across all regions
which aim to foster 3 diverse, inclusive workplace, consisting of over 150 emplaoyees across
10+ markets as of the end of 2020. The groups exist to help employees contribute to how
the business evolves with an increased focus around diversity, provides suppaort and
inclusion for personal and/aor career development, and creates forums to tackle social-
related issues. For example, the UK held a series of workshops during National Inclusion
Week and Black History Month enabling a kick-start to a number of impartant conversations
within the business, while Italy ran a series of creative and engaging talks an0 workshops
for working parents.

During the vyear the Group produced first-of-its-kind content recognizing and
commemorating the Tulsa Race Massacre. This coincided with 8 DAZN boxing event taking
place in the streets of Tulsa and was produced and aired during the live boxing broadcast,
as well as on our social channels. Monetary support was provided to help a local femasle
black and Native American owned boxing gym to expand and further its mission to grow the
sport by providing an avenue for local kids and adults alike in Tulsa.

The Group has also engaged in a collaborative and afftliate relstionship with USA Boxing to
educate and prepare aspiring fighters on life beyond sports and giving back to the
community, which activates locally in each market that DAZN has a boxing eventin.

The DAZN Group continugs to work with PLAN International, having reached over 30,000
children and young peopte in India and Brazil as part of their partnership since 2013. This
includes its Empowerment through Sports programime in Brazil and harnessing the power
of sports to increase school attendance in india.
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Section 172 - Stakeholder engagement (continued)

Stakeholder

Envirgnmant

Relationship and engagement activities

AS 3 business focuseg on the Delivery and DroSUCAst Of Kve SpOFts events, the Directors

recognise the significance of the environment on the DAZN Group’s operations, in addition
to the impacts that the Group has upon the environment. Climate change and the
associated impacts to global and local weather systems will have a direct impact on how
paople play and experience live sport, which will in turn affect how it is broadcasted.

As 8 global business, the Dirgctors are aware of the carbon fogtprint of the DAZN Group as
a result of work-related travel, in addition to the significant energy outlays required to
operate data centras to support QTT streaming and Media platforms, and production.

The Group operates a flexible working policy and as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic has
followed local quidelings in moving a large proportion of employees to a8 work from home
capacity. These restrictions have led to further reductions in commuting by Group
employees during the year,

Data centres are an integral part to the DAZN Group’s operations, facilitating the storage
and transfer of broadcast data underpinning the OTT and Media piatforms. This is
recognised as a key area of energy consumption within the business, and as part of the
olobal data centre network, DAZN utilises sites in London where 10G% of power is generated
from sustainable resources including water, wind and solar.

The Board takas into account the interests of its stakeholders during key decisions as part aof their duty ta pramote the
success of the Group. The Directors act in a way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success
of the Group for the benefit of its members as a whale, and in doing so have regard to the following factors in relaticn to

Section172(1);

(8) Thelikely consequences of any decision in the long term;

{b) Theinterests of the Group’s employees;

() The need to foster the Group's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

[d) The impact of the Groug's operations on the community and the environment;

(e) The desirability of the Group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
(f)  The need to act fairly as between members of the Group.

The board approach to Section 172 and decision making

Strategy

The aim of the DAZN Group is to make live sport more accessibie and affordable. This has

a customer centric focus, with the aim of bringing sports content te fans across the globe,
The Board undertakes continued reviews of customer and non-customer feedback
alongside customer data to identify rights for the Group to acquire and retain, while
mainiaining close warking relationships with rights holders. Additionally, the Bouard
reviews and approves the long-term forecasts for the Group, analysing future cashflows
and rights expenses in arder to approve budgets and future strategic decisions.

Policies and gractices  The Baard undertakes the delegation of policies and practices among the senior

leadership team and the areas of the busingss they have responsibility for, as well as
acting as sponsors for specific initigtives within the business. In the current year there
has been a restructuring within the senior leadership team to create a new structure
including the following roles:

- Executive Chairman - Chief Revenue Qfficer

- Executive Vice Chairman - Chief Subscription Officer

- Chief Executive Officer - Chief People Officer

- Chief Customer and Innovation Officer - Chief Communicatians Officer

- Chief Operating Officer - Chief Financia! Officer

- Chief Commercial Gfficer - Chief Legal Officer & General Counsel

- Chief Development and Delivery Officer
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Section 172 - Stakeholder engagement (centinued)

The board approach to Section 172 and decision making

Training

Culture

As a result of COVID-19 restrictions in the current year, the Enabling and Engaging People
to Perform (EEPP) program which delivered face to face ciassroom-based training
ceased. In immediate response to this the Group launched the Learning Zone, an onling
resource to pravide learning, development and support content to all employees. This
included a menayers’ hud, providing guidance, advice and tools, as well as enabling all
staff to access content relating to homeworking, diversity eguity and inclusion, and
mandatory training for digital safety and security awareness. The Learning Zone has now
evolved to link to an additional self-development environment called the e-learning hub,
containing over 2000 aqgregated learning and development resources to enable self-
paced growth.

Separately a new online starter training programme was aiso implemented 5o as to
support new joiners ta the Group.

In 2020 the Board issued the following Statement of intent on Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion.

Sports fans are the lifeblood of DAZN and the very reason we exist. In order to best serve
them, our global workforce must reflect the diversity of sports fans all around the world.
We recognize that having the strongest workforce possible means hiring and developing
the best people across all races, ethnicities, religions, age groups, sexual orientations,
genderidentities and ail abilities. We are committed to fostering an inclusive environment,
both inside and outside of our walls, that values equality and diversity - where everyone
can contribute at the highest level and their voices can be heard.

A selection of Key Board decisions made during the year and the impact of the considerations made above have been
detailed in the following table.

Board Matter

Approval of the sale of the
Footballco business

Disclosure of the Board's considerations

In early 2020 the Group entered into negotiations to sell part of its Media division,
comgrising three subcomponents; the football news websites Goal.com; Spox; and
Voetbalzone, to US-based investment firm TPG. The Group undertook various
restructuring activities to form a new group (“Footballco Group”) prior to the sale. On
19 October 2020, the sale completed and a majority stake in the Footballco Group was
sald to Digital Media GoalCo LLC, TPG's acquiring entity, far cash consideration of $70
millian. DAZN retained a 31.9% interest in the Footballco Group, with the remaining
shareholders comprising Digital Media GoalCc LLC and Footballco Group
management.

In making this decision, the Board remained sware of the commitment to customers
as key stakeholders, both through the renewed focus and investment in the DAZN
07T platiorm through the sale and its proceeds, but 31so in recognising the benefitin
aggregating Goal.com, Spox and Voetbalzone as complementary interests in the
football content and media business, The interests of employees were also key to the
decision-making process, leading to an in-depth review of staff allocation and
involvement throughout the restructuring of the Group’s businesses prior to the
transaction, in addition to establishing a Transitional Service Agreement [TSA) to
ensure a smooth transition following the sale.

Approval of the launch of the  On 1 December 2020 the Group launched the Global Offering of the DAZN OTT

DAZN OTT Glabal Offering

platform, delivering its live and cn-demand streaming service in over 200 countries
and territories.

In making this decision the Board remained canscious of the needs and expectations
of its customers on a global scale 35 well as leveraging the strong relationships with
rights holders ta ensure access to premium live and archived content, in addition to
developing a focus on internally generated unique content.
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Future developments

The Group is confident that demand for its products and services will continue to increase, supported by structural growth
drivers and through the Group's own growth strategy.

The Group has continued its grewth plan in 2021, sustaining increases in both subscribers and revenue. Post year end the
Group has continued tc expand its rights portfolio including acquiring rights to broadcast all of Serie A in ltaly fraom 2021 to
2024 and confirming a four year deal for worldwide UEFA Wormen's Champions League Rights. DAZN Group Limited also
entered inta further 1oan agreements of $1.1 billion with Access Industries in order to fund ongoing activity. Additionally,
$150.0 miltion of funding was received on 28 December 2021, in exchange for $75.0 million of A ordinary shares and $75.0
miliion of growth preference shares. A further $100.0 million of funding was received on 27 January 2022 in exchange for
$50.0 mitlion of A ordinary shares and $50.0 million of growth preference shares.

The Group has also seen changes to the executive ieadership team including the addition of Shay Segev as CEQ and Darren
Waterman as CFD, in addition to Kevin Mayer being appainted as the new chairman of the Board of Directors.

Refer to the Directars’ Report and note 1 far further details on the response to COVID-19.

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are further detailed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. .

The Strabt qic report has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board by;

Stuart Bpstein
Director
14 February 2022
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The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the financial statements and auditor’s
report, far the year ended 31 December 2020.

Future developments and events after the balance sheet date

Details of future developmeants and events that have occurred after the balance sheet date can be found in the Strategic
report and form part of this report by cross-reference.

Going concern and COVID-19

Having reviewed cash flow forecasts and budgets and having considered the financial support that the Group's principal
shareholder, Access Industries (“Access”} has confirmed it intends to provide to the Group, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will have access to sufficient resources to continue in operatianal existence for the foreseeable
future, being a period of at 1east 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. As in prior periods,
Access is not legally obligated to provide financial support. The Directers have considered a range of factors in order to
make their going concern assessment, inclugding expected future demand for the Group's services, the revenue growth
trends of the business, the history of continued financial support from Access, including throughout the COVID-19 pandemic
and during 2021 to date, and recent discussions with the current shareholders, who are also represented on the Group's
board, on the Group's cash flows forecast, and budgets for the period to 2025, including forecast funding reguirements.
This assessment has included consideration of the risk of further disruption from the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s
husiness and its resulting impact on future revenues, results from operations and cash flows. For further details refer to
note 1.

The Group had cash balances of $186.0 million (2019: $79.0 million) at the year end, net current liabilities of $1,254.5 million
(2019: $85.3 million net current liatilities) and net fiabilities of $1,663.1 million (2019: $272.8 millian net assets). The Group
had future rights commitments of $5.0 billion (2019: $4.4 billion) at 31 December 2020 that are not recognised in the
statement of financial position.

The Group continued the expansion of its OTT business during the current year, launching the global platform in Decemter
2020 expanding into more than 200 countries and territories. The Group continues to invest in technology and continues
its strategy of rights acquisitions in order to support the ongoing growth of the DAZN platform, driving @ growth in
underlying subscriber bases in established and new markets.

The Group has prepared a detailed financial forecast for the five-year period ta the end of 2025, These forecasts indicate
that, based on management’s assumptions, the Group is likely to require significant additional funding during this periodin
order to discharge all obligations as they fall due.

The Group's principal sharehoider, Al Perform Haldings LLP, has cenfirmed its intention to continue to pravide financial
support to the Group to enable the Group to ensure that they are able to meet their lisbilities 85 they fall due and therefore
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 menths from the date of approval of these financial statements. In
the pericd between the year end and the signing of the accounts Access has provided $1.35 billion of funding to DAZN, of
which $1.1 billion is in the form of loans and $250.0 million in erdinary and preference shares, to support its investment and
growth plans.

0On 29 December 2023, the Group and its shareholders and Access inits capacity as lender undertaok certain steps resulting
in the $1.5 billion borrowings that existed at the 2020 year end, as well as an additional $1.1 billion of barrowings subsequent
to year end, together with accrued interest, being released in consideration for the issue of ordinary and preference shares.
In addition, preference shares with an aggregate issue price and accrued preferential return of $0.96 billian were converted
into ordinary equity instruments. This resulted in the settlement of a1l the Groug’s berrowings, amounting to $3.3 billion,
and the issuance of $1.2 billion of A ordinary shares and $2.1 billion of new growth preference shares. Additionally, $150.0
miltion of funding was received on 29 December 2021, in exchange for $75.0 miltion of A ordinary shares and $75.0 million
of growth preference shares. A further $100.0 million of funding was received on 27 January 2022 in exchange for $50.0
million of A ordinary shares and $50.0 million of growth preference shares. The terms attached to the growth preference
shares issued are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association. The growth preference shares have no fixed repayment
date but carry rights tc preferential settlement in the event of certain contingent events inciuding sale of the Company's
shares, and will automatically convert into crdinary shares in certain circumstances, including in the event that the
Company's shareholders holding the greatest number of growth preference shares and Z ordinary shares agree to serve a
conversion notice on the Company.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including cash flow risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The use
of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes.
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Cash flow risk

The Group's activities expose it pricnarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates angd interest
rates. The Group attempts wherever possible to naturally hedge those risks.

Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and ¢ash, trade and other receivables and investments.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The Grgup recognises a loss allowance based on the
financial asset's lifetime expected credit loss and histarical 10ss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information.

The credit nsk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies,

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk, with expasure spread aver 8 large number of caunterparties
and customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group mitigates liquidity risk by ensuring that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments. Refer to further detail on going concern above and in note 1.

Dividends

The Directors have not recommended the payment of a dividend in respect of 2020 (2019; $nil).

Directars

The Directors, who served throughout the year and to the date of signing, except as noted, were as follows:

«  Quillaume D'Hauteville — appointed as Director on 30 March 2020;
« JohnGleasure;

* John Skipper;

+  Jdrg Mohaupt — terminated as Director on 22 February 2027,

«  Kevin Mayer - sppointed as Director ani 3 March 2023,

«  Kiyoshi Nakamura - terminated as Director on 31 December 2023,
« LlincoinBenet;

+  Paul Walker;

«  Simon Denyer; and

»  Stuart Epstein

Directors’ indemnities

The Group has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the tenefit of Directors of all Group campanies, which
were made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Pglitical contributions
Ng political contributions were rmade during the year (2018: $nil}.
Disabled employess

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully consigered, bearing in mind the abilities of the applicant
concerned. If members of staff become disabled, every effort is made ta ensure that their employment with the Groug
continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group and the Company that the training
opportunities, career deveiopment and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be equitable to that of
other emyployees.

Employee engagement and consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group. This is achieved
through formal and informal communications throughout the year. Employee representatives are consulted requiarly on a
wide range of matters affecting their current and future interests. For further information refer to the stakehoider
engagement section af the Strategic report.
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Business relationships

The Group is committed to fostering strong business relationships with suppliers, customers and cthers. For further
information refer to the stakeholder engagement section of the Strategic report.

Energy and carbon reporting

The Group complies with the statutory disclosure requirements in relation to UK energy use and carbon emissions, as
detailed below, with further reference made in the Section 172 disclosure in the Strategic report.

The emissions and energy utilisation of the DAZN Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
_December2020 _ December 2019

The annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
resulting from the purchase of electricity by the Group for its own use,
including for the purposes of transport ) 1,214tn 7,560tn

A figure, in MWh, which is the aggregate of the annual quantity of energy-
consumed from the purchase of electricity by the Group for its own use,
incluging for the purposes of transpart 8,752 Mwh 30,668 MWh

'_Taa_l fonnegof carbon gioxide equivalent Eroduced per each million dofliars of
revenue recognised during the vear 1.4tn 9.2tn

Total MWh consumed per each million dmla-rs-of ré\}enue recognised during
the year _ . ____ 10.0Mwh 37.4 MWh

As per the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (GHG), emissions are divided into 3 scopes. Scope 1 encompasses emissions from
activities owned or controlled by an arganisation that release emissions into the atmosphere, these are direct emissions.
Scope 2 covers emissions released into the atmosphere associated with the consumption of purchased electricity, heat,
steam and cooling. These are indirect emissions that are a consequence of an organisation’s activities, but which occur at
a source that the organisation does not own or control. Scope 3 emissians arise as a consequence of an organisation’s
actions, which occur at sources which the organisation does not own or contral and which are not classed as Scope 2.
These are upstream and downstream value chain ernissions, as wel! as business travel by means not owned or controlled

by an organisation.

The DAZN Group is required to report on Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions within the UK and offshore area, as well as Scope
3 emissions in relation to business travel by means not controlled by the Group.

The DAZN Group Energy and Carbien emissions calculations have been calculated with reference to outputs from UK office
locations (Scope 1and Scope 2], UK and rest of the world data centres [Scope 2) and all global Graup travel by way of road,
rail, air and hotel nights (Scope 3). The production activities of the Group within the UK are deemed to be included within
outputs for UK office tocations. Qverseas production outputs as a non-UK Scope 3 output have not beenreported. Upstream
and downstream value chain emissions deemed ta be Scope 3 have alsc not been reported.

All information used to produce the reporting above has been generated from internat information provided by the Group
facilities team alongside third party information provided for gata centres and trave) management partners. Direct
reference has been made to the UK Government Greenhouse Gas factors for conversion factors when calculating carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions and kWh energy consumpticn.

The annual quantity of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions and MWh have fallen year on year, predominantly as a resultin

the significant decrease in global trave! by Group employees by air, road and rail, in addition to hotel night stays as a result
of COVID-19 restrictions, leading to a fall in Scope 3 emissions,
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Auditor
Each of the persons whois a director af the date of approval of this report condirms that:

= 50 far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit infarmation of which the Comnpany’s guditor is unaware;
and

«  the director has token all the steps that he ought to have takan as a director in order to make himself sware of
any relevant auditinformation and to establish that the Company’s suditar is aware of that information.

This canfirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Campany's auditor is Deloitte LLP, Deiloitte LLP has expressed its willingness tg continue in office a5 auditor and a
resolution to reappoint it will be proposed at the forthcoming meeting of the Board.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed an behalf of the Board.

K

Stuart Epstein
Director
14 February 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DAZN GROUP LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our gpinion:

«  the financial statements of DAZN Group Limited (the ‘Parent Cormpany') and its subsidiaries (the 'Group’) pive 3
true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of
the Group's lass for the year then ended;

s the group financia! statements have been properly prepared in accordance with internationat accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting
Standards [JFRSs) a5 issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB);

« the psrent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, inciuding Financial Reporting Standard 107 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comgrise:

= the consoligated income statement;

« the censolidated statement of comprehensive income;

»  the consolidated and parent company statement of financial position;

« the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity,

. the congolidated statement of cash flows, and

s 1he related notes 1 to 33 of the group financia! statements and the related notes ] to 13 to the parent company
financial statements.

The financia! reporting framework that has been apglied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable
law, and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs a5
fssued by the 1ASB. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparstion of the Parent Company
financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK]) and applicable faw. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section af our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Campany in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant te
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the 'FRC's") Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approgpriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financiat statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and Parent Company's ability to continue 3s &
going concern for 3 period of at least twelve months from when the financial staternents are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual regort, other than the financial statements and our
suditor’s report thereon. The directars are responsible for the ather infarmation within the annual report. Gur opinion on
the financial statements goes not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowlegdge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to 8 material misstatement in the financial statements themselves.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DAZN GROUP LIMITED

If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a8 material misstaterment of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of directors

as explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or errcr.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors «re responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease
aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free frommateria?
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our cpinion. Reasanable -
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatemant when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
matarial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the etonomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irrequiaritias, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and requlations. We design procedures in ling with
aur responsibilities, outiined above, to detect material misstatementsin respect of irreqularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregqularities, including fraud is detaifed below.

We considered the nature of the Group’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the Group's documentation of
their policies and procedures relating 10 fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of managemeant
about their own identification and assessment of therisks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatary framework that the Group operates in, and identified the key laws
and regulations that:

+ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. This
included the UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and

« o not have a direct effect an the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
groug's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the General Data Pratection Regulations
and regqulatory requirements relating to the Group’s broadcasting licences in those principal markets where it is
required to hold a licence.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists including tax, valuation, IT and
forensic specialists regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and
where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest patential for fraud in the accounting for modifications of
sports rights, and our specific proceduras performed to addsess it are described below:

« we gbtained evidence for recorded revisions to rights costs by examining revised agreements with rights holders
as well as reading the terms of the original rights agreements;

« we gssessed whether the revision should be accounted for in the year or praspectively; and

« we checked whether the smount recorded by the Group agreed to the revised agreement if recorded as a current
year credit to the income statement, or whether the current year charge nad been revised fram the date of the
revision wherg the accounting was assessed to be required to be accounted far prospectively.

In comrmon with all audits under SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
unusuai or cutside the normal course of business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DAZN GROUP LIMITED

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

«  reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation 1o assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and reguiations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual Or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud;

«  enquiring of management and in-house and external legal counse! concerning actual and potential litigation and
claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; ang

= reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory regquirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In gur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

« theinformation givenin the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

« the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepsied in accordance with applicable legal
reguirements.

In the light of the knowledge and ungerstanding of the Group and of the Parent Company and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic repart or the Directors’ report.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinian:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adeguate for our audht have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of directars’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and exptanations we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Use of our report

This report is made salely to the Company's members, &s & body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by lsw, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other {han the Company and the Company's members 8s a body, for our sudit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Hadleigh Shekle FCA [Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

14 February 2022
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Notes $'000 $'000
Restated
Continuing operations:
Revenue 3 871,836 818,055
Dther income 4 11,045 12,760
Operating costs 5 (2,012,338) (2,749,920)
Expected credit loss recognised 5 1479} 1,039)
Share of results of joint \_rg_nlures_aﬂgis_s_gt_:iates e ___2_§ o 12_0_,12'5] o (5,428)
Group operating loss (1,150,061) 1,924,572)
Finance income 7 63,779 10,014
Finance costs 8 (206,059) (55,259}
Revaluation of convertible loan aption 21 392 -
Change in fair value of investments classified as fair value through
orofit 809 105 26 (114,091) (14,425)
Gain on disposal 28 10,771 -
Group loss before tax e N2ss269) (1,984,252)
Taxation charge , 8 (9E70) _(2130)
Group loss for the year from continuing operations ____11,304,939) {1,985,382)
Discontinued operations; -
Profit for the year 28 - 552714
Total loss for the year L [1,304,939)  0,435108)
Group loss attributoble to:
Owners of the Parent (1,304,939) (1,435,108)
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2020

Notes

Group loss for the year

Other comprehensive ({0ss)/income o )

ftems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on transiating foreign operations

Rectassification af foreign exchange (l0ssas)/gains on disposai

Sharg of other comprehensive loss of joint ventures and associates 25

Other compreheﬁsive [loss)!incume; net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Totol! comprehensive loss for the yeor attributable to:
Owners of the Parent

%@Efﬁo@h}ﬂva ga?r? from discontinged apem_t;‘;f;} Eiﬁﬁﬂable fo;
Owners af the Parent

2020 2019
$'000 $000
Restated

0304338 0.435,09)

(68,024) 39,259
(8,407 13,016
(001) (2,459)
[78,326) 49,816

_0,383.285) (0,385,202

.. 0,383265) (1385292

- 551,274
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Non-current assets

Goadwit!

Acquisition intangitles

Other intangible assets

Praperty, plant and equipment

Right of use assets

Investment in sublease

Trade and other receivables

Deferred tax asset

Interests in joint ventures and associates

Investments in preference shares of associates e
Total non-current assets -
Current assets

Investment in sublease

Trade and other receivatles

Prepayments and accruedincome

Cash and cash equivalents

Assetsheldforsale
Total current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Derivative liability

Lease liability

Provisions

Current tax ligbilities —— L
Ligbilities directly associated with assets held for sale

Total current liabilities

Net current (liabilitiesyassets ' ’
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liability

Provisions

Deferred toxiability
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net [lighilities)/assets

ig
20
21
14
19

21
22

2020
$'000

73,952

30,948 °

74,955
1,129
5,605
16,430
1,462

68,845
273,328

436
148,193
457,774
186,000
792,403
oue2n
803,514

11,076,940

{488,419)
(1,479,876)
(15,465)
(1,641)
(54,310)

7223

(2,056,934)
(1,185)

(2,058,18)

0,254,505)

(72,675)
(9,236)

(81,91)
(2,140,030)

(1,063,080)

2019
$'000
Restated

22,870
17,412
78,615
50,337
79,277
1,564
5,503
12,072
2,123

583
15,527
588,574
79,037
783,721

788,993

1,229,594

{563,369)
(278,778)
(15,857)
(m,181)
(1,403)

13728)

(B74,326)

(874,326)

(85333)

(73,089
(4,738)
(4,60)

(82,437)

(956,763]

272,83

120,828
4408600

2202

2018
$'000
Restated

24,854

21,715
73,605
44,460

172,046

93,444
726,725
219,129
1,039,298
. 364,425

" 71,403,723

. 1575789

(331,557)
(2,300)
o604
(339,499}
(43,172)
_[382,671)

1,021,082

(265,627)

v
NCEE)
(275151
{657,822)

917,947
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {CONTINUED)

AS AT 31DECEMBER 2020
2020 2019 2018
Mates $'000 $'000 $'000
Restated Restated

Equity

Called-up share capital 24 17,698 17,698 17,251
Share premium 24 2,536,363 2,536,353 1,783,651
Own shares 24 1,442) 1,442} 1,269}
Merger relief reserve 142,891 142,89 142,891
Capital redemption reserve 62,176 62,376 62,176
Capital contribution reserve 47,344 - -
Accumutated deficit (3,701,220)  {2,395,281) (948,363)
Foregign exchange reserve N __[(1s8,900) [88,574) (138,390)

.. (1063090} 272831 = 917947

‘Equity attributable to gwners of the Parent

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates to the financial statements.

The financial statements of DAZN Group Limited, registered number 8324278, were approved by the Board of Directors and
autharised for issue on 14 February 2022.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Stuart Epstein
Director
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DAZN GROUPLIMITED

CONSDUIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
Called-up Share Ownshares Herger Capital Capital Accumulated Fareign Equity
sharg premium (note 24} relief  redemption  contribution deficit exchange attributable
capital {note 24) reserve* reserve **  reggryaret reserve  toownersof
{note 24) {rote 20) Y the
Parent
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'0c0 $'000
o . Restated Restated Restateq
At January 2015 17,251 1,783,651 B 142,89 62,176 - (968.944) {123,361] 913,654
Restatement of opening resorves - - (L2689 - - - 20,581 {15,029} 4,283
At January 2019 (restated) 17,251 1,783,651 (1,269} 142,89 62,176 - (944,363) (138,380} N7,947
flestatement far initial application af
IFRS 16 - - N - - - 7,079 7,079
AtlJanuary 2019 [restated) 17,251 1.783.651 {1,269) 142,891 62,776 - [841,284) 138,390] 925,026
Loss for the year - Tt T o - 77 pa3s08) . 11,435,108)
{Other comprahensive INCOMg
FX on ranslating foreign oparations - - - - - - 39,259 39,258
Release of FX resarves on disposal R } _ R } 13,08 13,006
[note2gy J o _ . - [ e e - -
Share of other comprzhensive income ~ . . - - - - {2,459) (2,439)
ofassociates
Total comprehensive lass tor the year - - - - - - (1,435,108] 49,816 (1,385,292]
Share capital Issued (note 24) 447 752,712 073) - - - - - 752,988
Recognition ot 0ption to CONvert nan
- - - - - - - 15,857
16 equity {note 21} 015,857} 15,857
Share-based payments (nate 2) - - - - N 14.032) - __(a032)
At 31 December 2016 réstatad) “17698 T 2,536,363 0,442) 142,891 62.F16 T 7 (2asezen (85,574] 272,831

27



DAZN GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
Callep-up Share  Ownshares Merger Capital Capital Actcumulated Foreign Equity
share premium [note 24) relief  redemption  gantribution deficit exchange attrivutsble
capital {note 24) reserve” Teserve*  ragerypttt reserve  to owners of
(note 241 (nate 20) b the
Parent
$°000 $°000 $°000 000 $7000 $000 £'000 $000
. o Restaled . o Restated Restated
At 31 December 2019 (restated) 17,638 ,442) 62,176 - (2,398,281) i88,574] 272,83
Loss for the year - - - - - - (1.304,939) - {1,204 539)
Othes comprenensive Income -
FX an translating fereign operations - - - - - - - {£3.024) (89,024)
Release of FX reservas gn 05pasa
inote 287 . ) h T - - - - (8,401) 18,407
Srareof other Comprehensive Meome
of associates o B . . " ) T ) y ) o1 (901
Totai comprehensive 10ss for khe year - - - - - - (1.304,933) (78,326} 11,383,265)
Capitai contabution (™} - - - - - 47,344 - - 47,344
Asat 31 Decemnber 2020 17,658 2,536,363 {1,442) 142,891 62,176 47,344 {3,700,2200 [166,200) 1,063,050}

* The merger refief reserve was credied in 2012 in oroer L0 Tecors the excess aver normingl value on the issue of shares to the seiers of the Runningbail business as part of this histeric acquisition.

** Tri capital redemption feserve was created in June 2071 follgwing the cancellation of deferred sharas created on tha huistenc histng of the Group on the London Stock Exchange. Fallowing a thange in gontrgl the
Group was de-hsted in December 2074

** The foreign exchange reserve represents the accymulated exchange differénces on trsnsiating foreign gperations inta the DAZN Group presentation Surrency

The capital contribution reserve was created n 2020 tollowing the 155ye of borrowings from entities within the Access Industnes Group 10 DAZN Group Limited, which contained a below-market interest
gleMent that was recagniSed 3% a cagital contrbution to the Campany. See note 20 far further informartion
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2020

Notes 2020 2014
$000 $'000
Operating activities Restated
Total loss for the year (1,304,939) {1,435,108)
Finance costs (net) 7.8 142,280 45,198
Tax expense (net) 9 9,670 6,364
Goodwill impairment 10 512 1,139
Acquisition intangibles impairment n - 535
Degpreciation and amortisation (including acquisition intangible amortisation) 1114 73,207 99,720
Revailuation of convertible loan option 21 (392} -
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through profit and loss 26 114,091 14,425
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 26 20,125 5,428
Gain on disposal 28 mo,77) (533,914)
Unrealised foreign exchange movements 7,626 4,342
QOperating cash flow movements before working capital {1,048,591) {1,791,871)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments 88,213 80,494
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payabiles (14,515) 261,626
Cash used by operations {964,8493) (1,448,751)
Carporation tax payments ] ) (3,076) _ [(4,263)
Cash flowusedinoperating sotiviies 7 T 7T T (67963 (454014
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,594) (36,211)
Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets {34,380} (56,448)
Business disposals 28 77,821 354,383
Loan to related parties 30 - (2,.273)
Investment income _ B ] L 1,19§ 1,763
Cash flow from investing activities - T 040 281,214
Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 20 - (425,167)
Froceeds from barrowings 20 1,050,000 750,16
Repayment of lease principat 14 {10,348) [6,953)
Repayment of lease interest 14 (7,135) [8,118)
Proceeds from issues of shares (net of professional fees) 24 - 752,919
Interest expense, bank fees and related charges paid } [1,481) ) (15197?_]
Cashflow from financing octivities  ~ 1031036 1045822
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsin the year 104,107 (145,978)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 79,037 224,008
Less cashincluded within assets heid for sale 2? (877) -
Effect of foreign currency exchange rates o 3733 1,007
T webad T 78037

_C_ash and cash equivalents at end of year . 17

Cash flows in the above table for 2019 include cash flows from discontinued operations, as disclosed in note 28.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policles
Genera! fnformation

DAZN Group Limited jthe Campany) is a private company incorporated in the United Kingdorn under the Companies
Act 2006. The Company is limited by shares and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the registered
office is Hanover House, Plane Tree Crescent, Feltham, Middlesex TW13 7BZ. Copies of the Group accounts are
publicly available at the registered address or online from Companies House.

The Group uses proprietary content collection, production and distribution capabilities, alongside digital products,
to generate revenue through a mix of licensing sporting content and media (advertising and sponsorship), as well
as delivery direct to consumers via its subscription-based digita! over the top (“OTT") service. During the current
year the Group’s operations based on the commercialisation of multimedia sports content across multiple internet-
enabled digital platforms have been disposed or held for sale as at the close of the current financial year.

These financial statements are presented in US Dollars because that is the currency in which the Group has received
funding and capital investment throughout the current financial period. There have been no changes to the
functional currencies of mdwidual Group entities. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies
set outbelow.

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 January 2020 as follows:

Standard Description Effective Date
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of 8 business 1 January 2020
Amendments to references o the Conceptual framework Y January 2020

Concegtual Framewgrk inIFRS standards
Amendments to IAS1and 1AS 8
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Definition of materia)
Interest rate benchmark rate reform

1 January 2020
1January 2020

The adoption of the above Standards has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reported in these financial statements.

New and Revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has ftot appiied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but were not effective at the reporting date:

Standard Description Effective Date

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020

Amendments to IFRS §,1AS 33, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 interest Rate Benchmark Refarm — Phase 2 1January 20621

and IFRS 18

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Canceptual Framework 1January 2022

Amendments 10 IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment - proceeds 1.January 2022
before intended use

Amendments tolAS 37 Onerous cantracts — cost of fulfiting a 1 January 2022
contract

Annual improvements to IFRS standards Amendments to IFRS 1 first time adaption 1.January 2022

2018-2020 cycle

Amendments toIFRS 17

of international financial reporting
standards, IFRS 9 financial instruments,
IFRS 15 leases and IAS 4 agriculture
Insurance Contracts

1January 2023

Amendments 1o lAS1 Classification of fiabilities as current or non-  1January 2023
current

Amendments to IFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exernption 1January 2023
from Applving IFRS 9

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1January 2023

Statement 2

30



DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies (continued)
New and Revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to 1AS 12 o Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabitities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments toIAS8 o Definition of Accounting Estimates ~ 1.January 2023

Amcndments tcIFRS 10znd IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets betweenan  Notyet -

Investor and its Assaociate or Jaint Venture determined

The Directors do not expect that the adoptions of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group in future periods.

Basis of accounting

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Birectors in accordance
with applicable international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standargs Board (JASB).

Expenses within the consolidated Income statement have been analysed by nature during the current year.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orgerly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estirating the fair value of an asset or 3 liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these conselidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in 1AS
2 or value inusein |AS 36.

The principal accounting palicies adopted are set out as follows.
Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incarporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlied by the
Company made up to 31 December each year. Controlis achieved when the Company:

+« has power over the investee;
+ isexposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee,; and
+  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it contrals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than @ majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power aver
the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Company considered all relevant facts and circumstancesin assessing whether or not the
Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

+ the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the stze and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

s  potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
« rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e anyadditional facts and circumstances thatindicate that the Company has, gr does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Under the equity methad of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in grofit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income Rividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture,

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group for the sale or purchase of assets,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements anly to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group. When a Greup entity interacts with an assaciate or joint venture under a sevvice agreement not
involving the transfer of assets, the related income or expenditure is recagnised in the Group’s consolidated
earnings from the associate or joint venture.

The requirements of LAS 36 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable ameunt (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount, Any impairment loss recognised is not aliocated to any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment.

Gaing concern’

Having reviewed cash flow forecasts and budgets and having considered the financial support that the Group's
principal shareholder, Al Perform Holdings LLP has confirmed it intends te provide to the Group, the Directors have
areasonable expectation that the Group will have access ta sufficient resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future, being & period of at Ieast 12 months from the date of approval of these financial
statements. As in prior periods, Access is not legally ebligated to provide financial support. The Directors have
considered arange of factors in order to make their going concern assessment, including expected future demand
for the Group's services, the revenue growth trends of the business, the history of continued financial support from
Access, including throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and during 2021 to date, and recent discussions with the
current shareholders, who are alsa represented on the Group’s board, on the Group's cash flows forecast, and
budgets for the period to 2025, including forecast funding requirements. This assessment has included
consideration of the risk of further disruption from the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s business and its
resulting impact on future revenues, results from gperations and eash flows.

The Group had cash balances of $186.0 million (2019:; $79.0 million) 8t the year end, net current liabilities of $1,254 .5
million [2019: $85.3 million net current liabilities) and net ligbilities of $1,063.1 million (2019: $272.8 million net
assets). The Group had future rights commitments of $5.0 billion [2019: $4.4 billion) at 31 Becember 2020 that are
not recognised in the statement of financial pasition.

The Group continued the expansion of its OTT business during the current year, launching the global platform in
December 2020 expanding into more than 200 countries and territories. The Group continues to invest in
technology and continues its strategy of rights acquisitions in order to support the ongoing growth of the DAZN
platfarm, driving a growth in underlying subscriber bases in establishaed and new markets.

The Group has prepared a detailed financial forecast for the five-year period to the end of 2025, These forecasts
indicate that, based on management’s assumptions, the Group is likely to require significant additional funding
during this period in order to discharge all obligations as they fall due.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies {continued}
Going concern (continued)

The Group’'s principal shareholder, Access Industries [or one of its subsidiaries) {“Access”), has confirmed its
intention to continue to provide financial support to the Group to enable the Group to ensure that they are able to
meet their iiabiiities as they fali due and therefore to continue as a going cancern for a periad of at least 12 manths
from the date of approval of these financial statements. In the period between the year end and the signing of the
accounts Access has provided $1.35 billion of funding to DAZN, of which $1.1billion is in the form of loans and $250.0
million in ordinary and preference shares, ta support its investment and growth plans.

0On 29 December 2023, the Group and its shareholders and Access in its capacity as lender undertook certain steps
resulting in the $1.5 billion baorrowings that existed at the 2020 year-end, as well as an gdditional $1.1 billion of
borrowings subsequent to year end, together with accrued interest, being released in consideration for the issue of
ordinary and preference shares. In addition, preference shares with an aggregate issue price and accrued
preferential return of $0.96 bilion were canverted into ordinary equity instruments. This resulted in the settlement
of ai the Group's borrowings, amounting to $3.3 billion, and the issuance of $1.2 billion of A ordinary shares and $2.1
billion of new growth preference shares. Additionally, $150.0 million of funding was received on 23 Decemuer 2021,
in exchange for $75.0 million of A ordinary shares and $75.0 million of growth preference shares. A further $100.0
million of funding was received on 27 January 2022 in exchange for $50.0 million of A crdinary shares and $50.0
million of growth preference shares.

The terms attached to the growth preference shares issued are set out in the Company's Articles of Association.
The growth preference shares have no fixed repayment date but carry rights to preferential settlement in the event
of certain contingent events including sale of the Company's shares, and will automatically convert inte ordinary
shares in certain circumstances, including in the event that the Campany’s sharehotders holding the greatest
number of growth preference shares and Z ordinary shares agree to serve a conversion notice on the Company.

In addition to the Group specific matters discussed above, the Directors also censider the wider macro golitical,
ecanomic and social erwvironments which may have animpact on the Group’s future revenues, costs and cash fiows.

Despite a strong recovery in the latter part of the year, the Group’s financial performance was materially impacted
by the COVID-9 pandemic and associated Jockdown measures. During the months between March and June/July
when sport started to return, there was a significant reduction in the amount of live sport available ta customers on
the DAZN GTT platform, resulting in a reduction in subscribers and revenue. The Group was able to mobilise quickly
to respond to the pandemic in early 2020, taking the following mitigating actions:

e Corporate governance: A COVID-18 sub-committee was immediately formed to as5sess the ongoing risks
brought on by the pandemic and the Group's response ta the evolving global situation.

e Early and precautionary oction on costs: The Group reacted quickly to the onset of the pandemic and took pre-
emptive action to reduce the cost base and preserve cash. Such actions included deferring cash bonuses sng
pay rises, reducing headcount and associated costs, and cutting discretionary expenditure.

«  Negatiations with rights holders: During the montns where there was no live sport, the Group was able lo
negotiate with rights holders to defer rights payments in order to manage cash flows during the period of
uncertainty. These payments resumed when sport resumed, or the Group negotiated rebates from rights
holders where events or competitions had to be cancelled or reguced.

« Alternative content offered to customers. The Group produced original and innovative content to provide to
subscribers in place of live sport in the initial months of the pandemic.

« Government support packoges: Government authorities across multipfle key markets have announced
substantial and unprecedented support packages to both business and individuals. The Group was able to
qualify for support packages for various employees that were put on ‘furlough’ or similar schemes during the
injtial phases of the pandemic.

« Employee health ond safety. The Group immediately instigated a work-from-home model for most employees
in order to reduce the spread of the virus in the workplace. Support was offered to staff to ensure they were
able to continue to work effectively and remain safe.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Going concern (continued)

Although five sport has not been significantly affected since the first wave of the pandemic, and the majority of the
impacts cn the industry have been mitigated with vaccinations and additional precautions around social distancing
and testing, the full impact of the pandemicis nol yet known and the macrogconomic envirgnment is likely to remain
uncertain and unpredictabie for 3 period of time, There is still a risk that a resurgence of infections or new variants
could resultin further disruption to live sgort.

The Directars have considered the potential impact of the pandemic on the Group's business and its future
prospects, as outlined in the Principal Risk and Uncertainties section of the Strategic report. Notwithstanding these
potential risks, having considered the latest available information ang having prepared detailed forecasts, the
Directors beligve the Group is well placed to mitigate these risks and to minimise any potential impact.

Taking intc account the cash flow forecasts and the expected availability of funding, including support by Access
as required, the Directors consider that the Group can meet its liabilities as they fali due for the foreseeable future.
On this basis, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will continue in operational existence
for the foreseesble future, being at least 12 menths from the date of signing these financial statements, and
accordingly have continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
assels transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the formear pwners of the acquiree and the equity
interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.

At the acquisition dake, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date, except that:

= deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with 1AS 12 and |AS 19 respectively;

» habilities orequity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the gcquisition date; and

«  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as heid for $ake in accordance with IFRS S are measured in
accardance with that Standard.

On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of 3 subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the
date of sequisition. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideraticn transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acauiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifisble assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed, Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Discontinued ogerations

A discantinued ogeration is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash fiows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Groug and which:

= represents g separate major line of business ar geographical ares of operations;

+ is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of & separate major line of business or gecgraphical area of
operations; or

* s asubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,

The ciassification as a discontinued operation 0ccurs at the earlier of Jispusal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative
statement of profit or loss and statement of other comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation has
been discontinued from the start of the comparative yesr. The results of the discontinued operations are presented
separately in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies [continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabitities available for immediate sale in their present
condition, are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that their carrying amount will be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use and Management are commitied to the sale with the expectation
it will be completed within a year. This condition is regarded as mat only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset (or disposal group] is available for immedigte sale in its present condition. Management must be committed
to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within ane year from the date of
classification.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment l0ss on 3 disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities
on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, or deferred tax assets, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's other accounting palicies. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale or held for sale distributions and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognised in profit or Joss.

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and property, piant and equipment are no longer amortised or
dJepreciated, and sny equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an investment in associate or joint venture, the
investment that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met. The
Group then ceasesto apply the equity methogd in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale. Any retained
portion of an investment in an associate or joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale continues to
be accounted for using the equity method.

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents amounts derived from the provision of services after the deduction of value added tax. Revenue
is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract.

« OTT

Subscription revenues are recognized rateably aver each monthly subscription period. Revenues are presented
net of the taxes that are collected from subscribers and remitted to governmental authorities. Contract iabitities
consist of subscription fees billed that have not been recognised as revenue. Revenue shares to third parties
payable under distribution agreements related to subscription revenues are shown within operating costs, as
the Group is the principal in these transactions and therefore revenue is reported gross.

The Groug has some artangements in which end consumers sign up to pay for DAZN services vig a third party
angd, in addition, sign up to BAZN's terms and ¢onditions. In these scenarios, in order ta determine which party
is its customer, the Group assesses whether the third party is acting as an agent or as a principal in relation to
the services received by the end consumer. Typically, this is based on assessing which party has primary
respansibility to the end consumer for the DAZN services. If tha Group has primary responsibility to the end
consumer, it regards the end consumer as its customer, and revenues are measured based on what the end
consumer pays, with any amounts retained by the third party being recognised as a cost of sale expense.
Conversely, if the third party has primary responsibility, the Group regards the third party as its customer, and
revenues are measured based on the net amount receivable from the third party as the performance obligation
to the third party is satisfied.

Revenues related to the sub-licensing of content obtained by the OTT Busingss are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the course of the contract. Any sub-licensing monies received in advance of the contract
commencing are recognised in current liabilities as contract liabilities.

The Group has enteredinto agreements where it has licenced the rights to show centent to a third party in return
for media value as a substitute for cash consideration. i such instances, s the goads exchanged are dissimilar
in nature, the associated revenue and costs are measured at fair value of the goods or sepvices received and
racognised according ta the delivery of the consideration over a period not exceeding the contractual term.
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NOTES 70 THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.

Accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

« DAZN Media

Revenue generated from display and video advertising is recognised over time based on the number of
advertising impressions or streams delivered compared to the required number of sdvertising impressions or
streams included within a contract agreed with either a brand or an advertising agency.

Revenue related to sponsorship activity is recognised in line with the services delivered compared to the
services specified within a contract agreed with an advertiser.

Where the Group is selling advertising to 3 third-party website, revenue is recognised on a gross basis as the
Company is the principal in these transactions the client's shares of such revenues are shown within operating
costs.

*  Ventures

Broadcast revenue is recognised on partnership deals based on whether the Group is acting as an agent or
principal. Where the Group is acting as principal and enters into contracts directly with broadcasters, revenue is
recognised on a gross basis as the Group is the principal. In determining the recognition of broadcast revenues,
the Group recognises revenue in line with the services delivered to the customer (i.e. the broadcaster) either on
an event, competition or seasonal basis, depending on the contractual terms agreed with the customer.

The amount of revenue recognised can usually be determined by reference to the contract with the custormer,
which includes a detailed pricing schedule per event, competition or season, indicating the value of each of
those services to the customer.

Where the Group is acting as an agent, revenue is recognised on a net basis based on the partnership's
contractual profit-sharing mechanism, in addition to any amounts due for reimbursed costs. Whare the
transaction grice is variable based an profit share, revenue is estimated based on the future contracted revenue
of the partnership and the resuiting profit share due to DAZN over the life of the contract. Revenue is recognised
only to the extent that it is highly probable there will not be a reversal of revenue in the future. In determining
the recognition of revenue, the Group recognises revenue in each period in fine with the services delivered to
the customer based an an event, competition or seasonal basis.

Content costs

The Graup typically licences the right {from sports associations, sports bodies, leagues or their agents or partners)
to supply live sports content for its OTT business. For one of the Ventures arrangements the Group is considered to
be the principal as the Group acts as a global broadcast media partner in relation to its strategic partnership and
licences the rights from the associated sports body in order to contract with broadcasters in ipcal territories
worldwide. Revenues are calculated through a revenue share agreement with the assaciated sports body.

The rights the Group licences are for a fixed pericd of time, over a number of years. The rights are generally paid in
instalments over the length of the contract, either in agvance [and as such the Group will recognise a prepayment]
or arrears (and as such the Group will recognise an accrual). The Group recognises the expense for sports streaming
rights based on the pattern of consumption of economic benefits over the contract term. The Group recognises an
expense far content costs either on the date of the event for one-off competitions and event-based combat sports,
or on 3 straight-line basis over the season for contracts that span multiple seasons or competitions.

Where disruptions to sports as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic have resulted in a delay or cancellation of events
or matches, no expense has been recognised for the period where there was no sport being broadcast. Where
disruptions to sports due to the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a delay or cancellation of events or matches, and
there was a reduction in the associated rights costs provided by the rights holder, the reduction in expense has
been accounted for in the period affected, including where the rights holder agreed to 3 reduction in future
payments due under the rights agreement, where the Graup has a rontractual right to enforce such terms.

In the case of rights for live events or highlights that are generally viewed live or very soon after the event, unlike
film or TV programming, they are generally viewed significantly less as time passes after the original event. The
Group has considered whether there is any residual value to such video-on-demand offerings and conciuded that
any value would be minim3l and not material,
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies (continyed)
Exceptional items

The Group highlights in the notes to the financial statements items which in the Directors’ view are required to be
separately disclosed by virtue of their size or nature to enable a full understanding of the Group's performance.

Items which may be included within this category include:

«  reorganisation and restructuring costs including disposal costs, guai-running costs, contracts identified as
onerpus as a consequence of reprganisation or restructuring decisions, redundancy, and project management
and related restructuring costs (which may include those of employed staff specifically engaged for a imited
pariod of time to assist the management of rearganisations and restructures);

«  those directly relating to acquisition activity incluging earn-out related incentive arrangernents classified as
remunearation, changes to the assessment of acquisition-related financial liabilities, consultancy, legal, finance
and other professional adviser costs that otherwise wouid not have been incurred had the acquisition agt
accurred;

s acquisition integration costs including dual-running costs, contracts identified as onerous as 2 consequence
of integration decisions, consuftancy, redundancy, and project managemant and refated costs (which may
include those of employed staff specifically engaged to assist the integration of acquisitions);

« significant gains/losses arising on foreign exchange assets or liabilities relating to non-trading items such as
contingent consideration or bank 10ans; and

e other particularly significant or unusuaf items that are not considered by the directors to be representative of
the Group's underlying trading performance, which may include but are not limited to profits or losses on
dispasal or termination of operations or assets, litigation costs and settlements.

Leases
The Graup as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, atinception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease lisbility with respect to ail lzase arrangernents inwhichitis the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leasas with 8 lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present vaiue of the lease payments that are not paid at the
cammencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannct be readily determined,
the Group uses its incremeantal horrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
» fixedlease payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

«  variable lease payments that depand an an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
conmrmeancement date;

«  the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value quarantees;
s theexercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

« payments of penalties for terminating the tease, if the lease termreflectsthe exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position. The lease
liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to refiect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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DAZN GROUPLIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies [continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and rakes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

» Thelease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using & revised discount rate.

+« The lease payments change cue to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
quaranteed residual value, in which ¢ases the tease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payrents using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is dug to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

« Alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the current financial period.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which
it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised ang measured under 1AS 37, To the extent that the costs relate to 3 right-of-use asset, the
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not degend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers thase payments occurs.

The Group as lessor

Where the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or cperating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. Rental income from gperating feases isrecognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an gperating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investmentinthe leases. Finance lease incomeis allocated to accounting periods so as toreflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-iease components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to aflocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies {(continued)
Taxation [continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to controf the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amnunt of the deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the
asset is realised. Deferred and current tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement, except when it relates to
itemns charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred and current
tax is also dealt with in equity or other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when:

{i) theyrelate toincome taxes levied by the same taxation authority; and
(i) the Group intends to settleits current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered that
there may be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the
Company supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist
independent tax advice.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumutated depreciation. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changesin
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation is recognised as an operating cost and provided on all
property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write each asset down to its residual value, using the straight-
line method, over its expected useful life as follows:

Freehold iand — indefmite life

Technical and production equiprment — three years

Office furniture and equipment — three years

Motcr vehicles - three years

Leasehold improvements — three years or the lzase term, depending on the nature of the improvernent
intangible assets — computer software development

Development costs (including directly attributable overheads) are capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefit will result from the project and the foliowing criteria are met:

+ the technical feasibility of the product has been ascertained;
« adeguate technical, financial and other resources are available to complete and sell or use the intangible asset;

« the Group can demonstrate how the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits and the ability to
use or sell the intangible asset can be demonstrated,

« itisthe intention of management toc complete the intangible asset and use it or sell it; and
« the development costs can be measured reliably.
Where these criteria are not met, development costs are charged to the Income Statement as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised as an operating cost provided on comgputer software development at a rate calculated
to write each asset down to its estimated residual value {assumed to be nil), using the straight-line method, over
three years.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting paticies (continued)
Intangible assets — other

Igentifiable intangible assets acquired 8s part of business combinations, that meet the conditions for recognition
under JFRS 3, are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date. Amortisation is recognised as an operating
cost and charged, on a straight-fine basis, over their useful economic ife on the following basis:

Trademarks and domain names — twenty years

Customer relationships - three to twelve years

Information technology architecture — three to twelve years
Impairment of tangible and intangible agsets

At each reparting gate, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its gaodwil), tangible and intangible assets,
intangible assets not yet available for use ang right of use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other asssts, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit/product 1o which the asset belongs. A cash generating unit is the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are {argely independent of the cash inflows from other a855ets or groups
of assets.

Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value, less costs to sell, and the vafue in use. in assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash fiows, which are based on budgeted figures, are discounted to their present value using
3 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spetific
to the asset,

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amaunt of the asset (ar cash-generating unit) is reguced to its recoverable amount. An impairment l0ss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment foss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unitj is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 50 that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determingd nad no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset [or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversai of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss to the extent that it eliminates the impairment 10ss which has been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liagilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument.

Financial liability and equity

Financial liability and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. Equity instruments issued are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Qwn shares
represent the shares of the parent company, DAZN Group Limited, that are held by the Employee Benefit Trust.
These shares are recorded at cost and deducted from equity.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit andloss

Financial instruments classifieg as fair value through profit and Joss, including equity instruments, are initially
measured at fair value with subsequent changes in the fair vaiue recognised in profit and loss.

Oerivative financial instruments

Derivatives embeddedin other finahcialinstruments are carried on the balance sheet at fair value from the inception
of the host contract. The Group has identified certain embedded derivatives, described as “derivatives over own
equity” under IFRS 9 Financial instruments: Recognition & Measurement (“IFRS g Financial instruments”]. These
derivatives are held at fair value from the date on which g derivative cantract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is defined 3s the price that would be received to sefi an asset or paid to transfer a Wability in an orderly
transactian hatween markat particigants at the measurement date. The fair value of the gerivative is calculated by
gdiscounting the maximum derivative value by 3 return on equity discount factor.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Changes in the fair values of these derivatives are recognised immediately in the income statement. The Group does
not hald or issue derivatives for speculative purposes.

Trade receivables and other receivable financial assets

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing components when they are recognised at fair value. Where trade receivables and financial
assets are held within 3 business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, they are carried at amortised cost under the effective interest method.

The Group has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, as permitted by IFRS 9,
Therefare, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but recognises a loss allowance based on the financial
asset's lifetime expected credit loss. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information. Current and forward-looking information is also used in order to determine 85 to whether an asset is
credit impaired. Balances are written off when the possibility of recovery is essessed as being remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank accounts, deposits receivable on demand 2nd deposits with
maturity dates of three months or less from the date of inception. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and which form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents where offset conditions are met.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their fair value on initial recognition (plus transaction costs
if any) and carried at amartised cost. The fair value of trade and other payables has not been disclosed as, due to
their short duration, the Directors consider the carrying values recognised in the balance sheet to be a reascnable
approximation of their fair value,

Long-term incentive schemes

The valuation of a contingent cash-settled share-based payment scheme is based on the expected probability of
the form of settlement at the election of scheme participants.

Where the exgected probability of settlement is via equity, the fair value at the grant date of the scheme is expensed
on 3 straight-line basis aver the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest. A share-based payment reserve is created within the retained earnings as part of the Group's equity
as at the reporting date. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest as a result of the non-market based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.

Where the expected probiability of settlement is via cash, the fair value is determined with reference to cash
settlements made to good or neutral scheme leavers, based an the Group's estimate of the value of the instrument.
A share-based payment liability is recognised on the statement of financial position for the outstanding obligation
as at the reporting date. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest as a result of the non-market based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the origingl estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment liability.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the probability of cash or equity settlement for the
scheme. Where there is a change in the expected form of settlement from equity to cash settlement, the share-
based payment reserve is released through the income statement.

For long-term cash-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired, measured initially
at the fair value of the liability.

At each balance sheet date until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liahility is
re-measured with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies {continued)
Employee benefit trust

The Group has an emgloyee benefit trust which halds shares in DAZN Group Limitad as part of the Group'slong term
incentive schemes. DAZN Group Limited is recognised as the sponsoring entity and has control of the Trust which
is consolidated as part of the entity’s results. Shares held by the Trust are recognised at cost 3s own shares and
deducted from equity.

Pension

The Group makes contributions on behalf of employees to an independent, defined contribution pension scheme.
The Group has no further legal obligation to pay contributicns after the payment of its fixed contribution that is
matched by an employee. These contributions are recognised as an expense in the period the relevant employee
services are received.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Atiability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted smount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in resgect of short-term ernployee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the relgted service.

Liabifities recagnisad in respect of ather long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows exgected to be made ty the Group inrespect of services provided by emplayees up
to the reporting date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligaticn (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obiigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a pravision is the best estimate aof the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting gate, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where 3
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Ditapidation provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets {0 their original condition, as required by the terms and cendgitions
of the lease, are recognised when the obligation is incurred, either atthe commancement gdate or as aconsequence
of having used the underlying asset during a particular period of the lease, at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure that wouid be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted &s
appropriate for new circumstances.

Ltegal ond commerciol gisputes

Provisions for settlements associated with legal or commercial disputes are recognised when there is a probatle
future gutflow. Provisions are mesgsured with reference to the directar's best estimate of the future gutcome of the
legal dispute, or where a commercial settlement is likely, the best estimate of the amounts payable in order to reach
a mutually agreeable outcome.

Onerous commitments

Present abligations arising under anerous camimitments are recognised and measured as provisions. Al gnerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has e contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
commitments under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

Government grants

Government grants are not recagnised until there is reasonabie assurance that the Group witl comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

44



DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TGO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recopnises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specificaily,
government grants for the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme or its overseas eguivalents are recognised as
deferred income upon receipt of grant and are transferred to profit or 10ss on a systematic basis over the agreed
furlough duration for employees alongside the payrall expense,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the apphication of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are requived to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities that are not
readity apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptions arg based on histonicel expenience
and other factors that are considerad relevant, Actual resuits may oiffer fram these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recagmsed in the period in which the estimate is rewised if the revision affects only that period or in the period
aof the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future pericos.

Theitems below are critical judgements that the Directars have made in applying the Group's accounting pehcies, which

have 3 significant effect on the amaunts recognised in these fingncial stalements:
Critical accounting judgemants
Commitment ko acquire content rights

The Group has commitments to acquire sparts cantent nights. As at 31 December 2020 these commitments total
$5.0 billion (2019° $4.4 billion). The Directors do not consider this commitment to be a finantial liability as this
commitment relates to future payments for future sporting events that the Group has acquired the right to stream.
For this reason, and as the organiser declares it waives the exercise of its own rights ta stream the sport, the Group
does not consider it meets the criteria for recognition of an intangible asset nor does it cansider it has a financial
ligbility in accordance with IFRS 9 untit the sporting event has been delivered.

Agcounting for contract revenue in distribution ogreements

The Group has entered inte partnership agreements with third parties to provide the DAZN service directly to
custamers ar through broadcast channels. The Group has applied IFRS 15 to determing the revenue reccgnition
treatment af the contract revenue for these subscnbers, In applying these principles, there is judgement as to
whether DAZN acts as the agent or principal in the arrangement and whather revenug should b recognised based
0N 3 contract dwectly with the customer o with the thrd party. The Group's management have analysed the
contractual legal terms in detail and considered the commercial reality of the partnership deals in order to make
this judgement.

Arcounting for ventures agreements

The Group's ¥entures business includes long-term agreements with rights holders where the Group either provige
services to the rights holders to facilitate the broadcasting of the content associated with the retated rights to
multiple terntories, or licence the rights from the rights holder for direct sale to broadcasters. The conclusion on
whether the contractual terms between the Group, the broadcasters and the nights holders provide the Group with
a perfarmance obligation to the Groadcasters or to the nghts holder influences whether the Group recagnises
revenues associated with each arrangement gross or net. Where the Group is the principal, revenue is recognised
gross; where the Group Is agent, revenue is recagnised net. The contractual arrangemants are complex and
therefore the Group is required to make a critical accounting judgement in respect of their performance obligations
for each Ventures arrangement and how revenue should be calculated and recognised, This includes determining
the manner in which the pragress against satisfaction of that performance obligation is measured.

Recognitian of contingent fiabinties for legal disputes

The Group was involved in certain legal disputes duning the vear. Management exercised judgement in determining
whether the likelhood of an unfavourable outcome was probable, possible or remote. This assessment was
perfarmed oa 3 case-by-case basis and involved an assessment of the key facts and discussions with external legal
counsel where applicasle. Where the Group determined a future obligation was possible, but not probable, a
contingent liabikty has been disclosed.
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1. Accaunting policies {continued)
Critical accounting judgements {continued)
Internaily generated software

Management monitors progress of internal software development projects by using a project management system.
Significant judgement is required in distinguishing whether such development should be recognised as an expense
or capitalised. Development costs are recognised as an asset when all the relevant criteria are mat, Where this is
not the case £osts are not capitalised and are written off as incurred. See note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Contingently cash-settied share-bosed payments

As detailed in note 2, management have reassessed their historic judgement that the Group's share-based payment
arrangement for growth shares (“G-shares”} issued to employees was equity-settled and have determined based
on its terms that it is more appropriately accounted for as a contingent cash-settled scheme, because of the right
given to holders to sell the vested awards back to the Company, unless there is an event that results in equity
settlement. The scheme is now treated as a contingent cash-settied share-based payment scheme and assessed
at each periad end using management’s assessment of most prabable outcome as to whether the scheme will be
equity or cash-settied.

Determination of the foir value of refoted party loons

The Group enters into related party loans with the Group’s immediate parent company, Al Perform Holdings LLP,
and other entities within the Access Industries Group. During the year, an additional $1.05 billion in funding was
extended to the Group. Management have exercised judgement in assessing whether the interest rate charged on
related party 10ans is consistent with the fair market rate of interest.

A fair market rate of interest was 30% for all funding received in 2020, as detailed in note 20. The $250.0 million
loan commitment drawn down in January 2020 at a 10% interest rate was a low interest loan, Therefore, the Ioan
was initially measured at fair value, with the difference recognised as a capital contribution of $47.3 million and
lzading to an additional interest charge of $40.4 million in the current year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions, which have a significant risk of causing a material agjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Recognition profile of content rights costs

The recogrition of content rights costs Tor the OTT business is based upon an estimate of the expected pattern of
consumption of benefits, over a period not exceeding the contractual period. While the majority of the estimate of
the pattern of consumption of benefits is based on the contractual terms, management has applied some
judgement when estimating the season relevant to each rights contract, which impacts the spread of rights
recognised throughout the year.

The Graup amortises its payments for sports streaming rights based on the pattern of consumption of benefits,
over a period not exceeding the contractual period. The Group’s content agreements provide the Group with
broadcast rights for live sporting events in different geographies. Incontrast to television programme or film rights,
the agreements do not result in the recognition of inventory or anintangible asset due to the live nature of the event
for broadcast.

In the case of rights for live events or highlights that are generally viewed live or very soon after the event, unlike
film or TV programming, they are generally viewed significantly less as time passes after the original event and the
time periodin question is very short. The Group has considered whether an asset should be recognised for its video-
on-demand offerings, which include replays of the sports events broadcast live, and concluded that such content
does not give rise to an asset 35 any future economic benefits that flow to the Group from such video-on-demand
offerings are minimal.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for onerous contracts

A provision of $15.0 million has been recognised in relation to onerous rights contracts as the future benefits of
those contracts are not expected to exceed the associated costs. The Group estimated this provision by taking into
account gl future rights costs payable under these contracts, as there was limited measurable benefits associated
with these rights,

Measurement of derivative liability

Aderivative liability of $15.5 millian (2018: $15.8 million) nas been recognised in relation ta a conversion gption in the
$275.0 million convertible debt facility entered into during 2019 with Access industries. This option allows Access
to convert the loan into equity shares at a 10% discount upon the occurrence of future contingent events. The
derivative valuation incorporated estimates of the time period and probability of the contingent event arising that
would trigger the conversion right. At year end the Group’s management reassessed the likelihocd of conversion
and determined that there was a 40% likelinood of conversion within the 2022 financial year (2019; 50% likelinood
of conversion).

Measurement of equity instruments held at fair volue through profit and loss

The Group held aninvestment in the preference shares of two of its associates during the current year, In 2019, tha
Group invested in 20% of the ordinary and preference shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd as part of the acquisition of
a minority stake in the Stats Perform business. In the current financial year, the Group retained 8 31% investmentin
the ordinary and preference shares of the Footballco Group.

These preference shares have both been classified as equity instruments, measured at fair value through profit and
loss. Refer to nate 26 for further details.

At the reporting date, fair value assessments for these investments were performed based on discounted cash flow
valuations. These valuations involved significant estimates of future cash flows and appropriate discount rates. As
these inputs were not based on quoted or observable market data, these investments are classified as level 3in the
fair value measurement hierarchy in note 21. During the year the Group recognised $114.1 million loss on the fair value
rermeasurement of Stats Perform preference shares.

2. Restatement of prior year figures

Following a review of the financiai statements, the Directors have decided to change the presentation of the Group's
profit and loss account to Format 2 of the Companies Act as it more appropriately reflects the nature of the business
and eliminates potentially subjective judgements around allocation of costs. The change results in financial
statements that provida more reliable and relevant information about the effects of transacticns. Therefore, the
prior year financial statements have been restated for a change in the profit and loss classification of;

« costs of $734.0 million which were previously classified as administrative expenses, and costs of $1,883.2
million which were previously classified as cost of sales are now presented as operating costs; and

« income of $4.3 million relating to foreign exchange gains on financial instruments that were previgusly
recognised as administrative expenses are presented as finance income.

Further analysis of the Group’s operating costs, including comparative infarmation, is presented in note 5. This
presentation change had no impact on net assets or the Group's reported loss.
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2. Restatement of prior year figures (continued)

Ouring the current year the cumulative impact of restaternents to prior period comparatives are as follows:

Restatements:
Foreign
Previously exchange Arter
reported translation of restatement
G shares intercompany
Ventures Rights costs charge balances Other
2019 A 2018
T "¢0oo $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000  $'000 $'000
Consolidated Income Statement *
Continuing operations
Revenue 877,859 (54,578) - - - (4,026) 819,055
Operating costs [2,721,405) 80,033 [83,238) 9,442 [8,887) [15,864) (2,749,920)
Other income - 12,760 12,760
Finance income 6,098 3,916 10,014
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year 555,405 - - - [4131) 5b1,274
Total loss for the year - continued 1,360,535) 25,455 [93,238) 9,442 [4,971) M, 281) (1,435,108)
and discontinued operations
Consolidated Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income
Exchange differences on 34,353 - (52) 228 4,97 (243) 39,259
translating foreign operations
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
Trade and cther receivables 17,363 - - - - (1,836) 15,527
Prepayments and accrued income 616,332 1,635 (25,758) - - (4235} 588,574
Trade and other payables [(522,443) 27,935 [67,532) [498) - i831) (563,369)
Provisions fcurrent) - - - - - ,403) £,403)
Provisions (Mon-current) - - - - - (4,738) (4,738)
Net assets 348992 29,570 {93,290] (498j - [(12,843] 272,831
Own shares - - - - - (1,442) (1,442)
Accumulated deficit (2,330,685) 29,570 [93,238) (?726) 10,058  (11,260) (2,396,281}
Foreign currency translation
reserge Y (78,451) - [52) 228 (10,058) (241) {88,574}
Total equity 349,992 29,570 (93,290} [(498) - (12,943) 272,831

* Following a review of the financial statements, the Directors have decided to change the presentation of the
Group’'s profit and loss account to Format 2 of the Companies Act as it more appropriately reflects the nature of the
business and eliminates potentially subjective judgements around allocation of costs. Thisis further detalled onthe
previous page.
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2 Restatement of prior year figures (continued)

During the current year the cumulative impact of restatements to 2018 comparatives are as follows:

) Restatements:;
Previously After
reported . restatement
Foreign
31 December exchange  31December
2008 translation of 2018
G shares intercompany

L B Ventures  charge Qther _balences
"7"%000  $000  $060  $000 $'000 $'000

Consclidated Statement of Financial

Position

Trade and other receivables 93,276 - 1,437 [1,269) - 93,444
Prepayments and accrued income 730,310 (3,585] - - - 726,725
Trace and other payabies [339,428) 7,700 - 17 - {331,557)
Provisions (Nan-current) - - - 1713 . “sr('lnﬁj'
Net assets 813,664 4,115 1,437 (1,269) - 917,947
Own shares - - - (1,269) - 1,268}
Accumulated deficit (968,944) 4,015 1,437 - 15,029 (948,363)
Foreign currency translation reserve (123,361) - - - (15,029) (138,390)
Total equity 913,664 4,15 1,437 (1,269) - 917,947

These individual restatements are detailed as follows:
Ventures revenue recognition

Following a review of Ventures contracts, management reassessed their view as to how revenue should be
recognised by considering who the customer for the Groug in the arrangement is, what the performance obligation
of the Group is to that customer, the length of time that that performance obligation is satisfied over, and how
satisfaction is measured. Restatements were made to reflect changes in each of these areas after the
reassessment,

In severat key contracts, management restated the revenue to refiect the Group acting as an agent in these
arrangaments as on further analysis for certain contracts the Group is providing services to the sports rights holder
rather than controlling the sports rights and acting as principal in the arrangement with broadcasters. This resulted
in revenue being recognised on a net basis in line with the contract’s profit-sharting mechanism.

In addition to this, for some of the arrangements there was a change in respect of the identified performance
obligations of the Groug as the previous accounting either identified an incorrect performance obiigation with the
same party or identified the wrong customer for the Group in the contractual arrangements. This meant that for
sorne of the arrangements the length of the performance obligation has been revised, with revenue generated from
the arrangement now being recognised over either a longer or sharter pericd of time than in the prior year financial
results.

Finally, for some of the Ventures arrangements management reassessed their view as to how progress against the
updated performance obligations should be measured, either due to a reconsideration as te how the accounting
standards should be applied where the performance cbligations were unchanged or due to the fact that a change
in the length of the perfarmance obligation resulted in a reassessment of the level of progress made against the
perforrmance obligation at the previous balance sheet dote.
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2.

Restatement of prior year figures (continued)
Ventures revenue récognition {continued)

As a result of the restatement, certain prior year comparative line items have been amended in the Group
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of financial position. Revenue was decreased by $54.6
million ta reflect the changes outlined above in respect of gross and net revenue recagnition, changes to
performance obligations and changes to the method of measuring progress against those performance obligations.
Operating costs decreased by $80.0 million to reflect the removal of rights and other costs associated with the
partnership as aresult of the change from gross to net accounting an some of the Ventures arrangements.

The statement of financial position was impacted by the removal of rights-related balances and contract assets
and liabilities which were reduced to reflect the net revenue treatment. Accrued income increased by $1.6 million,
rights accruals decreased by $23.7 million, and deferred income decreased by $4.2 million. Included within this was
a balance sheet restatement of $2.5 million as a result of a Ventures debtar balance that was incorrectly grossed
upin accrued inceme and deferred income whea it should have been recorded on 3 net basis.

Opening retained earnings were increased by $4.1 million reflecting the impact of the change in recagnition on prior
perinds. Within the 2018 comparative staterment of financial position accrued income has increased by $2.3 million,
rights prepaymenis decreased by $5.9 million, deferred income decreased by $7.9 million and rights accruals
increased by $0.2 miilion,

Rights costs recognition

The Group's accounting policy for content costs is to recognise an expense based on the pattern of consumption
of economic benefits over the contract term. Upon review of certain rights contracts in 2020, it was discovered that
the phasing of these costs had beenincorrectly calculated in the prior year. This resulted in an agditional rights cost
of $93.2 million being recognised in the 2019 financial year. The halance sheet impact resulted in g decrease inrights
prepayments of $25.8 million, an increase in rights accruals of $67.5 million. There was no impact on 2013 gpening
reserves.

G-shares share-based payment charge recoghition

Following seview of the contractual documentation pertaining to the growth shares ["G-shares”), management
reassessed their historic judgement that the Group's share-based payment arrangement for G-shares issued to
employaes was equity-settied and have determined Gased an its terms that it is more accurstely accounted for as
a contingent cash-settled scheme, and have also identified an error in the application of the vesting conditions to
the charge calculated for 2018.

As a resuit of this change in vesting assumptions, the share-based gayment charge recogmised in 2018 was
increased from $1.4 million to $4.0 million, which increased the share-based payment reserve through equity by an
equal and opposite amount. A further balance of $1.4 million was recognised in trade and other receivables in
relation to the loan extended to the Emplovee Benefit Trust (“EBT”) for the initial purchase of shares. This has
separately been adjusted by the Employee Benefit Trust adjustment within the ‘Other’ restaternents section to this
note recognising that the toans £H7 shouvld have been gliminated upon consolidation of the Group results.

Folipwing the review of the vesting assumptions in 2013, the G-shares scheme which was formerly treated as an
equity-settied share-based payment scheme, is now treated as a contingent cash-settled share-based payment
scheme and assessed at each period end using the most probable outcome assessment whether the scheme will
be equity or cash-settled. For the year-ended 31 Dacember 2019, the most probabile outcome assessment was that
the scheme would be cash-settled and the previous charge of $5.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the 2018 closing share-based payment reserve of $4.0 million have been reversed as these reflected the prior
treatment of the scheme as an equity-settled scheme. This has been replaced by the recognition corresponding
$0.5 million cash-settled share-based payment liability recognised on the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019. ’
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2.

Restatement of prior year figures (continued)
Foreign exchange transiation of intercompany balonces

Management identified errors relating to prior periods on intercompany balances with fereign exchange gains and
losses on intercompany transactians in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity having been
incorrectly recorded in the forgign currency translation reserve rather than the profit and loss account of the entity
in question. In addition to foreign exchange gains and losses being incorrectly recognised, there were found to be
intercompany errors relating from mismatched balances within the group that were incorrectly recorded in the
foreign currency transiation reserve.

For the 2019 comparatives this resulted in 2 $8.9 million increase in operating costs in relation 1o intercompany
errars recognised in the income statement and a $3.9 million increase in relation to foreign exchange gains that
survived the consalidation process recognised in finance income. This was offset by a gain of $5.0 million
recognised on exchange differences on translating foreign operations through the statement of other
comprehensive income.

The 2018 accurmulated deficit was decreased by $15.0 million, reflecting corrections to intercompany balances and
foreign exchange gains arising on those carrected balances which survived the consolidation process prior to 1
January 2019, This was offset by an equal and opposite decrease in the fareign translation reserve of $15.0 million
for the historic exchange differences on translating foreign operations. There is ng impact to the net assets of the
DAZN Group in either the 2019 or 2018 comparatives.

An additional loss of $10.4 million was recognised on exchange differences on translation foreign operations
through other comprehensive income. Anincrease of $10.1 million was recorded in opening retained earnings and
anincrease of $0.3 million in the foreign currency translation reserve resulting from errors prior to 2079,

Other

A number of other restatements have been recognised relating to prior reporting periods, which in aggregate are
material. These adjustments include the following restatements:

+ Restatement torecognise the overstatement of revenue by $4.0 million in reiation to the OTT division, removing
$4.0 million from revenue, $4.1 million from accrued income and the difference impacting the foreign currency
translation reserve,

» Restatement to reclassify income earned under transitional services agreements (TSA) of $12.8 million
previously recorded as a reduction to operating costs to other income;

+ Restatement to record $1.4 million own shares held by the EBT which was previously not consolidated into the
group in prior fingncia! years. This resulted in a reduction trade and other receivables of $1.4 million as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: $1.3 miillion] in relation to loans with the EBT that are eliminated on
censoligation and the recognition of own shares 3s a debit to equity for the cost of shares subscribed for by the
EBT;

« Restatement to recognise a liabitity of $3.8 million included as part of the Perform Content disposal balance
sheet which was, in fact, retained by the DAZN Group, as well as derecognition of a debtar of $0.4 millian that
formed part of the disposal balance sheet but was incarrectly excluded. These adjustments reduced the gain
on disposal by $4.1 million, with the difference impacting the foreign currency translation reserve; and

+ Restatement to recognise $3.1 million of understated accruals, for which additional operating costs of $3.1
million were recognised.
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3.

Revenue

The Group derives its revenue fram contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services over time 3s
Services are rendered in the OTT, Media and Ventures divisions. The telow disaggregation of revenue is consistent
with the revenue information that is disclosed far each division as detsiled below.

2020 : 2019
$'000 $'000
Restated

Revenue from contracts with customers
o077 724,049 601,038
Media 101,381 101,467
Ventures S . _AB408_ 16530
Total revenue from contracts with customers 87,836 _ 813,055

The majority of the Groug’s OTT revenue comprises subscription revenue, which is earned over a short period of
time {usuatly monthly) based on the subscriber profile. OTT revenué also comprises sup-licence and commercial
premises revenue, which is earned over time on a straight-line basis over the course of the contract.

Where subscription revenue is received via a third party, and DAZN is determined to be the agent in the transaction,
revenue is recognised over the contract period as the performance obligation to the third party is satisfied. When
the transaction price is dependent on a variable number of subscribers aver the contract period, revenye may be
constrained unless it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the smount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subseguently resotved.

Media and Ventures revenue is usually based on longer-term contracts with third parties and is recognised over
time as the performance obligations under the contract are satisfied. The Group has applied judgement in
determining the transaction price when the revenue under the contracts is variable, particularly for broadcast
partnership deals that span multiple years, where revenue earned under the contract incorporates an element of
profit share. In determining the recognition of broadcast revenues, the Group recognises revenue in line with the
services delivered to the customer, who, for the majority of the Ventures arrangements, is the rights holder.

The Group has chosen to measure progress using the output method for each of the Ventures arrangements. Where
the services grovided by the Group are equivalent in each accounting period the Group consider that the value
delivered to their custorner is the same in each accounting pericd which means that under the gutput method
progress is linear over the duration of the contract. Where the services provided by the Group differ in each
accaunting period, due to the events associated with the contract differing between accounting pericds, the
measure of progress is not linear under the output method and mare value is allocated to the years in which the
customer derives the most value from the services performed by the Group. As the customer for the Group for these
agrrangements is the rights haider rather than a broadcaster these contracts are accaunted for net, with the Group
recognising as revenue the profit share réceivable from the rights holder which is generally calculated through
revenue share models agreed between poth parties gutlined in the assaciated contracts.

For one of the Ventures arrangements the broadcaster is the customer for the Group as unhke the other
arrangements where the rights holders contract with the broadcasters, for this asrangement the Group contract
directly with the broadcasters instead. This means that the accounting for this arrangement is different {o the other
Ventures agreements and the contract is accounted for gross, with amounts earned from the broadcasters
recegnised as revenue and amounts payable to the rights holder recognised as costs.

For contracts that existed at the year end, there is $302.8 million of the total transaction price allocated ta partially
unsatisfied performance obligations across all revenue streams, for contracts where the variable revenue is not
constrained. Although there are several longer-term contracts relating to broadcast partnerships and sub-licence
revenue, management expects that the majority (64%) of the transaction price aliocated to partially unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue during the next reporting period. This excludes any future
income from partnership deals which are based primarity on profit-share, where the revenue is constrained due to
the uncertainty around future variable profits.
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3.

Revenue (continued)

Geographical revenue onalysis

Geographical revenue information for the years ended 3t December 2020 and 2019 [as restated) is presented

below:
Middte East
United Asia and
Kingdom Europe Pacific Americas Africa Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2020
orT 557 400,112 205,341 118,033 - 724,049
Media 30,063 43,895 13,058 12,455 1,30 1,281
ventures 17,290 8,169 3262 18521 2164 46,406
Total revenue 47,910 452,176 221,661 147,015 3,074 871,836
Middie East
United Asia and
Kingdom Europe Pacific Armericas Africa Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
2019 (restated)
oTT - 292,108 195,265 13,664 - 501,038
Media 14,854 49,219 14,693 17,811 4,880 107,467
Ventures 39,830 54,108 - _ 188N 4,001 116,550
Total revenue 54,694 395,435 208,859 150,086 8,881 819,055

Other income

Other incorme consists of government grant income and incorne derived from Transitional Services Agreements
['TSAs') for the provision of services between the DAZN Group and certainrelated parties.

TSAincome

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Government grant income 4,436 -
6,609 12,760

1,045 12,760

Total

During the current year, the Group has received $4.4 miltion of furlough related government grant income (2019; $
nil} for support of the business operation and retention of staff who were unable to work as a result of restrictions

arising from measures implemented 1o restrict the spread of COVID 19,

During the current year $6.1 million of TSA income was derived from services provided to the STATS Perform
Group [2019: $12.8 million] and $0.5 million from services provided to the Footballce Group [2019: $nil}. Refer to

note 30 for further details on related party transactions.
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5. Operating costs

2020

$'000

Rights costs 1,198,610
Production costs 53,859
Content distribution and delivery 191,285
Sales and marketing 149,090
Staff and contractors 207,322
Other costs 125,800
Loss on foreign exchange 12,613
Amortisation 35,270
Amortisation an acquisition intangibles 1,025
Depreciation af right of use assets 14,126
Depreciation 22,786
Goodwill impairment 512
Acquisition intangibles impairment -
Total o ) 2,012,338

2019
$'000
Restated
1,707,990
37,259
192,810
321,582
204,912
143,354
40,619
52,029
3,405
18,741
27,545
1,139

535
2,743,820

During the current year the Group has impaired $0.5 million of gooadwill relating to the Media division. Following the
Footballco and Sporting News sales (see note 28), slongside the recognition of Activaweb and Mackolik as being
held for sale (see note 27), the remaining goodwill in Media division was assessed to have no recoverable value and

was impaired ta nil. Far further details see note 10.

In the current year termination costs of $4.6 million (2019; $1.4 million) were recognised within the staff and

contractors costs of $207.3 million (2019: $204.9 milion). For further detalis see note 6.

During the current financial year research costs of $24.9 million were incurred [2019: $51.8 million).

Exceptionsl items 2020
$'000
Exceptional items included within gperating expenses
Exceptional restructuring costs 59,421
Exceptional costs in relation to Group funding 3,107
Exceptional legal costs 6,993
QOnerous contracts 15,015
Qther exceptional costs -
Total exceptional items included within operating expenses 84,536

Exceptional items included within finance costs (note 8) -

Tota‘I exceptional itemns 84,536

2019
$'000

31,077
7,936
83

73
39,169

1,548
50,717

Exceptional items increased $33.8 million to $84.5 mivion {2019; $50.7 million) and include the following in 2020:

* Restructuring costs in the cusrent year include $42.0 million [2013: $ nil) in relation to the settiement of rights
contracts fallowing the restructuring of the Groug's rights portfolio, $9.9 millien incurred in relation to the
Foatbalico sale transaction (2019: $28.2 million in relation to the Ferform Content sale] and a further $4.2 million

(2019: $nil) in relation to advice received in retation to the impacts of Corenavirus;

+ Exceptional costs in refation to Group funding of $3.1 million (2019: $7.9 millionj relate to professional fees from

third parties operating in an advisory capacity to the Group,

» Exceptionaliegal casts of $7.0 miltion in the current year incluge $4.5 millioninrelation to grovisions for disputes

(2019: $ nil) and fees for professional investigations of $2.5 milhon (2079: $0.1 million); and

«  $15.0 million of onerous contract expenses recognised as a result of internal assessments on rights contracts

(2019: $ nil).
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Operating costs (continued)

The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows:

2020 2018
$'000 $'000

Fees payable to the Company’s auditar for the audit of the Company’s annual
accounts ‘ 2,619 1,865
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries Ll a1
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for overruns on the auditof the T
Company's prior year annual accounts T SR - - 1
Total audit fees o . - 2,690 2,052
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for other services:
Tax compliance services - B
Other assurance services 63 60
Other servicesinciudingduediligence 447
Tota! non-audit fees . i ... B3 53
Total fees payable to the Group’s auditor 2,753 2,565

Staff costs

The average monthly number of ernployees in both continued and discontinued eperations (including Executive

Directors) was:

2020 2019

Nos. Nos.

Business development and sales 89 a2

Account management and marketing 366 435

Production g59 1,343

Technology 686 872

Administration and management ~ 508 566

Jotal . e e e _.....2%608 3305
Employee cests (including Executive Directors) were:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Restated

Wages and salaries 188,139 179,479

Social security costs 24,598 24,614

Pension costs 65,859 6,591

Contingent cash settled share-based payment scheme (498) (3,534)

Long-term incentive schemes, cash-settled 1,663 2,014

Total 220,761 209,164

Of the total Staff and contractors costs of $207.3 miliion (2019: $204.9 million), a credit of $18.7 million (2018: $13.5
miillion) was recognised for the capitalisation of staff time in addition to $3.0 million (2079: $ 8.0 million) of expenses
related to contractors, casual and consultancy expenses. Additionally, in the current year termination costs of $4.6
millign (2019: $1.4 million} were recognised.

The cantingent cash settled share-based payment scheme figure has been restated for the prior period following
the reassessment of the accounting treatment for the G shares. This is further detailed in notes 2 and 25.
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6.

Staff costs [continued]

Key management personnel costs (including Executive snd Non-Executive Directors) were:

Wages and salaries

Sacial security costs

Pension costs

Terminations

Charge for long-term share and cash-settled schemes
Contingent cash settled share-based payment scheme

Jotal

2020
$'000

1,138
1,435
288
2,736
87

SO €3 RS
5334

2019
$'000
Restated
9,199
1,084
234

560
2.315)
" g,752

During 2020 the Directors cansidered 19 individuals to be key management persannel {2019:14) (including Executive

and Non-Executive Directors).

Directors’ remuneration was.

Emolurnents
Compensation for lass of effice

Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes

Total |

The number of Directors who:

Are mernbers of a defined contribution pension scheme

Remuneration of the highest paid Director:

Emoluments
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes

Finance income

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Bank interest receivable

Interest income from subleasing right of use assets (note 14)
Interest income on overdue consideration (note 28)

Foreign exchange gains on financing items
Total finance income

2020
$'o00

4,632
1,999
B2
6,683

2020
Nos.

2
2020
$'000

1,803

2020
$'000

70
151
321

62,586

83,779

2019
$000

6,482

2019
$'000

2,264

2013
$'000

1,657
106

8
10,014
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8. Finance costs

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans - 15,162
Interest on shareheolder loans 194,685 18,10
Amortisation of arrangement fees and other bank charges and finance costs 4,206 3,452
Interest expense on lease liabilities 7,135 6,953
Unwind on dilapidation provisions 33 44
Total interest expense for financial ligbilities not classified asat FVTPL 206,059 43,721

Exceptional finance costs
Termination fees on bank overdrafts and loans [note 5} - 1,548
Total finance costs 206,059 55,269

Total finance costs of $206.1 miliian were recognised in the year [2019: $55.2 million) relating to the following:

. interest on shareholder loans of $194,7 million (2019: $18.1 million), including $40.4 million in the current year
(2019; $nil) relating to the fair value adjustment for the below market interest rate element on shareholder

laans, refer to notes 20 and 21 for further details;

. interest on lease liabilities recognised under IFRS 16 of $7.1 million (2019: $7.0 million), refer to note 14 for

further details;

. interest, amortisation of arrangement fees, bank fees and refated charges of $4.2 million, decreased from
$18.6 million including the amoartisation of arrangernent fees due on the Group's senior secured notes and

revolving credit facility;

. exceptional finance costs in the prior year of $11.6 million related to the early repayment and termination of
the RCF and Senior Secured notes foliowing the sale of the Perform Content business on 12 July 2019, which

were recognised at amortised cost.
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Q.

Taxation
2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Current tax:
UK current tax charge at 19% [2019;19%) 2,226 542
Adjustment in respect of prios years 1,323 501
Foreign tax:
Overseas current tax charge 12,500 6,535
Adjustment in respect of prior years [2,940) (30)
Wwithholding tax 478 220
Deferred tax:
Origination or reversal of temporary differences [3,469) [4,786)
\mpact of changes in tax rates {1,144) B
Adjustment in respect of prior years i _B96 (943
_Taxcharge for the year ) 9,670 2,130

UK carporation tax is calculated at 19% (2019; 199 of the estimated assessable loss for the year. Taxation for other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevsiling in those jurisdictions. The charge for the year can be reconciled to
the loss befare tax in the Consolidated Income Statement as foliows:

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
Restated
Loss before tax __1,295,269) (1,984,252)
Tax at weighted average UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2019:19%) .. (2as01) (377,008
Effects of;
Amounts not deductible in determining taxable grofit 74,292 15,666
Naon-taxable income ] (18,7249) (6,438)
Non-deductible hybrid mismatches 177,237 .
Prior year adiustments 921 (477)
Change in UK tax rate on deferred tax balances (1,1443 78
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 3,143 (328)
Non-recggnition of losses 19,722 364,213
Other unrecognised deferred tax 1,688 3,981
UK groug refief - 2121
Withhalding tax . ... 220
Tax charge ____5b 2130

On 17 March 2020 the UK corparation tax rate of 19% (effective from 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted.
Subsequent to year end (June 2021) 8 further change was substantively enacted such that the UK corperation tax
rate will increase to 25% fram 1 April 2023. No adjustment has been made in respect of this post balance sheet
event. However, the impact to deferred tax would amount to an approximate $4.0 million increase to the deferred
tax assets held.

On 1 July 2021 German legislation was intraduced to implement recommendations set out by the Qrganisation for
Economic Co-Operation and Development to neutralise the effects of hybrid mismatch arrangements. These rules
are stated as having retrospective effect from 1 January 2020, albeit there remains some uncertainty over this
retraspective application. Notwithstanding this uncertainty, no adjustment has been made in the financial
statements in respect of this post balance sheet event given this legislation was not substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. However, the impact to the current tax charge may be an approximate $8.7 million increase, if
certin expenses [totaking $31 million for the year ended 3) December 2020) are treated as non-geductible for
German corporate income tax purposes.

58



DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

10.

Goodwill

$'000
Cost
Atldenuaryamie .. _2apsa
Retranslation of gcodwill of foreignicperations T <2,
At 31 December 2019 _ . o 24,009
Disposal of googwil! as part of Footballco and Sporting News sales [note 28) 16,330)
Transfer of geodwill to assets held for sale ) {6,231)
Retranslatian of gondwill of foreign operations ‘ o ) 203
At 31 December 2020 - L - 1,851
Accumulatedimpairment losses - T )
AtlJenveryzoig__ ~ U T T T T T -
Impairment of goodwill (note 5) 0,139)
At 31December2019 o ] L o (1,139)
Impairment of goadwill (note §) (512)
At31December2020 0.651)
Carryingamount ___
At31December 2020 ’ h o
Al 31 December 2019 B 22,870

The Group has identified three cash generating units (“CGls") in the current year, being Media, GTT and Ventures,
Media is the only CGU to which goodwill has historically been allocated.

During the current financial year, $15.3 million of goodwill has been disposed of as part of the sales of Footbalico
and Sporting News (refer to note 28). Additionally, $6.2 million of goodwill aliocated to the Mackolik and Activaweb
businesses was transferred to assets held for sale during the year {vefer to note 28). As at the close of the current
financial year, the Directors recagnised that the operations of the Media division were either held for sale or had
been disposed during the year, Therefere, the remaining goodwill asscciated with Media CGU of $512,000 was

impaired in the year.
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LN

Acquisition intangibles

Cost

At January 2019

Effect of movement inforgign

exchange
At 21 December 2019

Effect of movement in foreign

exchange
Diqusa[s

Transfer to assets held for sale

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated amortisation

Atidanuary20is
Charge for the year

impairment charge* [note 5)
Effect of movement in foreign

exchange

At 31 December 2019

Charge for the year (nate 5)
Effect of movement in foreign

exchange
Disposals

Transfer to assets held for sale

At 31 December 2020

Net book value

At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2019

Trademarks  Information
and domain technology
names architecture
3$'000 $'000
. .54

. 135 (90)
25,609 1,488
(166) [134)
(25,443) (1,354)
28 L6
2,689 16
34 107)
10,776 1,175
579 74
- 3. (1i8)

(1,358)
14,833 313

n34)

Individually significant acquisition related intangibles include:

LT R,

Customer
relationships
$'000

(215)
3,895

(327)

_.[9)
{2,849)

480

an

Other Tota!
$000 $'000
(3234 _343%6
(69} (239)
3,65 34,157
212 (415)
Lo (719}
(3,37 (33,023)
AR )
218 3,405

- 535

(24) 125
1,379 16,745
155 1,025
58 . (331

- (772)
(1,592) {16,661)
1,786 1?!412

« Goalcom trademarks and domain names which had an gpening carrying value of $7.0 million (2019: ppening
carrying value of $8.9 miftion] and were transferred to assets held for sate at a carrying value of $6.8 million as
part of the Footbalico disposal, which completed in the year. The remaining useful economic life was 12 years

(2019: 13 years), and

«  $4.3 milion of individually significant acquisition intangibles relating to Sporting News trademarks and domain
names were transferred to assets held for sale in advance of the sale of the Sporting News businass which

completed in the year. The remaining useful economic life was 12 years (2019: 13 years].

During the current year acquisition intangibles in relation to Goal.com, Voetbalzone, Spox and Sportal with a total
net book value of $9.9 million were transferred to assets heid for sale and subsequently dispesed as part of the

Foothalica sale.

Acquisition intangibles in relation to Match en Direct and Mackolik were transferred to assets held for sale as st the
close of the current financial year and recognised as such on the statement of financial position as at the reporting

date.

Amortisation of $1.0 million {201%: $3.4 million) is included in aperating costs in the income statement.
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12. Qther intanqgible assets

Computer
software
development
$'000
Cost
AL 1 January 2019 17,357
Additions 55,680
At 31 December 2019 227,037
Additions : 30,067
Transfer to assets held for sale ' (28)
Disposals (127,771
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 8,761
At 31 December 2020 R _ 138,066
Accurmulated amortisation
At1January 2019 L R ) 4147
Charge for the year _ i 52,029
Effectofmovementinforeigrexchange o _._ 0359
At 31 December 2019 i 148,422
Charge for the year [note 5) 35,270
Transfer to assets held for sale -
Disposals 127,12}
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 7,534
At 31 December 2020 X 64,114
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 - 73,952
At 31 December 2019 78,615

Included within additions to computer software development in 2020 is $18.7 million (2019: $13.5 million) of
capitalised internal staif costs. Amortisation of $35.3 million (2019: $52.0 million] is included as part of the operating
costs.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Technical and

Office

Freehold  gproduction furniture and teasehold Motor
land  equipment equipment improvements vehicles Total

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 368 91,317 4,124 33,37 32 129,158
Additions - 9,940 525 21,613 - 32,078
Effect of movement in forgign
exchange 12 3,066 Bl 1,484 - 4,623
Disposals - (90) - - (32) (122)
At 31 December 2019 380 104,233 4,710 56,414 - 185,737
Additions - 4,865 . 45 1,699 - 6,609
Transfer to assets held for sale - 03) - - - (13)
Disposals - (83,073) (4,007) (26,397) - (113,471)
Effect of movement in foreign
exchange 15 4,201 298 1,774 - 6,288
At 31 December 2020 395 30,213 1082 33,490 - 65,150
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 - 55,855 3,197 15,613 32 84,698
Charge faor the year (note 5) - 16,138 564 10,843 - 27,545
Effect of movemaent in foreign
exchange - 2,729 | 394 - 3,242
Disposals - (53) - - (32) _[895]
At 31 December 2019 - 84,670 3880 26850 - 5400
Charge for the year (note 5) - 1,528 385 10,873 - 22,786
Transfer to assets held for sale - - - ‘ - - -
Disposals - (83,030) (3,967) (23,394) - (110,385)
Effect of mavement in foreign
exchange - 4,158 345 1,898 - ~ 6,401
At 31 December 2020 - 17,326 649 16,227 - 34,202
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 395 12,887 403 17,263 - 30,948
At 31 Decernber 2019 380 19,563 830 29,564 - 50,337
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14,

v)

Leases
a) Right of use assets
Dffices and Data
Centres
$'000

Cost
At January 2019 T 85,489
Additions - _ o 12,748
%posals (2,222)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 3
At1danuary 2020 o . _ 86,008
Additions T ) ) 7,306
Disposals (8,219)
Transfer to assets held for sale (m8)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange N 339
At31December2020 e s e . 98,381
Accumulated depreciation
AtiJanuary2019 ; -
Charge for the year [rote 5) L _ 15,741
AtlJdsnuary2020 ____ e _ 16741
Charge for the year (note 5] 14,326
Effect of movement in fareign exchange 313
Transfer to assets held for sale (68)
D\'Sposals_ o (7,686)
At 31 Decemnber 2020 i 23,426
Net book value
At December2009 .- - e 22T,

.. 74,955

At 31 Decernber 2020

The Group holds right of use assets inrespect of cffica buildings and data storage space leases. The average lease

term is 3.9 years [2019; 3.5 years).

During the prior year the Group entered into 3 sublease for one of its leased properties. The right of use asset in
relation to this property was therefore derecognised and an investment in sublease was recognised, resultingin a
charge of $181,000 being recognised in the income statement.

Investment in sub-lease

AtlJanuary
Additions
Finance income on sub-lease
Payments received
At3) December

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
2047 .o
- 2,041

151 106

(733) -

1,565 AN
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4.

c}

Leases (continued)

The maturity analysis of the investment in sub lease is set out below:

Minimum  Present value Minimum  Present value
sublease of sublease sublease of sublease
payments asset payments asset
2020 2020 2018 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'C00
Year 1 550 436 732 582
Year 2 550 475 550 436
Year 3 550 518 550 475
Year 4 139 136 550 - s18
Year s - - 139 136
Less: Future finance income (224) - (374) -
EEa_nt vdlue of investment in sub lease 1,565 1,565 2,147 2,147
Anslysed as:
2020 2019
$£'000 $'000
Current 436 583
yﬂqﬂr_[e_mn__‘h_* 1,129 1,564
As at 31 December B ' T ges 2147
The Group does nat face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its investrnent in sublease.
Amounts recognised iri profit and loss
2020 2019
$’000 $'000
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (note 5) 14,126) N6,747)
Finance costs on lease liabilities (note 8) (7,135) {6,953)
Unwind of dilapidation provision (note 8) (33) (44)
Expense relating to short-term Jeases {591) (5,826)
Finance income on sub-lease (note 7) 151 106
Expense on sublease recognition - (179)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 amounted to $17.5 million (2019: $15.1 million), of which $10.3 million (2019:
%8.1 million) was used to settle the principat portion of theiease and $7.1 miltton {2019; $7.0 million] to settle interest.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group is committed to $68,000 for short term leases {2019: $54,000). There are no

variable lease payments.
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4.

d

Leases {continued)

Lease liability
The maturity analysis of the lease liability is set out below:

Minimum Present value
sublease of sublease

payments asset

2020 2020

$'000 $'000

Yearl 18,520 1,641
Year 2 14,964 8,758
Year 3 14,843 9,316
Year 4 13,724 8,923
YearS 12,837 8,757
Year 6 and onwards 48,427 36,921
Les_s: Future fingnce charges {38,999) . -
ﬁr_esent val.uéwo-f fé-ase liaé—(li'fy B T 84,316 84,316

Analysed as:

Current
Non-current
As at 31 December

Movement in lease liability during the year

As at 1.January

Payments mzade

Additions

Cisposals

Transfer to assets held for sale
Finance costs on lease liabilities
FX revaluation of lease liabilities
‘As' at3 Decembér

Minimum
sublease
payments

2019
$'000
17,944
15,4C0
13,812
13,287
12,080
53,044

3 (4,287)

84,280

2020
$'000

1,641
72,675
84,316

2020
$'000

84,280
(17,483)
7,258
(523)
(42)
7,135
3,691
84,318

Present valug
of sublease
asset

2019
$'000
1,19
9,291
8.327
8,431
7,875
39,165

84,280

209
%000

11,19
73,089
84,280

2018
$'000

80,104
{15,089)
12,190

6,953
102,
84,280
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Trade and other receivables

2020 209
$'000 $000
Restated
Non-current
Other receivables 5,605 5,503
Current
Gross tragde receivables 19,527 85,545
Loss allowance _ 2883 (5,628}
Net trade receivables_ L e N6S34 79919
Qther receivables .. o . 3gse | 35608
Total current trade and other receivables 14893 15,527

Gross trade receivabies are held st amortised cost and relate to balances arising from contracts with customers.
Net trade receivables are presented following the reduction for the expected credit loss allowance.

Other receivables relate to subscription payments as50ciated with revenue from contracts with customers
collected by third parties on the Group's behalf and withholding tax balances. Based on the credit risk assessment
of these balances, no expected credit loss allowance is recognised with respect to other receivables.

Non-current other receivables relate to facilities deposits.

The due date for trade receivables will vary depending on the jurisdiction and product but is typically between 30
and 90 days. Trage receivables do not bear any interest. There are several balances with counterparties where there
are ongoing legal or commercial disputes resulting in @ suspension of payments while discussions or legal
proceedings are underway. Although these balances are past due, they are expected to be recovered once the
dispute is resolved and hence no expected loss has been recognised.

Alltrade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure, however, the Group has not identified specific concentration
of credit risk with regards to trade receivables aside from the balances mentioned above, as the remaining balance
consists of a large number of receivables from various custamers.

Movements in expected credit loss are as follows:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

R — . ..5pE8 AT
Net remeasurement of Joss allowance 479 1,039
Transferred to asset held for sale (449) -
Disposal n27) -
Arnounts written off e 2558 ,_,h_..._,.ﬂg_“il
Effect of movemeantin foreign excham_;é'_u__'__________d_ L |- W (3 §
_...2893 5626

Asaf3lDecember

Net remeasurement of the loss allowance has been included in the Consolidated Income Statement. The Group has
applied the simplified approach to measuring expected cradit losses, as permitted by (FRS 9. Therefore, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but recognises a loss aliowance based on the financial asset's lifetime
expected credit loss. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-lgoking informaticn.
Balances are written off when the possibility of recovery is assessed as being remaote.

The write off of balances in the current financial year of $2.6 million consists of $1.2 million pertaining to the Media
division and $1.4 million from the Ventures division,

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not containimpaired assets.
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1s.

16.

17.

Trade and other receivables [continued)
Financial assets not contributing to the remeasurement of the loss allowance are shown below:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Not yet due 39,753 38,904
Not more than three months 6,524 38,014
Mare than three menths but not more than six maonths 10,404 2,472
More than six months but not more than a year 48,138 224
Mote thgnoneyegr 11,715 305
Total _1g,534 79,919

The Directers consider that the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

Prepayments and accrued income

Prepayments and accrued income balances are set out below:

2020 2015
$'000 $'000
Restated

Current
Prepayments for acquiring content and rights 374,501 519,558
Contract assets 68,465 49,437
Other prepaid costs 14,808 19,579
As at 31 Decemnber T T T 45774 588574

Other prepaid costs inctude $8.0 million (2019: $7.5 million) of IT prepayments, $4.8 million (2019: $3.7 million) of
marketing prepayments and $1.3 million [2019: $1.1 million) of prepayments pertaining to insurance and prafessional
services.

Contract assets comprise unbilied advertising, distributicn and technology related revenues where the Group has
provided seivices to customers over time, The increase in contract assets during the current financial period is due
toincreases in unbilled balances in relation to contracts with distribution partners within the OTT divisian.

Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2018
$'coo $'000
Ca_s_h @nq cagh e_qpival_ents__ ) 186000 39,0_3?

Cash was held in a variety of interest-tiearing accounts.
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18. Trade and other payables
' 2020 2019
$000 $'000
Restated
Trade payables 50,151 43,891
Rights accrual n2,a3 199,279
Accruals 137,067 132,078
Contract liabilities 168,383 168,012
COther creditors 20,105 20,109
As at 31 December 488,419 563,369
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value. For most
suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables. The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
Contract liabilities consist of subscription fees billed that have not been recognized. Of the tontract liabiities
brought forward as at 1 January 2020, all balances have been recognised in profit and loss in the year other than
$8.1 million in relation to the OTT Division and a further $12.6 million from broadcast partnerships, The increase in
contract liabitities relates to the obligations recognised under contracts held within the broadcast ventures division.
Other creditors consist of Kabilities in relation to revenue and publisher shares, in addition to payroll creditors and
VAT liabilities.
The prior periad comparatives far rights accruals, accruats and contract liabilities have been restated in the financial
statements, which is further detailed in note 2,
15 Provisions
Dilapidations Rights Onerous Legal Other Total
contracts
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'co0
At 1 January 2019 - - - - 121 171
Ilrghal recoqnition under IFRS 5,385 R . - - 5,385
Additions 557 - - - 557
Finance expense on unwind a4 - - - - 44
Effect of movernent in foreign 22) ) R A & (16)
Bxchange e e el
At 31 December 2019 5,964 - - - 177 6,141
Additions 48 39,842 14,306 4,500 - 58,696
Finance expense on unwingd 33 - - - - 33
Disposals {(25) - - - - (25)
Releases 1,436) - - - - 1,436)
Transfer to assets held for sale {30} - - - . - 30
Effect of movement in foreign 159 ) _ } 8 167
exchange e e e e = e .
At 31 December 2020 _ 4.N3 39,842 14,306 4,500 185 63,548
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19 Provisions (continued)
Provisions cansist of $4.7 millicn (2619 $6.0 million) in relation to dilapidations for leased right of use assets, $39.8
million (2019 $nil) in relation to rights contracts terminations, $14.3 mitiion in relation to onerous contracts (2019:
$nil} and $4.5 million {2019: $nil) relating to legal matters. The analysis of provisions balances between current and
non-current is detaiied below:
2020 2018
$'000 $°000
Current 54,310 1,403
Non-curfent o 9,236 , 74,?378
Asat31December T T T - 63546 6,147
20. Borrowings
2020 2019
%000 $'000
Current borrowings 1,479,876 278,778
Non-currentborrawings e S T Rt
Asat31December 4479876 278778

0On 31 October 2019, DAZN Group Limited entered into a convertible loan facility agreement (“the Facility”) with its
immediate parent Al Parform Holdings LLP, an entity in the Access Industries group. DAZN Group Limited can utilise
the Facility by drawing down in tranches of at least $10.C million up to a total commitment of $275.0 million, The
first $150.0 million was drawn down at 31 October 2019, with a further $100.0 million drawn down on 22 November
2019, and 3 final tranche of $25.0 million drawn down on 20 December 2019. The amount drawn down has been
presented within current barrowings. The Facility attracts an annual interest rate of 10%, and accrued interest of
£29.4 million (2018: $3.8 million) has been included within the current borrowings on the balance sheet. Refer to
note 21 for further details of the derivative instrument identified from the convertible loan transactian, in addition to
note 33 for additional financing events which occurred after the balance sheet date.

During 2020, the Group's immediate parent company, Al Perfarm Holdings LLP, extended an additional $1.05 billion
in funding through the following facilities:

- On 7 January 2020, DAZN Group Limited entered into a loan commitment with Al Perform Holdings LLP. DAZN
Group Limited can utilise the commitment by drawing down in tranches of at least $10.0 million up to a total
commitment of $250.0 million. The first $100.0 million was drawn down at 8 January 2020, with a further $150.0
million drawn down on 27 January 2020. These first tranches attract interest at a rate of 10% and incurred an
arrangement fee of $3.8 million.

On 25 February 2020 the commitment was increased to $450.0 million, and a final tranche of $200.0 miflion
drawn down on 27 Febryary 2020. The final tranche attracts interest at a rate of 30%,

- 0n24 July 2020, the Group entered into 8 new loan agreement with Al Perform Holdings LLP for a total of $200.0
millian. The agreement was split across two drawdowns: $125.0 million on 24 July, with the balancing $75.0
million drawn on 27 August 2020. The loan attracts interest at a rate of 30%.

- On17 September 2020, the Group entered inte an additional new loan agreement with Al Perform Haldings LLP
for a total of $200.0 million. The agreement was split across three drawdowns: $65.0 million on 17 Septamber,
$70.0m on 23 September with the balancing $65.0 million drawn on 21 October 2020. The Ipan attracts interest
at a rate of 30%.

On 19 Ngvemnber 2020, the Group extended the September facility with Al Perform Holdings LLP by a total of
$200.0 million on the same terrms. $75.0 million was drawn down on that date and $125.0 million was drawn
down on 29 December 2020. The loan attracts interest at a rate of 30%.
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20.

21.

Borrowings (continued)

On 29 December 2021, the Group and its shareholders and Access in its capacity 8s lender undertook certain steps
resulting in the $1.5 billion berrowings that existed at the 2020 year-end, as well as an additionat $1.1 billion ot
barrowings subsequent to year end, together with accrued interest, being released in consideration for the issue of
ordinary and preference shares. In addition, preference shares with an aggregate issue price and accrued
preferential return of $0.86 billion were converted into ordinary equity instruments. This resulied inthe settlement
of all the Group's borrowings, amounting to $3.3 billion, and the issuance of $1.2 billion of A ordinary shares and $2.1
bition of new growth greference shares. Additionatly, $150.0 million of funding was received on 29 December 2021,
in exchange for $75.0 million of A ordinary shares and $75.0 million of growth preference shares. A further $100.0
miltion of funding was received on 27 January 2022 in exchange for $50.0 miflion of A ordinary shares and $50.G
million of growth preference shares.

The fair market rate of interest was 30% for all funding received in 2020. This was assessed by ranagement 1o be
a fair market rate when benchmarking against similar instruments. Therefore the $250.0 million lcan cammitment
grawn down in January 2020 is recognised at fair value, with the difference recegnised as a capital contribution of
$47.3 million and leading to an additional interest charge of $40.4 miflion in the current year.

Financial instruments
a} Categories of financial instruments and thelr fair values

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

, 2020 2009
$'000 $'000

Financial assets 5t amortised cost Restated
Cash and cash equivalents [note 17) 186,000 79,037
Current trade and other receivables (note i5) 148,193 115,537
Contract assets (note 16) 68,465 49,437
Non-current trade and other receivables (note 15) 5,605 5503
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Investrnentin STATS Perform preference shares (note 28) 36,496 170,828
lnvestment in Foatballco preference shares [note 26) 32,349 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables (excluding contract Kabilities) (note 18) (319,777) {395,357)
Current borrowings (note 20) (1,479,876) (278,778)
Non-current berrowings (note 20} - -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative liability {15,465} 15,857)

b) Financial risk management

The Group's activities expase it ta a variety of financial risks. The main financial risks faced by the Group reiate to
capital risk, foreign exchange rates, interest rate risks, the risk of default by counterparties tofinancial transactions
and liquidity risk, These risks are managed as vgscribed below.

The Group's financial risk management is co-ordinated at its headquarters, in close co-pperation with the Board of
Directors, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimising the
exposure to financial markets.

The Group goes not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are descriced Delow.
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21.

Financial instruments (continued)
c) Capitalrisk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern whilst
having enough capital to continue its acquisition strateqy and sustain future product development. The Group will
continue to seek to maximise the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance
although this is 8 longer-term aspiration. The Group's overall strategy has not changed in the last year.

The capitat structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes cash and cash equivalents after deducting the
borrowings disclosed in note 20, and equity of the Group, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The primary reasan for the Group to raise debt or equity is 1o finance investment in its QTT offering.

The Group's Directars review the capital structure on an ad-hoc basis and consider the impact any acquisitions and
new products (and how they are financed) have on the Group's capital structure before cornpleting any acquisition [or
financing). The Group currently does not envisage paying a dividend in the short term.

d} Currency risk

Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the entities within the Group entering into contracts with a
transactional currency that differs from their functional currency. The Groug's sales and purchases are primarily
denominated in Eurps, US deilars and Japanese yen. The Groug's palicy is to review the level of revenues and costs
denominated in various key currencies and to naturally hedge wherever possible.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary lisbilities that
are designated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity in question at the reporting date are as
follows:

EUR GBeP JrY uso Other Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2020
Financial assets 38,680 6,10 16,122 129,00 16,559 206,482
Financial liabilities (929730  (704) (13,77 (1,600,328) (2,308) (1,710,037
Netexposure _ _ _  [(54,283) 5406 _ _ 2405 [(L,47,327 14,250 (1,503,549}
2019 '
Financial assets 25,912 6,718 15,344 52,020 1,587 111,581
Financial ligbilities (76644)  (7.953)  (7,850)  (397.92))  (12755)  (523,123)
Net exposure o _(50,732)  (11,238) _[2,508) (345,901 _ (1.168) [411,542)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of EUR, GBP, JPY and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to 3 15 per cent increase and decrease in EUR, GBP, JPY and USD
against the functional currency of the underlying entity. 13 per cent represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in fareign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 15 per cent change in
fareign currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis incluges related party loans where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than
the functional currency of the borrower. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and other equity
where the transaction currency strengthens 15 per cent against the relevant functional currency of the entity. For a
15 per cent weakening of the transaction currency, there would be 3 comparable impact on the profit and other
equity, and the balances balow would be inversed.
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21.

Financial instruments {continued)

d) Currencyrisk {continued)

EUR GBP JPY usp Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
2020
Profit or loss (i) (1,542) 1,748 365 (235,803) (235,232)
Gther equity (i) - - - - -
2019
Profit or loss ) (1,465) (B,617) (327) {45,118) (53527)
Other equity - - - - -
0] this is mostly attributabie to the exposure outstanding on funding provided in USD and EUR payables in
the Group at the reporting date
@] the Group does not apply any foreign exchange hedges so there would be no impact of a movement in

exchange rates against USD on equity

The Graup's sensitivity to foreign currency has increased during the current year mainly due to increased funding
provided in USD compared to the prior year. In addition, there has also been an increase in rights accruals held in
Euros resulting in higher EUR denominated habilities.

{in management's apinian, the sensitivity analysis is representative af the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure reflects the exposure during the year.

e) interestraterisk

The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk as it only holds borrowing facilities with fixed interest rates issued by
members of the Access industries group. Refer to note 20 for further details on borrowings.

The Graup’s exposure to interest rates on financial assets and lisbilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

f)  Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty wifi defauit on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financizl loss from defaults. The Group
uses publicly availabie financial information and its own trading records to assess the creditworthiness of
counterparties. The Group continually monitors its exposure to counterparties and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

Cash held by counterparties is presented to the Board on @ monthly basis. The credit risk on these funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
Trade receivables consist of 8 large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any other single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if
they are related entities. Concentration of credit risk to any counterparty, excluding those where there are ongaing
legal disputes, did not exceed 5% of financial assets at any time during the year.

The credit risk onliquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
nternational credit-rating agencies.

0} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed by short and long-term cash flow forecasts. The Group receives funding through parent
company loans or equity investments, which takes into account the short and long-term cash requirements of the
Group, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves are held to meet short-term working capital requirements. The Group
is satisfied that parent company funding will continue to be available in the future, refer to note 1 for further details
on going concern.
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21.

Financial instruments (continued)
g) Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Groug's undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities have contractual
rmaturities (including interest payments where applicable) as summarised below:

Currentwithin&  Current6t012 Non-currentito

months months 5years
31 Decernber 2020 o ——— .. %000 _ %000 __ | %000
Trade and other payables (excluding contract
lizbilities) [(note 18] 319,777 - -
Interest and principal of Shareholder Loan 1,479,876 " -
Total e e MT998S3 =
Currentwithin6  Current6to12 Nan-current1tos
months months years
31 December 2019 $000 %000 . $'000
Trade and other payatles (excluding contract
liahilities) (note 18) 395,357 - -
Interest and principal of Shareholder Loan s 287 -
Totel . T 395357 278778 -

h} Financial instruments fair value

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements require disclosure of
fair value measurements by level based on the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ligbihties;

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or ligbility, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and

Level 3—inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservabie market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair values of financal assets and liabilities are based on quoted market prices where available. Where the
market value is not available, the Group has estimated relevant fair values on the basis of publicly available
information from outside sources or on the basis of discounted cash flow models where approgriate.

The Directors consider that the carrying values of trade receivables, other receivable assets, trade payables, other
payables, and borrowings recorded at amortised cost in the consolidsted financial statements are appropriately
equa! to their fair value.

fnvestment in STATS Perform preference shores

DOn 12 July 2019 as part of the sale of the Perform Content business to STATS LLC, DAZN received a 20% minority
share of the newly formed Peak Jersey Topco Ltd for £160.1 million {($200.5 million) consideration. This investment
consisted of 20% of thz B ordinary shares for consideration of $0.2 million, as well as 20% of the cumulative
preference shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd for $200.3 million.

The ordinary shares have been classified as an investment in associate and detailed in note 26. The preference
shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd have been classified as an equity instrument, measured at fair value through profit
and loss. The preference shares have a cumulative dividend of 9% per annum.

At the reporting date a fair value assessment was performed based on the projected future cash flows of the STATS
Perform business, discounted at an applicable rate. This resulted in a fair value loss on the preference shares of
$114.1 million [2019: $14.4 million), which has been reflected in profit and loss far the pariad. The projected future
cashflows of the STATS Perform business form the key input for the fair value assessment of the investment in
assaciate, spacifically the projected impacts of COVIO-19 on anticipated growth plans, anticipated synergies and
the defay of new prajects.
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21

Financial instruments (continued)
h} Firancia! instruments fair value (continued]

As these inputs were not based on quoted or observable market data, this investment is classified as level 3in the
fair value measurement hierarchy. Refer ta note 26 for & recongiliation of the carrying value of the investmentsin
STATS Perform.

Investment in Footballco preference shores

0On 19 October 2020 as part of the sale of the Footbalico business to TRG, the Group retained a 31% minority share
of the Footballco Group, This investment consisted of 31% of the ordinary shares, as well as 31% of the cumulative
preference shares in Footbalico Media Ltd. The retained interest was recognised at a fair value of $33.5 million on
the sale date.

The ordinary shares have been classified as an investment in associate and detailed in note 26. The preference
shares in Footballco Media Ltd have been classified as an equity instrument, measured at fair value through profit
and loss, The preference shares have a curmulative dividend of 10% per annum.

At the reporting date a fair value assessment was performed based on the initia! fair vatue at the transaction date,
adjusted for any changes in assumptions between this date and the year end. This resulted in no movement in the
fair value of the preference shares at 31 December 2020. The key inputs to the fair value assessment of the
investment in associate at the transaction date and at year end are the initial transaction date fair value, growth
rate, the farecast lifespan of underlying cashflows, and the rate used to discount these cash flows.

As these inputs were not based on quoted or observable market data, this investment is classified as level 3in the
fair value measurement hierarchy. Refer to note 26 for a reconciliation of the carrying value of the investments in
Footballco.

Derivative liability

On 31 Qctober 2019, DAZN Group Limited entered into a canvertitle toan facility agreement with its immediate
parent, Al Perfarm Holdings LLP. The Facility was for g total commitment of $275.0 million, which was drawn down
in full between Qctober and December 2019. The terms of the facility included an aption for the holder to convert
the loan into ordinary shares in DAZN Group Limited in the event of certain conversion triggers. These conversion
shares would be issued at 3 10% discount, resuiting in the recognition of a derivative Hiability for the option to convert
the loan to equity. The Group has accounted for the initial fair value of the derivative as a current liability, with a
corresponding debit being recorded in equity, within the accumulated deficit account. Any subsequent revaluation
of the derivative liability is recorded through the profit and loss account.

The derivative was measured with reference to the contractual maximum potential discount that would be receives
in the event of conversion, multiplied by a probability of the canversion events occurring and the assumption for the
timing of that conversion. The probability of conversion events ogcurring is the key input assumption for the
derivative valuation. At year end the Group's management reassessed the likelihood of conversion and getermined
that there was a 40% likelinood of conversion within the 2022 financial year [2019: 50% likelinood of conversion).
The probability was based on management estimate of the fikelihood of conversion, resuiting in the recognition of
$15.9 million derivative fiability in 2018. In 2020, the derivative liability decreased bty $0.4 million to $35.5 million.
Given these inputs were not based on quoted or abservable markel data, this investment is classified as level 3in
the fair value measurement hierarchy.

The table below is a reconciliation of the derivative measurements for the year enﬁed 31 Decermber 2020;

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Opening balance 15,857 -
Issuance of option to convert loan to equity - 15,857
Revaluation of convertible ioan option (392) -
Closing balance 15,465 15,857
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22,

Deferred tax

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Deferred tax assets 16,430 12,072
Deferred tax liabilities - (4,810)
] —— - ] 16,430 7452
Deferred tax movement
1 January B 7,462 (1,842}
Credit to income statement 3,917 5,638
Effect of movementin foreign exchange 770 69
ShowngsHeldforSale T TTTTn MO T gpg -
Transfer to discontinueg ogerations 7 o 3ee?
Disposed of duringtheyesr T T T 7T gg5g T
As at 31 Decemnber ’ - 16,430 7,462
2020 2018
$'000 $'000
Analysis of deferred tax
Temporary differences arising on property, plant and equipment 1,367 8,354
Share-based payments 562 1,074
Acquisition intangibles - (4,688)
Other Ci__.4501 2,722
Totel . _ _ _ _ 16430 _ 7462

In addition to the amounts set out above the Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset at 31 December 2020 of
$573.8 million (2019: $485 2 million) relating to trading losses of $3 billion, $9 million relating to capital tosses of
$47.6 million (2012: $7.9 million), and $13.9 million in relation to other items (2019: $14.6 million}. The Directors have
considered cash flow forecasts and budgets for future years showing profitability and top line growth for the UK
entities within the Group, As at 31 December 2020 no deferred tax assets in respect of losses have been recognised
(2019: $nil) 85 it is not considered probable that there will be future taxabie profits available.

As stated in note 8, on 1 July 2021 German legislation was introduced to implement recommendations set cut by
the QOrganisation for Economic Co-Operation and Development to neutralise the effects of hybrid mismatch
arrangements for which no adjustment has been made in the financial statements. This legislation, if it has effect
from 1 January 2020, may impact the quantum of the unrecognised deferred tax gsset, as a deduction would then
be available in respect of certain expenses (totalling $31 million) currently being treated as non-deductible for UK
corporation tax purposes. The impact of this would be to increase the quantum of the urirecognised deferred tax
asset by $6 million, to refiect these expenses as actually being deductible for UK corporation tax purposes, thereby
generating a greater quantum of trading fosses upon which no deferred tax asset is recognised.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and
assqciates and interests in joint arrangements, for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised, is not
required to be disclosed on the basis that this is not practicably determinable.
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23. Changes in liabilities from financing activities

Interest and
repayment of
Sharehatder loan
(note 20)
Derivative financiat
liability

L ease liabihity [in)
{note 14)

COther

Senior secured
nates

[note 20]
Revolving credit
facility

(note 20)
Interest and
repayment of
Shareholder loan
[note 20}
Derivative financial
liability

Lease liability (iii)
(note 14)

Other

1January  Financing  Non-cash Remeasure-
2020 cashflows (i) settlement ment of
of  derivative
borrowings liability

fii}
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
278,778 1,050,000 - .
15,857 - - [(392)
84,280 (17,483) -
378,915 1,032,617 - (392)
Non-cash Remeasure~
1 January Financing  settement ment of
2018 cashflows i) of derivative
borrowings hability

)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'c00
268,998 - {278,239) -
[479] 53,885 (63,445] -
- 261,065 - -
- - - 15,857
80,104 (15,069} -
6 - - -
348,629 309,881  (341,684) 15,857

New leases
(iii)

$'000

7,258

7,258

New leases
[ini}

$'000

12,190

12,190

Changein
foreign
exchange
rates

$'000

[3,697)

(3,691)

Changein
foreign
exchange
rates

$'000

(3,675)

3g

(102)

(3,7238)

Gther

changes (iv) 31 Becember

$'000

151,098

13,952

165,050

Other
changes [H)

5’000

12,818

17,13

7,157
(8)
37,780

2020

$'000

1,479,876
15,465

84,316

1,579,657

31 December

(i}  The cash flows from bank loans, loans from related parties and other barrowings make up the net amount of
praceeds from borrowings and repayments of borrowings in the cash fiow statement.

fii) As part of the sale of Content, $341.7 miliion of the censideration was used to directly settle existing
borrowings. Refer to note 28 for further detsils.

(i) Lease ligbilities were recognised on 1 January 2018 following the adoption of IFRS16.

fiv) Other changes include interest accruals, fawr value agdjustments for the below market interest glement on
shareholder loans and the disposal of lease liabilities.
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24,

Share cagpital
2020 28
$'000 $'000
Authorised, issued, allotted and fully paid
A QOrdinary shares of 3 389/600 US cents each 13,181 13,181
M QOrdinary shares of 3 389/600 US cents each 1,333 1,333
Z Ordinary shares of 3 389/600 US cents each 1,468 1,468
G shares of 3 389/600 US cents each e _}_.‘i?______ _ ._,A-Lii%
Convertible preference shares of 3.64 cents each e _ o E?_4___“ “__2_7_4_
e e o 17,698 _ 17,698
2020 2019
Number of shares ‘000 ‘000
Authorised, issued, allotted and fully paid
A Qrdinary shares of 3 389/600 US cents each 362,105 362,105
M Ordinary shares of 3 389/600 US ¢ents each 36,586 36,586
Z Qrdinary shares 3 389/600 US cents each 40,317 40,317
(G Shares 3 389/600 US cents each o 3_9,6{1? . 7 39,647
Convertible preference sharesof 364centseach 7530 2,530
486,185 486,185

Al Perform Holdings LLP, a portfolio company of Access Industries, held all of the A shares and preference shares
which represent approximately 76.03% of the equity share capital of the Company (2019; 76.03%).

M shares are held by members of management, employees and other shareholders, who at 31 December 2020,
represented spproximately 7.53% of the equity share capital of the Company {2019: 7.53%).

Z shares are held by the Z Shareholder wha at 31 December 2020 represented approximately 8.29% of the equity
share capital of the Company (2019: 8.29%).

Growth shares (‘G Shares’) are held by an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) on behalf of Directors and key management
staff of the DAZN Group, who at 31 December represented approximately 8.15% of the equity share capital of the
Company (2019: 8.15%). Further details of the G-shares scheme are shown in note 25.

Each holder of an A Share, M Share, 7 share and G shares is entitled to receive notice of the general meetings of the
Company, holders of A Shares, M Shares and Z shares are entitled to vote at general meetings.

Issue of Convertible preference shares

The Coempany adopted new articles of association with effect from 6 June 2019, introducing convertible preference
shares as 3 new class of share. Each share has a nominal value of 3.64 cents and has a cumulative preferential
return per annum at a rate of 10% of the issue value of each convertible preference share, to be settied only in
conversion shares. The convertible preference shares hold no right 10 receive notice of or speak at any general
meeting, nor do they confer the right to vote upon any resolution. The convertible preference shares are not
redeematle by the Company or the preference sharehclder without the occurrence of 3 conversion event. The
convertible preference shares are convertible into conversion shares upon the earliest of the following conversion
events; 3 third party issuance, a new equity issuance, or any step or action being taken by the Company in
connection with a Distribution Issuance, as defined in the Company’s Articles of Association. The number of
applicable conversion shares to be issued on the conversion of the preference shares shall be determined by
dividing the aggregate value of the preference shares being converted plus any accrued preferential return on the
preference shares by the conversion price.

In April 2019 BAZN Group Limited entered into a facility with Al Perform Holdings LLP for a loan of $200.0 mitlian at
an interest rate of 10% annually, with an additional $150.0 million accordion agreement which was signed in May
2019. On 6 June 2019, it was agreed with Al Perform Heldings LLP to convert the criginal foan, accordion loan and
outstanding interast balance totalling $353.0 million in exchange for 3,529,861 convertible preference shares.
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24.

25.

Share capital (continued)
Issue of convertible preference shares (continued)

On 20 June 2019 DAZN Group Limited issued 1,000,000 canvertible preference shares to Al Perfarm Holdings LLP in
exchange for $100.0 million. On 22 July 2019 DAZN Group Limited issued 1,750,000 convertible preference shares to
Al Perform Holdings LLP in exchange for $175.0 million. On 23 August 2019 DAZN Group Limited issued 750,000
convertible preference shares to Al Perform Holdings LLP in exchange for $75.0 million. On 11 September 2019 DAZN
Group Limited issued 500,000 convertible preference shares to Al Perform Holdings LLP in exchange for $50.0
miliion.

Preferential return on convertible preference shares

The convertible preference shares have a cumulative preferential return per annum at a rate of 10% of the issue
value of each convertible preference share (the ‘preferential return’).

Issue of G shares

0On 9 October 2019, 4,757,709 G shares were issued to Directors under the Group’s share option scheme at par. See
nate 25 far further details,

Own shares

The G shares issued in 2018 aind 2019 are held by an employee benefit trust on behalf of the participants of the G
shares scheme, The Trust falls under the control of DAZN Group Limited and as such the G shares it holds are
recognised as own shares. The value of G shares held by the Trust as at the close of the financial year was $1.4
million (2079: $3.4 million).

Long-termincentive schemes
{a) Growth shares

0n 7 July 2018, the Board of Directors approved the grant of Growth Shares ("G Shares”) to Executive Directors of
the Group for nil consideration. The shares were awarded on 24 September 2018 and 29 October 2018 respectively.

The vesting of the G Shares is contingent upon a 20% growth in share price measured over a 4-year period from the
date of issue. An award will not vest if the Group's share price at the date of vesting is below a particular “hurdle
price" specified at the respective date of issue. The hurdle price is currently $10.09 {$13.14) per ordinary G Share
(reflecting a 20% hurdle on the share price of $8.41) in respect of the issuances on 24 Septernber 2018 and 29
October 2018,

On 9 Octaber 2019, a further 4,757,702 G shares were issued to Directors. The vesting terms and hurdle price are
still tn be confirmed and management has estimated the fair value of the shares with reference to settlements with
good and neutral leavers in the current ang prior periods.

Following review of the contractual documentation pertaining to the G-shares, management reassessed their
historic judgement around the Group's share-based payment arrangement for growth shares (“G-shares”) issued
to empioyees was equity-settled and have getermined based on its terms that it is more accurately accounted for
as a contingent cash-settled scheme, and have also identified an errcr in the application of the vesting conditions
to the charge calculated for 2018,

Management aiso performed & review of the vesting assumptions in 2019, resuiting in the G-shares scheme which
was formerly treated as an equity-settled share-based payment scheme, now being treated as a contingent cash-
settled share-based payment scheme and assessed at each period end using the mast probable outcome
assessment whether the scheme will be equity or cash-settled. As such the historic accounting for the scheme has
been restated, which is further detailed in note 2. In the current and prior year, the G-shares scheme is recognised
as being a contingent cash-settled scheme,

Buring the current year there have been a number of participants who have exited the scheme who were judged to
be ‘good leavers' and therefore are have exercised their vested shares with all outstanding unvested shares having
lapsed. The good ieavers transferred G shares to the employee benefit trust for 8 price per share equal to the higher
of cost or the fair value per share as st their termination date. In the prior year, participants leaving the scheme were
recognised as neutral or bad leavers. Per the terms of the scheme bad leavers are required to transfer their G shares
to the employee tenefit trust fer the lower of cost and the fair value per share at the termination date. Neutral
leavers transferred G shares to the employee benefit trust for a price per share equal to the higher of cost or the fair
valuge per share as at their termination date.
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25.

Long-term incentive schemes (continued)
(a) Growth shares [continued)

A reconciliation of the movements in the G share awards can be summarised as follows;

Number of Options

options outstanding as

. originally Lapsed/ at 31 December

Date of grant granted Exercised forfeited 2020

24 September 2018 25,572,601 (4,461,518) (4,709,500) 16,401,583

29 Qctober 2018 9,317,142 (1,042,187) (1,549,622} 6,725,333

90ctoper2org 4,757,709 (22,012) (67,756) 4,667,910

Total o o 39,647,452 (5.525,717) (6,326,878) 27,794,857
The following conditional share awards granted tc Directors and staff are outstanding:

2020 2019

No. No.

24 September 2018 16,401,583 25,572,601

29 October 2018 6,725,333 8,722,439

90ctober2009 . _._. .. Apbro41 4,757,709

Total _.20794857 39052741

The following share-based payments charge/(credit) in the year is included within operating costs.;

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Restated

IFRS 2 charge 489 498

Release of share-based payment reserve - (4,032)

Release cf share-based payment liability . ) o (987) -

Total e e i e . 1498) (3,534]
The reconciliation of the share-based payment liability is detaifed as follows:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Restated

As at1January 498 -

IFRS 2 charge 489 438

Release of share-based payment liability e -

As at 31 December ) . - 498

During the current and the prior period, the G shares scheme has been recognised as a cash-settled share-based
payment scheme based as the most probable settlement mechanism. The fair value of the G share pptions has
been determined using the settlements made ta good and neutral leavers in the current and prigr year, with the fair
value recognised as £ nil per share in the current year (2019: £ 0.06 per share).

(b) Cther cash-settled long-term incentive schemes

During the current year the Group had 2 live cash-settled schemes (2019: 3 schemes). These long-term incentive
schemes run over a series of 3 consecutive financial years and are then settled in cash in the April following the final
year of each scheme. The final settiernent figure is based on the financial performance of the Group in each of the
three financial years that make up each scheme. The expense recognised in the current year for the cash-settled
long-term incentive schemes is $1.7 million {FY19: $2,0 million). The liability recorded on the balance sheet was $5.6
million (2019: $7.9 million).
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26. Interestin joint ventures and associates
Matchroom USA LLC

Matchroom USA LLC [“Matchroom”) is a joint venture established on 23 March 2018, incorporated in the USA with a
reqgistered office care of United Corporate Services, Inc., 874 Walker Road., Suite C, Dover, Delaware 18904. The
Group has joint control via 3 40% ownership interest and equal representation and voting rights through the
composition of the Board. The venture produces and distributes professional boxing events on an exclusive basis.
Maost boxing events take place in the United States and the events are distributed via an online streaming and linear
erogramming service to customers in the United States and globally. Matchroom is structured as a separate vehicle
and the Groug has a residualinterestinits net assets. Accordingly, the Group has classified its interest inMatchroom
as a joint venture and is measured using the equity method of accounting as set out in the Group's accounting
policiesin note 3.

In addition, the Group also has joint control of Matchroom Boxing Italy 2018 LLP with a 40% ownership interest. The
initial investment and the carrying value of the investment at the end of 2020 are trivial so they have not been
separately disclosed below.

The following table summarises the financial information of Matchroom as included in its own financial statemants,
based gn Group accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Group and both Matchroom USA LLC anc
Matchroom Boxing Italy 2018 LLP are consistent, with no adjustment required to align accounting policies.

(a) Summarised financial information of Matchroom USALLC

31 Becember 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Non-current assets - -
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,523 5,235
Trade and other receivables 460 8,656
Total current assets 9,983 13,892
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,256) {796)
Contract liabilities - o
Accruals (5,408) {2,091
Total current liabilities (6,662) (2,898)
Non-current liabilities ] - -
Net assets 3,321 10,994

Included within the current liabilities above are current financial labilitias (excluding trade and other payables ang
provisians) of $5.4 mitlion [2019: $2.1 miliion).
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26.

Interest in jeint ventures and associates (continued)
Matchroom USA LLC {continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue
Operating costs
Finance expense

(Loss)/profit for the period
Distributions in the period

Total movement in reserves in the period

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
65,409 121,744
(67,551) (103,854)
37 (24)
(2,179} 12,866
{5,494) -
(7,573 17,866

Included within the loss for the year was depreciation and amaortisation expenses of $nil (2019: $nil), finance income

of $nil (2019; $nil) and a tax credit of $nil (2019: $nil).

Reconciliation to carrying amounts

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net assets (1009%) 3,321 10,994
Add back net {contributions)/distributions 1,415 -
Adjusted net assets 4,736 _ 10,994
Group's share of net assets {40%) 1,894 4,398
Group's share of historic losses . - (2,275)
Less expected withholding tax (432) -
Investment in joint venture 1,462 2,123
(Loss)/profit for period (100%) (2179) 17,856
Matehroom Holdea entitlement - {7)125)
(Loss)/profit available for joint distribution {2,179) 16,74
Group's share of (loss)/profit (40%) * _[872) 4,295
Withholding tax for partnership . _ U -1 | VU CALe)
Share of joint venture (lass)/income recognised L8y 2123
Carrying amount of interest in Matchroom USALLG 1,462 o 2123

* The Group was not entitled to distributions until the cumulative amount of distributions made tc Matchroom
Holdco has crossed a specific threshold as per the agreement for the joint venture. When this threshold was crossed
in the prior period the Group was then entitled te a share of the profit for the period equal the Group's ownership
percentage of the joint venture. The share of income from the joint venture is alsc calculated after deducting

estimated withhoiding tax.
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26.

Interest in joint ventures and associates (continued)
Peak Jersey Topco Ltd (STATS Perform}

0n 12 July 2019 DAZN Group soid the Perform Content business to STATS LLC. As part of the sale DAZN received a
20% non-controlling interest $hare of the newly formed Peak Jersey Tapco Lid for $200.5 milion {$160.1 miflion)
consideration. Peak Jersey Topco Lidis company incorporated in Jersey whose registered office is at 22 Grenville
Street, St Hefer, Jersey JE4 8PX. [tig the ultimate parent entity of the STATS Perform Group, a global sports content
provider, under the Stats Perform brand, with products including data, sports news, live and an-demand videq,
scores, information, statistics and editorial content, The STATS Perform Group s & sports content source for several
key markets, such as professionsi sparts, braadcast production, online bookmakers, social media and technology,
cable networks, interactive television and print media, inciuding the leverage of its broad sports rights portfalio.
This investment consisted of 20% of the B ordinary shares for consideration of $0.2 miilion, as well as 20% of the
cumutative preference shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd for $200.3 million. As DAZN exerts significant infiuence over
the entity, the investrment has been treated as an associate and has subsequently been equity accounted in ling
with 1AS 28.

The preference shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd have been classified as an equity instrument s they represent 2
residual interest in the assets of the STATS Perform Group after deducting those liabilities related giractly to the
preference shares. These are measured at fair vatue through profit and l0ss. For the purposes of allocating losses
frorm STATS Perform, the preference shares are considered g long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of
the Group's netinvestment in an associate.

The following table summarises the consolidated financial information of STATS Perform as included in its own
financial statements:

(a) Summarised financial information of STATS Perform
Summarised balance sheet
310ecember 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
Non-current assets 1,012,300 1,045,700
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 36,500 48,500
Trade and other raceivables 31,400 38,900
Prepayments and accryed income 38,900 41100
Total current assets 106,800 129,500
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables [74,B00) (54,400)
Gtner current ligbilities {23,800} {15,700)
Total current liabilities {98,600) (70,100)
Non-current liabilities (1,908100)  (1750,100)
Net liabilities (887,600} [645,000)

Inctuded within the other current lisbilities and non-current (iabilities above are financial liabilities of $19.2 million
and $623.8 million respectively.
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26.

interest in joint ventures and associates {continued)
Peok Jersey Topco Ltd (STATS Perfarm} (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Restated

Revenue 306,600 194,500
Loss for the period (246,900) (195,500)
Other comprehensive income for the period 4,300 [21,000)

The above loss includes $150.2 million of interest and foreign exchange 16sses on preference shares held by the
Group that are removed from the Groug's share of consolidated losses below [2019: $131.4 million, including losses
relating to the period prior to acquisition).

tncluded within the loss for the year was depreciation and amortisation expenses of $75.1 million (2019: $46.0
million), finance income of $nil [2019: $13 million), finance expenses of $59.5 million (2019: $49 million} and a tax
credit of $9.8 million (2019: $nil).

[b) Reconciliation to carrying amounts — investment in associate

31 Decernber 31 December
2020 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Investment in B ardinary shares as at 1 January

202012 uly 2008 i il e e e e e e 2228
Loss for the period 000%)______ [e&700)  @aua

Group'sshare ofloss (20%) (19,340) R 225} ,
Lass allocated to B ordinary shares ™ ~ - ) - (219

Carrying amount B ordinary shares investment in
STATS Perform - -

allocated 10 the investment in preference shares as detailed in the following table
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26.

Interest in joint ventures and associates {continued)

Peak Jersey Topco Ltd (STATS Perform) [continued)

(¢) Reconciliation to carrying amounts —investment in preference shares

Investment in preference shares as 3% 1 January

2020/12 July 2019

Fair value loss 9% cumulative preference shares

Loss for the period (100%])

Groug's share of loss (20%)
Group's share of loss allocated to B ordinary shares
Loss allocated to preference shares investment

Other comprehensive income for the period (100%)
Restatement to prior year other comprehensive income

Group's share of other comprehensive incame (20%)

Carrying amount preference share investment in

STATS Perform

3000

(96,700)
(19,340}

4,300
(8,8086)

31December
2020
$'000

170,828

(114,091)

(19,340)

(901

36,486

$'000

(6am7)
(12,823}
219

(12,294)

31 December
2019
$'000

200,316

(14,4253

{12,604)

(2,459)

170,828

The Group has recognised a proportionate share of the losses from the acquisition to the year-end plus the initia!
investment a5 the total carrying value. Losses have been recognised on the combined investrment by first reducing
the ordinary investment and then subsequently reducing value of the preference shares.

Peak Jersey Topco Ltd restated their 2019 other comprehensive income due to an error in foreign exchange losses
on intercompany balances, This has been included the Group’s current year share of pther comprehensive income
as the directors have assessed that the impact on the Group’s share of other comprehensive income is immaterial.
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26.

Interest in joint ventures and associates [continued)

Footballco Media Limited (Footbalico)

In early 2020 the Group entered into negotiations to sell its part of its Media division, comprising three
subcompanents; the footkall news website Goal.com; Spox; and Voetbalzane, to US-based investment firm TPG.
The Group undertook various restructuring activities to form a new groug {“Footballco Group™) prior to the sale, On
19 October 2020, the sale completed and a majority stake in the Footballco Group was sold to Digital Media GaalCo
LLC, TPG's acquiring entity, for a cash consideration of $70 million. DAZN retained a 31.9% interest in the Footballco
Group, with the remaining shareholders comprising Bigital Media GoalCo LLC and Footballco Group management.

The Group recognised the 31.9% retained interest at a fair value of $33.5 million. On 5 November 2020, a further 1%
af the Group’s shareholding was distributed to Footballco Group management in accordance with the sale
agreement, resulting in 3 deemed disposal of $1.0 million,

The Group's investment consists of 30.93% of the ordinary shares and cumulative preference shares. The
areference shares have a cumalative return of 10% per annum. As DAZN exerts significant influence over the entity,
the investment in ordinary shares has been treated as an investment in an associate and has subsequently been
equity accounted in line with |AS 28.

The preference shares in Footballco have been classified as an equity instrument as they represant a residual
interast in the assets of the Footballco Graup after deducting those liabilities related directly to the preference
shares. These are measured at fair value through profit and loss. For the purposes of allocating losses from
Footbalico, the preference shares are considered a long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the Group's

net investment in an gsscciate.

The following table surnmarises the consclidated financial information of Footballca Group:
(a} Summarised financial information of Footballco

Summarised balance sheet
31 December

2020

$'000
Non-current assets 80,085
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,042
Trade and other receivables 4,988
Prepayments and accruedincome o S 6,877
Total current assets L L 20.90?_
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,865)
Other current lisbilities o - -
Total current liabilities (5,865)

Non-current liabilities_

_Netassets
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26. Interest in joint ventures and associates [continued)
Footballca Media Limited (Footballco) (continued)

31 December

2020

Summarised statement of comprehensive income $'000
Revenue 10,21
_ Loss for the period L L o (400)

Uther comprehenswe tncome for the pehc_\ﬂ -

(b)) Reconcifiation to carrying amounts - investment in associate

31 December
2020

$'000

FairvglvugOninjtialrpcogritign19_07cmber2029’_7_ N ] B o -

Loss allocated to ordinary shares -

Carrylng amount of ordmary share investment in Footballce -
“Initial | recognmon of the fair value for the investment in ordmaryshares was assessed to be nil 3s the full value was associated
with the preference shares investmeant.

{c] Reconciliation to carrying amounts — investment in preference shares

31 December

2020
$'000
$'000
F_airvah_;e_on_initia_&recpgnigi_qm‘:) q_c_tit;e_rzozo o o L 3_3_,5_09‘
“Disposalof W intereston SNovember 2020 0,038
Lossfortheyear ST - i: T B 7 7 . . I [400)
Group’s share of Ioss (31%] o o 2y
Grou,sshareofIgssallocatedtoordmaryshares N o - .
Loss allocated to preference shares mvestment B o ) ) ) ) 7 [124)
‘ Carrﬁﬁg afhggjnt b}eférenbe share investrentin ﬁaoiballco 7 ) - . 32,349

included within the loss far the year was depreciation and amortisation expenses of $1 million, finance income of
$nil, finance expenses of $nil and a tax credit of $nil,

The Group has recegnised s proportionate share of the fosses from the acquisition to the year-end plus the initial
investment as the total carrying value. Losses have been recognised on the combined investment by first reducing
the investment in ordinary shares, for which the balance is nil, and then subsequently reducing value of the
investment in preference shares.

88



DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

27,

Assets held for sale

Activoweb SAS and Mackolik Internet Hitzmetleri Ticaret A.S.

During 2020, DAZN entered into negotiations to sell the following two entities as the Group looks to streamling its

service offerings in order to focus on the core OTT business:

«  Activaweb SAS ("Activaweb™) - a company registered in France which owns and oparates the online sports

portal Matchendirect.com

¢ Mackolik Internet Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi ("Mackelik”) - a company registered in Turkey which

owns and operates the online sperts portals, Mackolik.com and Sahadan.com

As at 12 December 2020 they have been classified as assets held for sale. The sale completed post year end in

September 2G21.

As the carrying amount is significantly lower than the estimated selling price, they have been measured at the
carrying amount. The foliowing tables show a summary of the financial information of the assets held for sale as

included in the Group accounts.

Summarised balance sheet

Non-current assets
Goodwill
Acquisition intangibles

Other non-current assets

Non-current assets

31 December
2020
$000

6,231
2,169
- . 42
8,442

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Total current assets

877
. 1892

) 2,769

Total assets held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Total current liabilities

_nz2n

- (,189)
(1,185)

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilties heid for sale.

e

Flet assets

10,026

a7



DAZN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

28.

Disposal of subsidiaries and operations

During the 2020 financial year, the Group disposed of several investments, subsidiaries and assets in order to
streamline operations and focus on the core OTT business. The following sales occurred during the 2026 financial
year, resulting in a total gain on disposal of $110.4 million recorded in profit and loss:

¢ PIMGSALLP (FC Diez) joint venture was sold an 20 March 2020 for $37 million consideration. This
investment had previousily been classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2019 and the sale resulted
in g profit on sale of $31.6 million.

¢ A majority stake in the Footbalico Group, comgrising the news website Goal.com, Spox, and
Voetbalzone, was soid to TPG for $70 miifion on 19 Gctober 2020, resulting in a total profit on sale of
$75.0 million.

*  The Sporting News business was disposed of on 11 December 2020 as part of an asset sale to Pax
Holdings Limited far $10.5 milion, resulting in @ profit on sale of $3.8 million.

In July 2019 the Group disposed of the Content business for a profit on sale of $538 million. Further details of each
disposal are outlined below.

PIMGSALLP

PIMGSA LLP [“FC Diez") was established in 19 March 2018 as a2 joint venture, in which the Group had joint control and
509 ownership interest. FC Diez was structured as a separate vehicle and the Group had a residual interest in its
net assets. The venture provides consultancy and commercialisation services to the South American Footbalt
Confederation. Accordingly, the Graup has previously classitied its interest in FC Diez as a joint venture,

InIste 2019 DAZN began to negotiate & buyout of their 50% stake in FC Diez by IMG, the other joint venture partner,
subsequently conchiding in a sale agreement signed on 20 March 2020 for $37 million consideration, No cash was
received in refation to the sale, but rather the consideration was recognised as a receivable to be offset against a
number of future rights payments that would be paid by the buyer on behalf of the Group. During the currant
financial year $0.3 million of interest was earned on this deferred consideration.

Theinvestment in FC Diez had been classified as an asset held for sale at 31December 2018 and recorded at carrying
value. There has been no remeasurement of the held for sale asset up until the sale date.

The following tables summarises the gain on disposat and the financial information of FC Diez while classified as an
investment in joint venture:

(3} Gainon disposal

2020

$'000

Consideration received and to be received 37,000
Assets disposed of as at date of sale (5,272)
Di_gposal COsts (104)
Gain on disposal 31,624
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28.

Disposal of subsidiaries and operaticns (continued)

Footbalico

in early 2020 the Group entered into negotiations to sell its part of its Media division, comprising three
subcomponents; the footbalt news website Goal.com; Spox; and Voetbalzane, to US-based investrment firm TPG.
The Group undertook various restructuring activities to form a new group (“Footballco Group™) prior to the sale. On
19 October 2020, the sale completed and g majority stake in the Footballco Group (including all subsidiaries) was
sald ta Digital Media GoalCo LLC, TPG's acquiring entity, for a cash consideration of $70 millign. Immediately after
the sale, DAZN retained a 31.9%interest in the Footballco Group, with the remaining shareholders comprising Digital
Media GoalCe LLC and Foatballco Group management.

The Group recognised the 31.8% retained interest at a fair value of $33.5 million. On 5 November 2020, a further 1%
of the Group's shareholding was distributed to Footballco Group management in accordance with the sale
agreement, resultingin a loss on disposal of $1.04 million.

The following table summarises the results of the Foatballco Group up to the date of sale:

(8) Themajor classes of assets and liabilities disposed of are as follows:

19 October 2020
$'000
Goodwill 13,576
Acquisitian intangibles 0,118
Property, plant and equipment 462
Other intangible assets an
Trade and other receivables 2,827
Prepayments and accrued income 5200
Cash and cash equivalents 2,679
Deferred tax hability (2,575)
Current tax liabilities (2,868)
Trade and other payables (4,312)
Net assets 25,619
[b) Gainondisposal
2020
$'000
Consideration received 70,000
Net assets derecognised (25,619)
Recycle of foreign exchange reserves upon disposal 8,401
Bisposal costs (9,5940)
fair value of retained 31.92% investrment 33,509
Ganongisposal N T T
Loss on geemed disposa!if}ﬁ/o_ag ‘management onﬁovember 2020 (note 25) - e (1,036)
75,315

Total gain on disposal
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28.

Disposa! of subsigiaries and operations [continued)

Footballco (continued)

f¢) Net cashinflow arising on disposal

2020
$'000
Consideration received 70,000
Cash and ¢ash equivalents disposed of ) ) (2,679)
Net cashinflowarisingon disposal ___ 62321

Sporting News

On 1 December 2020, an asset purchase agreement was completed between the DAZN Group and the new'y formed
‘Sporting News Heldings' group which is ultimately owned by Pax Holdings Limited. The sgreement was structured
35 a sale of the underlying assets of the Sporting News business in exchange for consideration of $10.5 million
received in cash.

[a) Themajor classes of assets and liabilities disposed of are 35 follows:

1) December

2020
$'060
Goodwill 2,754
Acquisition intangibles 4,314
Property, plant and equipment 35
QOther intangible assets 422
Deferedtaxlisbilty e 0)22)
Net assets PR - S o ... 503
(b} Gainondisposal
2020
$'000
Consideration received 10,500
Net assets derecognised (6,403)
Disposalcosts e e .. (285)
Gain on disposal 3,832
(€} Netcashinfiow arising on disposal
2020
$'000
Consideration received 10,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of — . . -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal 10,500
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28.

Disposal of subsidiaries and operations (continued)
Perform Content

in Septermber 218, it was announced that the Perform Group was to be rebranded as DAZN Group, and consolidated
into two distinct brands, DAZN and Perfarm Content, te place gregter focus on the Group's key competencies. On
12 July 2019, the Perform Content business was sold to US-based STATS and the cash proceeds from the disposal
were used to settle existing debt and adviser costs within the DAZN Group.

The results from the disposal group were disclosed separately as a discontinued operation. The following table
summarises the results of the Perform Content business up to the date of sala.

3) Results of discontinued operations up to the date of the sale

2019

$'000

Revenue 142,475
Expenses 024,883
Operating profit for the yesr o o 18,012
income tax {652}
Profit for the year, n_etgft_ax ] o ) ) ______ T *7_ - 17,360

The profit from the discontinued operations of $17.4 million is attributable entirely to the owners of the Group. The
total tax charge from discontinued ogerations is 3 lower effective tax rate compared to what would be expected at
the UK corporation tax rate of 19%. This is dug to the tax benefit of certain costs / group relief available to be taken
by the discontinued aperations from other parts of the busingss and also the taxation of profits arising in other
jurisdiction where the tax rates are below the UK tax rate.

Cash flows from discontinued operations

2019

$'000

Net cash used in operating activities 10,211
Net cash from investing activites . _ . ___ [4098)
Net cash flows for the year o o ) 6,115
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28.

Disposal of subsidiaries and operations (continued)
Disposal of Perform Content business (continued)

b) The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the operations dispased of are as follows:

12 July 2019
$'000
Restated
Goadwill 244,335
Acquisition intangibles 29,263
Property, plant and gquipment Bg,sN
Other intangible assets 12,202
Deferred tax asset 3,788
Trade and otheér receivables 50,464
Prepayments and accrued income 46,377
Cash and cash equivaients 10,993
Current tax liabilities (3,933)
Trade and other payables (62,800)
Current borrowings L L {4,185)
Netassets 334900
c) Gainondisposal
2019
$'000
Restated
Consideration received 810,026
Net assets derecognised {334,975)
Recycle of foreign exchange reserves upon gisposal [13,016)
Dispasalcosts BN
Gainon disposal i i 533814

The gain on disposal of the Content subsidiaries is recorded as part of remeasurement of held for saie asset in the
statement of profit or Yoss and other comprehensive income. This is presented as part of the profit from
discontinued operations on the face of the consofidated income statement.

Total consideration received consisted of cash of $707.3 million, 3 20% interest in Peak Jersey Topco Limited made
up of investments in preference shares ang ardinary shares with an initial fair vaiue of $200.5 miilion {see note 26
for further details), and the offset of $2.4 million for liabilities due from DAZN to the Perform Content business.

The gain on disposal was restated in 2020 to account for an overstatement to accruals of $3.7 million that was
incorrectly inciuded in the net assets on disposal.

d} Netcashintlow arising on disposal

2019

5000

Consideration received 707,060
Consideration used to directly settle borrowings (341,684)
Cashandcosh equivalents disposedof . . .. . ... _. {0993
Net cash inflow arising on disposal 354,383
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29. Commitments
Rights cemmitments
As at 31 December 2020, the continuing operation had total outstanding commitments 1o acquire sports content
rights as follows:
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Within one year 1,091,570 1,478,494
In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,242,872 2,389,664
After five years _ — L 651,625 536,570
As 3t 31 Decernber A L. 4,986,067 4,404,728
30. Related parties

Related party transactions in the year are as follows:

a) Shareholder funding

Shareholder funding from the iminediate parent undertaking and cther members of the Access Industries group

has been detailed in note 20.

+  STATS Perform Group

During the year ended 31 Decernber 2020 (2013: period from 12 July 2013 to 31 December 2019) the DAZN Groug
entered into transactions with the STATS Perform Group, an associate of the Group. These transactions are
detailed below, including Transitional Services Agreements (TSAs) for the provision of transitional services

between the DAZN Group and STATS Perform Group following the sale transaction of 12 July 2019.

2020

$'000
Sub-licencing revenues from the DAZN Group ta the
STATS Perform Group 8,937
Licencing expenses from the STATS Perform Group to the
DAZN Group (13,608)
TSAs serviced by the DAZN Groug on behalf of the STATS
Perform Group 6,080
TSAs serviced by the STATS Perform Group on behalf of
the DAZN Group {350)

2019
$'000
8,671
(4,000)
12,760

(801)

As at the end of the year $4.7 miilion {2019: $5.7 million) was receivable by the DAZN Group from the STATS

Perform Group.

Purchases were made at market price and amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.
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30. Related parties (continued)
«  Matchroom USALLC

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 209 the DAZN Group entered into transactions
with Matchroom USA LLC, a joint venture of the Group. These transactians are detailed below.

2020 208

$'000 $'000

Matchroom licence feg charged from Matchroom to DAZN (56,675) {128,305]
Braadcast fee charged from Matchroom to DAZN (747) {853]
Dther costs recharged from Matchroom to DAZN [293) [203)
Total (57,709) (129,461)
Payments settled by DAZN on behalf of joint venture [7?5] 22,000

During the year ended 31 December 2018 DAZN settied payment of $22.0 miflian on behalf of the Joint Venture.

As st the end of the year $0.3 miilion [2019: $4.7 million] was payable by the DAZN Group to Matchrogm USA
LLC.

Purchases were made at market price and amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.
¢ Matchroom Boxing Italy 2018 LLP

During the year ended 31 December 2020 the DAZN Group entered into transactions with Matchroom Boxing
Italy 2018 LLP, 3 joint venture of the Group, These transactions are detailed below.

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
1
Broid_casihcense fea charged from Matchroomltalyto DAZN ~ L o (391] -
_ Total ~ _@EIy -

There was no balance payable or receivable to the DAZN Group by Matchroom Boxing taly 2078 LLP.
Purchases were made at market price and amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.

»  Footballco Media Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2020 the DAZN Group entered into transactions with the Footballco Group,
an associate of the Group. These transactions are detailed below, including TSAs for the provision of
transitional services between the DAZN Group and Footballco Group following the sale transaction of 19

October 2020.
2020
$'000
TSA Arrangements serviced by the DAZN Graup on behalf of
Footbailco Group 529
_Costs paid by the DAZN Group recharged to Footbalica L o _ ‘ 636
T5A arrangements s serviced by Footballco Group on behalf of the
_ DAZNGroup o ] L . ) (50)
~ Costs paie by Footba”co recharged to DAZN 1,12)
Total . o3

Asg at the end of the year $5 7 million was payame by the DAZN Group to the Footballeo Group.

Purchases were made at market price and amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.
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30.

3.

Related parties [continued)
e ASerial LLC

A Serial LLCis 3 company incorporated and existing under the laws of Russia, which also fslls under the control
of the same ultimate cantroiling party as the DAZN Group. In the current year the DAZN Group entered into an
agreement to deliver content to A Senal LLC, and also receives marketing services and transtation services,

2020

$'000

Content licence agreement services provided by DAZN Group 200
Marketing and translation services provided by ASerialLC _ - . (200}
Total -

As at the end of the year $nil was outstanding between either party.
« Directors’ loans

As detailed in note 25, on 17 July 2018, the Board of Directors approved the grant of Growth Shares [“G Shares”)
to Executive Directors of the Group for nil consideration. The shares were awarded ¢n 24 Septermber 2018 and
29 Octaber 2018 respectively.

0On 9 January 2019, the Group issued a further $2.3 million to cover the estimated personal tax liability on the
issue of G shares (2018: $0.2 million). The loans attract a rate of interest between 2.5% and 3.06% depending
on the jurisdiction and are repayable before or at the time the G shares are sold.

In the current year the loans to Directors have incurred interest of $73,000 (2019: $75,000) and repayments of
$43,000 (2019; $46,000) have been made against these balances. As at 31 December 2020 the total balance
outstanding onlcans to Directors in relation tc G-shares was $2.5 million (2019: $2.5 miltion).

There are no additional related party transactions to disclose, with the exception of those in relation to key
management persannel which are presented in note 5.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is invalved in the foliowing tegal disputes regarding contract terminations by the Group with
rightsholders. The Group considers that the terminations were cosrectly executed in accordance with the grovisions
of the rights agreements and that no further amounts are due. As a result, the Group has not provided for any
amounts due in respect of these disputes. Although the Croup is confident in its position, given the inherent
uncertainties associated with disputes and their ultimate resolution {whether by litigation or otherwise), there is a
possibility of future gutflows in relation to these matters.

Licence agreement fitigation [England)

In May 2020, the Group terminated a licence agreement for the broadcast by the Group of specified sports rights
with an English counterparty on the basis of force majeure arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. In response, a
member of the counterparty’s group withheld certain payments which the Group considers to be payable under a
separate share purchase deed. The Group continues to recognise the full amount unpaid that it believes to be
receivable under the share purchase deed.

In December 2020, the Group issued a claim against the counterparty and certain of its group companies in the
courts of England and Wales. The claim seeks declarations that the termination of the licence agreement was valid
and an order that a sumin the region of $19.7 million owed under the share purchase deed be paid to the Group. The
counterparty fifed angd served its defence and counterclaim to these proceedings in April 2021 which seeks, among
other things, damages for wrongful termination of the licence agreement in the region of $11.6 millin.

Licence ogreement grbjtration [Switzerland)

in August 2020, the Group terminated 8 licence agreement far the broadcast by the Group of specified sports rights
with a South American counterparty on the basis of force majeure arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. The
counterparty disputes the termination and in April 2021 commenced proceedings against the Group under the
relevant agreements seeking, among other things, declarations that the Group's termination of the licence
agreement was invalid and an order that the remaining fees in the region of $69.0 million be paid by the Group, The
proceedings have been stayed pending contractually mandated pre-action discussions between the pasties.
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31

32.

33,

Contingent liabilities (continued)

The Group is robustly defending its position in respect of these matters. The timing of the resolution of these
matters is highly uncertain and will be dependent bn court and/or tribunal judgments, including any rights of appeat,
ar alternatively the negotiation of a settlement between the parties,

Ultirnate contralling party

The immediate holding company of DAZN Group Limited is Al Perform Holdings LLP, an entity incorporated in the
UK and registered in England and Wales, which is the parent undertaking of the smatiest and largest group for which
consalidated financial statements are drawn up and of which DAZN Group Limited is a member. Al Perform Holdings
LLP and DAZN Group Limited are ultimately controlied by Sir Len Blavatnik.

The registered affice of Al Perforrn Holdings LLP is Gth Floar, Marble Arch House, 66 Seymour Street, London, Wik
5BT. Copies of Al Perform Holdings LLP consolidated financial statements wiil be available from Companies House
or the registered office.

Post balance sheet events
« Financing

Post year end DAZN Group Limited entered into further loan agreements of $1.1 billion with Access Industries
in order to fund ongoing activity. The September loan facility was intreased several times, in addition to the
original facility of $400.0 million in 2020 (‘Facility A’), on 28 January 2021 the agreeimnent was increased by
$275.0 millicn, with $125.0 million drawn down on the same day and $150.0 million drawn down on 16 February
2021 (‘Facility B').

0On 9 March 2021 Facility B was increased further by $325.0 million, with $775.0 miflion drawn down on the day
and $150.0 million drawn down on & April 2021. On 30 April 2021 an additional $150.0 millich was extended under
Facility B, which was drawn down on 4 May 2021.

0On 18 May 2021 the convertibie loan that was originally extended in October 2019 was amended to increase the
interest rate from 10% to 30% and to remove the conversion right in consideration for a fee of $35.9 million.
This resulted in the removal of the derivative that was recognised in the 2020 financial statements. On this
same date the January 2020 loah was amended toincrease interest on the first tranches of $250.0 million from
10% to 30%.

0n 14 June 2021, an additional $250 .0 miltion was extended under Facility B, with $150.0 million drawn down on
15 June 2021 and 8 further $100.0 miffion drawn down on 26 July 2621,

On & Segtember 2021 Facility B was extended by an additional $100.0 million, of which $65.0 million was drawn
down on the same day and $35.0 million was drawn down on 26 October 2021,

0On 29 December 2021, the Group and its shareholders and Access in its capacity as lender undertook certam
steps resulting in the $1.5 billion borrowings that existed at the 2020 year-end, as well 8s an additional $1.1
biflion of borrowings subsaquent to year end, tagether with accrued interest, being reieased in consideration
for the issue of ordinary and preference shares. In addition, preference shares with an aggregate issue price
and accrued preferential return of $0.96 billion were converted into orginary equity instruments. This resuited
in the settlement of all the Group’s borrowings, amounting to $3.3 billion, and the issuance of $1.2 billion of A
ordinary shares and $2.1 bitlion of new growth preference shares. Additionally, $150.0 million of funding was
received on 29 December 2021, in exchange for $75.0 million of A ordinary shares and $75.0 million of growth
preference shares. A further $100.0 million of funding was received on 27 January 2022 in exchange for $50.0
millicn of A ordinary shares and $50.0 millinn of growth preference shares.

The terms attached to the growth preference shares issued are set out in the Company's Articles of
Association. The growth preference shares have no fixed repayment date but carry rights to preferentia!
settlement in the event of certain contingent events including sale of the Company’s shares, and will
automatically convert into ordinary shares in certain circumstances, including in the event that the Company’s
shareholders holding the greatest number of growth preference shares and Z ordinary shares ggree to serve 3
conversion notice on the Company.
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33.

Post balance sheet events (continued)

Sale of Mackolik and Activaweb
During 2020, the Group entered into negotiations to sell the following two entities:

- Activaweb SAS (“Activaweb”) - a company registered in France which owns and operates the onling
spaorts portal Matchendirect.com

- Mackolik Internet Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi {"Mackolik”) — a company registered in Turkey which
pwns and operates the online sports portals, Mackolik.com and Sahadan.com

As at 31 Decemnber 2020 they have been classified as assets held for sale. The transaction completed on 2
September 2021 for a consideration of $20.C million in cash and a deferred payment, which is expected to be
$7.5 million due to be settled within 3 months after the completion date.

Sale of DAZN Player

0On 30 June 2021, the Group completed an agreement for the sale of assets to the Footballco Group, comprised
of intellectual property, employees and contracts associated with the DAZN Player business. The purchase
price was $3.8 million, settled by way of a loan note.

Rights commitments

Past year end significant new material rights contracts have been entered into for approximately $3.5 billion
during the period up to the end of 2028.

Long termincentive schemes

Post year end the Group decided to close the G Share incentive scheme resulting in all 27,794,857 outstanding
shares being transferred back to the Employee Benefit Trust. The G shares were determined to have a fair value
of nil at the date of transfer, resulting in no cash settlement being paid to holders.
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Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
lnvestments in associate
Investments in STATS Perform preference shares
Deferred tax asset

Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Tota! assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Berivative fiability

Net current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Equiy

Called-up share capital
Share premium

Own shares_ .
Merger celief reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Capital contribution reserve
(Accumulated deficit) / retained earnings
Translationreserve
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Notes

~ o

o!

2020
$'000

2,660,171
219
7,800

1,607,768 _

4,339,958

244

188

42

4,340,370

2;m,52n
(1,479,876)
(15,465)
1,696,862}

(1,696,450)

" 1,695,862)

2,643,508

17,698

2,536,363

. D,a42)
142,89

62,176
47,344
(120,893)
(40,629)
2,643,508

The Company had a loss for the year of $360.4 million (2019: $55.8 million profit).

2019
$'000
Restated

2,704,587
219
185,891
54
3,438,528

920
.14
1,094

3,439,623

[174,063)
(278,778)
(15,857)
{468,698)

(467,604)

[e68.698)

2,970,925

17,698
2536363
0,442)
142891
62,176
239519

. (26,280)
2,970,925

20'8
$000
Restated

1,953,967

52
232,255

2,186,274

101
e
180

-~ 286,454

(47,850)

(47,860)
[47,680)
(47,860}

2,138,584

17,251

 1,78365]
0289

142,891
62,76

203,594

(69,700)
2,138,594

The financial statements of DAZN Group Limited, registéered number 6324278, were approved by the Board of Directors and

authorised for issue on 14 February 2022,
Signed on penalf of the Board of Directors

b

Stuart Epstein

Director
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At1January 2019

(as previously reparted)
Restatement of opening
reserves (note 1)

At1January 2019

Profit for the year

Issue of share cépital

{nate 9]

Recognition of option to convert
[oan to equity [(note 8)

Value of employee service in
respect of share option schemes
and share awards (note 11)

At 31 December 2019

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for
the year
Capital contribution

At 31 December 2020

Issued
share
capital

$ 000
(notes)

17,251

17,251

447

17,688

Share
Premium

$'000
[note 9)

1,783,651

1,783,651

752,712

2,536,363

2,536,363

Qwn
shares

$'000
Restated

(1,269}
[,269)

(173}

(1,442)

(1,442}

Merger
retief
reserve*

$'000

142,891

142,891

142,891

142,891

Capital
redemption
reserve™™

$'000

62,176

62,176

82,176

62,176

Capital
contribution
reserve**

$'000

47,344

47,344

{Accumulated
deficit) /
retained
earnings

$'000
Restated

177,347

26,247

203,594
55,814

(15,857}
(4,032)

239,519

(360,412
(360,412}

(120,893)

FX reserve Total
equity
$'000 $'000

Restated  Restated
(68,588) 2,114,730
{i,114) 23,854

(63,700) 2,138,594
43,420 98,234

- 752,986
- (15,857)
- (4,032)

(26,280) 2,970,925

(14,349) (374,761
(14,349)  (374,761)

- 47,344

(40,629) 2,643,508

* The merger relief reserve was created in 2012 in order to record the excess over nominal value on the issue of shares to
the sellers of the Runningball business as part ¢f this historic acquisition transaction.

* The capital redemption reserve was created in June 201 following the cancellation of deferrad shares created on the
historic listing of the Graup on the London Stock Exchange. Following a change in control the Group was de-listed in

December 2014.

=+ The capital contribution reserve was created in 2020 following the issue of borrowings from Access Industrigs to DAZN
Group Limited contained a below market interest element which was recognised as a capital contribution to the Company.
See note 7 of the consolidated financial statements for further information.
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1. Accounting policies
General Information

DAZN Group Limited {the Company)is a private company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies
Act 2006. The Campany is limited by shares and is registered in England and Walgs.

The address of the registered office is Hanover House, Plane Tree Crescent, Feltham, Middlesex TW13 782.

These financia! statements are presented in US Doiiars because that is the currency in which the Company’s
principal shareholder elected to provide funding to the Company in the year in the form of borrowings. The
functional currency of the Company rermains Pounds Sterling.

Basis of accounting

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by
the Financial Reparting Council. These Company financial statements were prepared in accerdance with FRS 101
[Financiai Reporting Standard 101) ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

These Company financial statements form part of the consalidated financial statements prepared under IFRS which
can be found at the front of this document.

As permitted by FRS 107, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions svailable under that
standard in relation to share-based payment, financial instruments, capital management and presentation of
comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet
effective and related party transactions. Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group accounts of
UAZN Group Limited.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom accounting stangards and Company law.

The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statemgnts except as noted below.

Exemptions

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
not presented a profit and loss account for the Company alone.

The Company had a loss for the year of $360.4 million (2019: profit of $55.8 million restated). The Company received
ng dividend income in the year (2019: dividend income of $ 209.9 million received).

Going concern

Having reviewed cash flow foreceasts and budgets and having cansidered the financial sugport that the Group's
principal shareholder, Access Industries (“Access”) has confirmed itintends to provide to the Group, the Directors
have a reasonable expectatian that the Group will have access to sufficient resources to ¢ontinue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at [east 12 months from the date of approval of these financial
statements. As in prior periods, Access is not fegally obligated to provide financial support. The Directors have
considered a range of factors in order to make their going concern assessment, including expected future demand
for the Group's services, the revenue growth trends of the business, the history of continued financial support from
Access, including throughout the COVID-18 pandemic and during 2021 to date, and recent discussions with the
current shareholders, who are also represented on the Group's board, on the Group's cash flows forecast, and
budgets for the period te 2025, including forecast funding reguirements. This assessment has included
consideration of the risk of further disruption from the COVID-18 pandemic an the Company’s business and its
resulting impact on future revenues, results from operations and cash flows. For further details refer to note 10f the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has prepared a detailed fingncial foracast for the five-yaar period ta the end uf 2025. These farecasts
indicate that, based on management’s assumptions, the Group is likely to reguire significant additicnal funding
during this period in order to discharge all obligations as they fzll dus.
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1. Accounting policies {continued)
Going concern [continued)

The Group's principal shareholder, Access Industries (or one of its subsidiaries) (“Access”), has confirmed its
intention to continue to provide financial support to the Group to enable the Group to ensure that they are able to
meet their liabilities as they fall due and therefore to continue as a going concern far a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of these financial staternents. In the period between the year end and the signing of the
accounts Access has provided $1.25 billion of funding to DAZN, of which $1.1 billion isin the form ¢f lcans and $150.0
million in ordinary and preference shares, to support its investment and growth plans. A further $100.0 million of
funding was received on 27 January 2022 in exchange for $50.0 million of A ordinary shares and $50.0 million of
growth preference shares.

0On 23 December 2021, the Group and its shareholders and Access in its capacity as lender ungertook certain steps
resulting in the $1.5 billion borrowings that existed at the 2020 year-end, as well as an gdditiona) $1.1 billion of
borrowings subsequent to year end, together with accrued interest, being released in consideration for the issue of
ordinary and preference shares. In addition, preference shares with an aggregate issue price and accrued
preferential return of $0.96 billion were converted into ordinary equity instruments. This resulted in the settlement
of all the Group’s borrowings, amounting to $3.3 billion, and the issuance of $1.2 billion of A ordinary shares and $2.1
pillion of new growth preference shares. Additionally, $150.0 million of funding was received on 28 December 2021,
in exchange for $75.2 million of A ordinary shares and $75.0 million of growth preference shares.

The terms attached to the growth preference shares issued are set out in the Company's Articles of Association.
The growth preference shares have no fixed repayment date but carry rights to preferential settlement in the event
of certain contingent events including sale of the Company's shares, and will automatically convert into ordinary
shares in certain circumstances, including in the event that the Company's shareholders holding the greatest
number of growth preference shares and Z ardinary sheres agree to serve a conversion notice on the Company.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are shown at cost less provision, if any, forimpairment.
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estirmation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
gre recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future geriods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Recoverability of investments in subsidiaries and intercompony receivables

As at 31 December 2020 the Company held investments in subsidiaries of $2.7 billion (2019: $2.7 billion) in addition
to non-current receivables from Group undertakings of $1.8 billion (2019: $0.5 billion). As at the reporting date an
impairment review of investments in subsidiaries was performed using discounted cash flow forecasts to assess
the recoverable amount. The determination of the recoverable amount involves significant judgement in estimating
the future cash flows, the terminal growth rate and the discount rate to apply. These inputs require sigmificant
judgement from management. The recoverability of current receivabias due from Group undertakings is analysed
following the analysis of discounted future cashflows, with additional management judgement required over
cashflow inputs, discount rates and long-term growth rates.

Contingently cosh-settied shaore-based payments

As detailed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, management have reassessed their historic
judgement that the Group's share-based payment arrangement for growth shares (“G-shares”] issued to
employees was equity-settled and have determined based on its terms that it is more appropriately accounted for
as a contingent cash-settled scheme. The scheme is now treated as a contingent cash-settled share-based
payment scheme and assessed at each period end using management’s assessment of most prabable outcome as
ta whether the scheme will be equity or cash-settied.
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Accounting palicies (continued)
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)
Na other critical accounting judgements have been taken during the current financial period.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that the Directors believe have a significant effect on the amounts recognised
in these financial statements, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial yesr, are discussed below.

Measurement of equity instruments held at fair value through profit and loss

The Company held an investment in 20% of the ordinary and preference shares of in Peak Jersey Topeo Ltd during
the current year. These preference shares have both been classified as equity instruments, measured at fair value
through profit and Ioss.

At the reporting date a fair value assessment for these investments was performed based on discounted cash flow
valuations. This valuation invalved significant estimates of future cash flows and appropriate discount rates. As
these inputs were not based on quoted or observable market data, this investment is classified as level 3 in the fair
value measurement hierarchy, as detailed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Measurement of derivative iiability

A derivative liability of $15.5 million (2019: $15.8 million) has been recognised in relation to a conversion ogtion in the
$275.0 million convertible debt facility entered into during 2019 with Access Industries. This option allows Access
to convert the loan into equity shares at a 10% discount upcn the occurrence of future contingent events. The
derivative valuation incorporated estimates of the time period and probability of the contingent event arising that
would trigger the conversion right. At year end the Group’s management reassessed the likelihood of conversion
and determined that there was a 40% likelihcod of conversion within the 2022 financial year (2019: 50% likethood
of conversion).

Restatement of prior year figures

Restatements presented within the current year financial statements are presented as follows;

Previously : Restatements After
reported restatements
Gshares Employee Finance  Correctionof Reclassify
charge benefit income intercompany  intercompany
trust balances receivablesto
2019 non-current 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Statement of financial
position
Investment in subsidiaries 2,705,634 (1,047) - - - - 2,704,687
Trade and other receivables 142,441 _ _ _ _ 405,337 547,778
(Non-current) ' '
Trage and other receivables 497,630 - 0442) 1,028 0,009) (405,337 920
(Current)
Trade and other payables (178,855) (498) - - 5,290 - (174,083)
Net assets 2,958,603 (1,545) {1,442) 1,028 4,281 - 2,970,925
Own Shares - - (1,442) - - - (1,442)
Retained earnings 235,095 0,767) - 1,028 5,162 - 239,519
Translation reserve (25,621) 222 - - (881 - (26,280)
Total equity 2,968,603 (1,545) 1,442) 1,028 4,281 - 2,970,925
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NQOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. Restatement of priar year figures (continued)

During the current year the cumulative impact of restatements to 2018 comparatives are as follows:

Previously Restatements After
reported restatements
Gshares Employee  Finance  Correction of Reciassify
charge benefit  income intercompany intercompany
trust balances receivablesto
2018 non-current 2018
$'000 $°000 5'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Statement of financial
positian
Investment in subsidiaries 1,951,824 2,143 - - - - 1,953,967
Trade and other receivables
(Non-current) 183,910 - - - - 48,345 232,255
Trade and other receivables
{Current} 105,112 1,442 (1,269) - (56,839) (48,345} 01
Trade and other payables (126,247) - - - 78,387 - (47,860)
Net assets 2,114,730 3,585 (1,269) - 21,548 - 2,138,594
Own Shares - - (1,269 - - - (1,269)
Retained earnings 177,347 3,585 - - 22,662 - 203,594
Translation reserve (68,586) - - - ong - (69,700)
Total equity 2,114,730 3,585 {1,269) - 21,548 - 2,138,594

G-shares share-based payment charge recagnition

Following review of the contractual docurmnentation pertaining to the G-shares, management reassessed their
historic judgement around the Group’s share-based payment arrangement for growth shares (“G-shares”) issued
to employees was equity-settled and have determined based on its terms that it is more accurately accounted for
as a contingent cash-settled scheme, and have also identified an error in the application of the vesting conditions
to the charge calculated for 2018.

As a result of this change in vesting assumptions, the Company's investment in subsidigries increased by $2.1
million due to the increase in the total share-based payment charge recognised within subsidiary entities. The
Company additionally recognised trade and other receivables of $1.4 million in relation to loan balances due from
the Employee Benefit Trust. This is then further adjusted as per the Employee Benefit Trust section of this note.

Following the review of the vesting assumptions in 2019, the G-shares scheme which was formeriy treated as an
equity-settled share-based payment scheme, is now treated as a contingent cash-settled share-based payment
scheme and assessed at each period end using the most probable outcome gssessment whether the scheme will
be equity or cash-settled. As a result, following the release of the share based psyment reserve. As a result of the
decrease in the share based payment expense incurred by other subsidiary entities of the Company, the total value
for investments in subsidiaries recognised fell by $1.0 million. The Cormpany recognised a share based payment
liability of $0.5 millien within the statement of financial position, following the release in full of the share-based
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Restatement of prior year figures {(continued)
Employee benefit trust

Following a review of the contractual documentation for arrangements with the Employee benefit trust (‘the trust’)
nolding the G shares, it was recognised that DAZN Group Limited has control over the trust and therefore the results
should have been historically consclidated from the point a8t which the G shares were issued in 2018 and 2019.
Historically the Company recognised a trade receivable in relstion to loan balances outstanding from the trust which
had been used to acquire G shares, which is recognised as a presentational error in the prior periods. The trust
shiould have been conselidated as part of the Company's results, with the foan balance receivable from the trust
eliminating against the loan balance payable by the trust on the Staterment of financial position for CAZN Group
Limited. The investmentin G shares held by the trust is therefore restated and recognised as own shares within the
equity of DAZN Group Limited. A balance af $1.3 million has been restated from current trade and other receivables
to own shares in the 2018 comparatives and a balance of $1.4 million restated in the 2019 comparatives.

Understatement of interest on amounts due from Group undertakings

As part of a review of the intercompany loan agreements, it was identified that interest accruing on balances
receivable from DAZN Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, had not been recognised in the prior year in
error. Therefarg, finance income and trade receivables had been understated by $1.0 million. These have been
restated in the prior period comparatives.

Correction of intercornpany balances

Management identified errors relating to prior periods on intercompany balances with foreign exchange gains and
losses on intercompany transactions in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity having been
incorrectly recorded in the forgign currency transiation reserve rather than the profit andtoss account of the entity
in question. In addition to foreign exchange gains and losses being incarrectly recognised, there were found to be
intercompany errors relating from mismatched batances within the group that were incorrectly recorded in the
foreign currency translation reserve,

Within the 2019 comparative figures the retained earnings were corrected having been understated by $5.2 million
in relation to the historic impact of unrecognised FX gains and losses and other intercompany adjustments now
corrected through the income statement, the translation reserve was also debited having been overstated by $0.9
million. The coreesponding balance sheet adjustments were a decrease in trade and other receivabigs of $1.0 million
and a decrease in trade and other payables of $5.3 million, with a net impact of an increase in net assets by $4.3
million as at 31 December 2019.

The 2018 comparative figures for retained earnings were increased by $22.7 million, in relation to the historic impact
of unrecognised FX losses and the correction of errors in the recording of intercompany fransactions affecting both
intercompany receivables and payables prior to 1 January 2019, The translation reserve was decreased by $1.1
million, trade and other receivables were reduced by $56.8 million and trade and other payables were reduced by
$78.4 million. This resulted in a net increase of $21.5 million in net assets as at 31 December 2018.

Reclassification of intercormpony receivables from current to non-current assets
Upon review of the timing of expected settiement on balances due from Group undertakings, management formed
the judgement that amounts owed by Group undertakings were non-current assets as opposed to current assets

receivable, As a result, alt balances due from Group undertakings were reclassified and recognised as being non-
current.
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2.

Investmeants in subsidiaries

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Restated

investments in subsidiaries as at 1 January 2,704,587 1,951,824
Restatementfor FRS2adjustment .. ... . . . - .._.__2M3
Investment in subsidiaries as at 1 January (restated) 2,704,587 1,953,967
Additions 142,441 750,331
Capital cantribution for IFRS 2 charge 284 289
Capital contribution for below market interest element on 10an to subsidiary 47,344 -
Release for IFRS 2 capital contribution (2,716) -
Impairment ) [231,769) -

2860071 2,704,587

Investments in subsidiaries asat 31 December
Ouring the current year, additions of $142.4 millian were recognised for additional issues of share capital in DAZN
Sports Media Limited during the current year in exchange for the navation of inter-Groug loans (2019: $ 750.3
million).

The Company made capital contributions of $0.3 million (2019: $0.3 millian) in relation to share-based payment
expenses recorded n subsidiary entities within the DAZN Group. Following the re-evaluation of the share-based
payment scheme and the subsequent release of the share-based payment liability in the current financial year, the
value of all capital contributions made in relation to the G-shares scheme was released in the current year.

During January 2020 the Company issued $250.0 million of loans to DAZN Limited, an indfrect subsidiary. The loans
were issued with an interest rate of 10%, but were assessed by management to have a fair market rate of interest
at 30% when benchmarked against similar instruments. Therefore the $250.0 million loan receivable is recognised
at fair value, with the difference recognised as an investment in subsidiary by way of a capital contribution of $47.3
million in the current year,

On 31 Decemnber 2020 management of the Company undertook an impairment analysis for the investments in
subsidiaries held by the Company. The recoverable amount of the investment in subsidiaries was referenced from
& value in use calculation based on forecast future cashflows from subsidiary entities, less cutstanding balances
due from subsidiaries. The recoverable amount was found to be less than the carrying amount for its investments
in DAZN Sports Media Limited and therefore an impairment of $231.8 million (2019: $nil} was recognised. The
impairment was due to the impact of the coronavirus on sgort events in 2020 and the consequential impact on the
group's subscriber numbers, contributing to lower than forecast revenues.

As gisclosed in the accounting policies nate 1 above, the cash flows used within the impairment model, the long-
term growth rate and the discount rate are sources of estimation uncertainty and comparatively small movements
in these assurnptions could lead to further impairment. Management performed the following sensitivities using
reasonably possible changes to the key assumptions with the impact of each of the changes as follows:

- areduction to the long-term growth rate of 100 basis points would result in an additional impairment of c.
$393 miltion;

- anincrease to the pre-tax discount rate of 20 basis points would result in an additional impairmant of ¢. $121
miliion;

- an adverse variance of 2% in the cash flows in each of the five years included in the forecast would result in
an additional impairment cf c. $105 million.

Should all three changes occur simultaneously, an additional impairment charge of ¢. $590 million would be
recorged.

Fullowing review of the contractual documentation pertaining to the G-shares, management reassessed their
histaric judgement around the Group's share-based payment arrangement for growth shares (“G-shares™) issued
to employees was equity-settled and have determingd based on its terms that it is more accurately accounted for
as a contingent cash-settled scheme, and have also identified an error in the application of the vesting conditions
to the charge to be calculated for 2018. As a result, the opening value for the prior year comparative investments in
subsidiaries figure has been restated, in addition to the comparative 2019 capital contributions recognised in
relation to the IFRS 2 charges recognised in subsidiaries. See note 2 of the single entity financial statements for
further details.
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3.

Investments in subsidiaries (continved)

Detaifs of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are as follows. Uniless otherwise indicateq, slf ownershig

interests are in the ordinary share capital of the investee.

Subsidigries: -

Direct holdings of the Company

DAZN Sports Media Limited

Activaweb SAS

DAZN Brands Limited

‘DAZN DACH Gmbs

DAZN DACH Holdeo Limited
‘DAZN Digital Media Canada Inc

DAZN Holdco 1 Limited
(formerly Sporting News
Limited)

DAZN Japan GK

DAZN Japan Holdco Limited

DAZM Japan Investment GK
(formerly DAZN Japan
investment KK)

DAZN Limited

" 100%

Proportion of
all classes of
issued share
capital owned
by the
Company _

100%

100%

100%

W0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

130%

Country of Principal

_incorporation  activity

United Kingdom  Holding
company

" France ™ Digitat sports
media
United Kingdom  Holding
company
"Germany Digital sports

media

"United Kingdom ~ Holding

campany

" Canada " Digital sparts

media

United Kinggom  Digital sports
media

Japan Digital sports
media

" United Kingdem  Holding

company

Japan " Digital sports
media

United Kingdom  Digital sports
media

. Registered Office

Hanover House, Plane Tree
Crescent, Feltham,
Midglesex, TW13782

6 Place de la Madelgine
75008 Paris
Hanover House, Plane Tree

Crescent, Feltham,
Middlesex, TWi3 7BZ

" Miinchener Str. 100, 85737

Ismaning, Germany
Hanover House, Plane Tree
Crescent, Feltham,

99 Bark Street, Suite 1420,
Dttawa, Ontario, KIP 1H4,
Canada

Hanover House, Plang Tree
Crescent, Feltham,
Middlesex, Tw13 782

9F Ark Hills South Tower 1-
4-5 Roppongi, Minato-ku,
Tokyo106-0032
Hanover Bause, Flane Tree
Crescent, Feltham,
Migdlesex, TWI37BZ
9F Ark Hills South Tower 1-
4-5 Reppongi, Minato-ku,
Tokyo 106-0032

HManover House, Plane Tree
Crescent, Feltham,
Middlesex, TW13 7BZ

 Middlesex, TW13 7BZ
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3. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
T T T T T T T  Proportion of
all classes of

issued share
capital owned
by the Caountry of Principal
~Company  incorporation  activity ~_ Registered Office

Sabsidiories:

Indirect holdings of the Company . e

DAZN Media Australia Pty Ltd 100% Australia " Digitaisports 58 Gipps Street,
media Callingwood, Victoria
) 3066, Australia.
DAZN Media Brasil Servicos 100% Brazil Digital sports  Rua Fidéncio Ramos, 308,
Limitada media conjuntos 41 e 43, Torre A,
Cidade de S&o Paulg,
Estado de S50 Paulo, CEF
e L. asstO0
DAZN Media Channels Limited ~ 100% "~ United Kingdom  Digital sports  Hanover House, Plane Tree
media Crescent, Feltham,
e .. Mddesex,TWI3?BZ
DAZN Media Holdco Limited 06% United Kingdom  Digital sports ~ Hanover House, Plane Tree
media Crescent, Feltham,
) Middlesex, TW13 7BZ
DAZN Media Inc. 100% United States Digital sports  United Corporate Service,
media Inc., 10 Bank Street, Suite

560, White Plains, New
e e e e e el ... . York,10BOS USA
DAZN Media India Private 100% India Digital sports  Merican Consultants
Limited media Private Limited, 33,
Pattalarmma Temple
Street, Basavanagudi,
Bengaluru, XKarnataka

560004
DAZN Media NetherianasBY  100% The Netherlands Digital sparts  Huidekoperstrast 26, 1017
media ZM, Amsterdam, The
) Netherlands
DAZN Media Poland Sp Zoo 100% Poland Digital sports  ul. Zelazna 4 40-851
media Katowice, Poland.
DAZN Media Sales Limited 100% United Kingdom  Online Hanover House, Plane Tree

advertising and Crescent, Feltham,
$PONSOrship Middlesex, TWi13 7TBZ

‘ sales
DAZN Media Services DACH ~ 100% Germany  Digitalsports  Mdnchener Str. 101, 85737
GmbH . S . . . .media lsmaning, Germany
DAZN Media Services Limited 100% United Kingdom  Digital sports  Honover House, Plane Tree
media Crescent, Feltham,
L o , . Middlesex, TW13 787
DAZN Meadia Services SRL 100% ttaly Digital sports  Piazza 5. Babila n, 3, Milan,
) media taly ]
DAZN Midco Inc. [formerly 100% United States Digital sports  United Corporate Services,
Sporting News Midco Inc.] media Inc., 874 Walker Road,

Suite C, County of Kent,
Dover,.Delaware, 19904,
USA (‘United Corporate
Services’)
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3. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of

all classes of

issued share

capital owned

bythe

Indirect holdings of the Company (continued)

TDAZNMRHoldco Uimited ~ 100%
DAZN Netherlands B.V, 100%
DAZN North America Inc. 100%
DAZNSCA Limited — ~ 100%

DAZN Spain SL Iformerty DAZN 100%
Spain SLU)

OAZN Sports and Culture 100%
Development (Shanghai)

Company Limited (formerly

Perform Sports and Culture
Development (Shanghai)

Company Limited)

DAZN Uruguay SA 100%

BAZNUSLLE 100%

DAZN Vehicle T1] [LC (formerty ~ 100%
Sporting News (1) LLC)

DAZN Vehicle (2) LLC (formerly  100%

Sparting News (2) LLC)

DSN Holdco Limited " I00%
Goal.com (HoldCo) SA 100%
Gaal.com North America Inc. 100%

Mackolik internet Hitzmetieri  100%
Ticaret AS.

Company

Country of Principal
dncorporation  activity

Registered Office

" United Kingdom  Digitaisports | Hanover House, Plane Tree

media

The Netherlands  Holding

company
United States Digitat spcirts
media

" “United Kingdom  Digital sports

media

) " Digital sports
media

“Spain

China Digital sports
media

Bigital sports
media
Digitat spoits
media

Ufuguay

United States

United States
media

United States Digital sports

media

United Kingdom ~ Holding™

company
Luxembourg Digital sports
media
United States Digital sports
media
'I-'urk'ey ' biaJtaJ sports

media

‘Digital sports

Crescent, Feitham,
Middiesex, TW13787
Huidekoperstraat 25, 1017
ZM, Amsterdam, The
Netherlands 7
1208 Orange Street, County !
of New Castle, Wilmington, :
_Delaware, 19800, USA
Hanover House, Plane Tree
Crescent, Feltham,
Middlesex, TW)3782
Avenida General Perén, 38,
B° Puerta 3, 28020 Madrid, i
Spain_
Rm NQ1-0S, 11F, No. 331
Narth Cao Xi Road, Xuhui
District, Shanghai

Colonia numero 810, oficina
403, Montevideo.
United Corporate Services,
Inc., 874 Walker Road,
Suite C, County of Kent,
Dover, Detaware, 193904,
USA {"United Corporate
Serviees)
¢/o United Corporate
Services, Inc., 874 Walker
Rd,, Suite C, Dover,
Delaware 19904
c/o United Corporate
Services, Inc., 874 Walker
Rd., Suite C, Dover,
Delaware 19804
Hanover House, Plane Tree
Crescent, Feltham,
Middlesex, TWi3 78Z
25b Boulevard Royal, L-
2449 Luxembourg
Qne Warld Trade Center,
Floor 72, New York, NY,
ooz
Zuhtlipasa mahk. Sefik Bey
Sokak No:1 Kadikdy,
Istanbul, Turkey
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3.

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportionof

all classes of
issued share
capital owned
by the Country of Principal
Company incorporation activity Registered Office
Indirect holdings of the Company in Joint Ventures
Perform South America Limited  100% United Kingdom  Digital sports  UHY HACKER YOUNG LLP,
media Quadrant House 4 Thomas
More Square, London, ETwW
Yw
Sporta? India Private Ltd 100% - India Digital sports Bt Floor Siddhi Vinayak

Matchroom Boxing Italy 2018 LU 40%

media

Chambers, R. P. MARG,
0PP. M.L.G. Cricket Club,
Bandra East, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, India 400051

Matchroom Boxing USA LLC

United Kingdom  Digital sports  Mascalis, Mascalls Lane,
media Great Warley, Brentwood,
Essex, CM14 51.)
40% United States Digital sports  United Corporate Services,
media Inc., 874 Walker Rd., Suite
C, Oover, Delaware 19904
Progortion of
all classes of
issued share
capital owned
by the Country of Principal
Company _ incorparation activity Registered Office

Indirect holdings of the Companyin Associates

Footballco Media Limited

30.77% United Kingdom

Digitat spaorts
media

72 ean Street, London,
WID 356G

The proportion of voting rights held is the same as the prapartion of shares held. Subsequent to the year end g
number of entities have been solg or dissolved, which is further detailed in note 12 to the single entity financial

statements.

The following subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in England and Wales and are allincluded above are exempt
from the requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section

4794 of that Act:

Company registration
Comparyoome _ _numger
DAZN DACHHoldco timited ) - 10110432 .
DAZN Japsn Holdeo Limited 1010436
DAZN Media Hoidco Limited 13074409
DAZN Media Sales Limited 5160606
DAZN MR Haldco Limited ~ 11252400 o
DAZN SCA Limiteg 9575485
DSN Holdco Limited 9479148
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4.

tnvestment in STATS Perform

0n 12 July 2019 DAZN Group received a 20% minority share of the newly formed Peak Jersey Topco Ltd for $160.0
million [$200.5 m#lion) consigeration. Peak Jersey Topco Lid is the ultimate parent entity of the STATS Perfarm
Group. This investment consisted of 20% cf the B ordinary shares for consideration of $0.2 miliion, as well as 20%
of the cumulative preference shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd for $200.3 million. The investment in associate is
stated at cost less provision forimpairment.

The preference shares in Peak Jersey Topco Ltd have been classified as an equity instrument, measured at fair
value through profit and loss. At the reporting date a fair value assessment was performed, and the preference
shares were revalued down by $114.1 millicn (2019: $14.4 million}, with the adjustment to the fair value in the
mvestment is reflected in profit and foss for the period.

Reconciliation of the value of the investment in STATS Perform between 20% of the B ordinary shares, as well as
20% of the cumulstive preference sharesin Peak Jersey Topco Ltd is shown beiow:

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Cpening inves_‘lmgntfi:n _ST-AI_S P‘elrf_qrm B ordinary shares as at 1.January ) 219 -
Investment in 3TATS Perfarm B ardinary shares as at 12 July - 219
Investment in STATS Perform B ordinary shares as at 31 December 219 219
Opening investmenﬁt!in STATS Perform preference shares as at 1 January 185,891 ' -
Investment in STATS Perform preference shares as at 12 July - 200,315
Fair valiie adjustment on 9% cumuiative preference shares (114,091) 14,425)
Investment in STATS Perform preference shares as at 31 December 71,800 185,891
Carrying amount of totalinterest in STATS Perform at 31 December 72,019 18610
Trade and other receivables
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Restated
Nan-current
Amounts owed by Group undertakings” 1,607,768 547,778
Current
Other receivables 2 470
Prepayments gnd accrued income 242 45
Other taxes ) ) ) o - 405
As at 31 Becember 244 920

*Amounts owed by Group undertakings are held with 100% owned subsidiaries within the DAZN Group.

In the prior year the Company recognised a lifetime expected credit loss of $132.6 million an cutstanding non-
currentintercampany loan balances due from DAZN Limited of $275.0 million. tn January 2020 these loan balances
were transferred to DAZN Sports Media Limited, an immediate subsidiary, in exchange for the issue of share capital
[see note 3).

Balances due from Group undertakings as part of the Group intercompany agreement are unsecured, repayable on
demand and incur interest at LIBOR + 2%. Intercompany funding agreements with DAZN Limited, an indirect
subsidiary, accrue interest from 9.5% to 30%. All Group undertakings are 100% owned subsidiaries within the DAZN
Group.
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6.

10.

Trade and other payables

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Current Restated
Trade creditors ’ 173 2,413
Amounts owed to Group undertakings” 195,017 167,878
Accruals 3,745 3,274
Other taxes and socialsecurity o 25%6 0 -
Other creditors e o438
As at 31 December . 201521 174,083

*Amaunts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and incur interest at 20 + LIBOR. All
Group undertakings are 100% owned within the DAZN Group.

Following the review of the vesting assumpticns in 2019, the G-shares scheme which was formerly treated as an
equity-settled share-based payment scheme, is now treated as a contingent cash-settled share-based payment
scheme and assessed at each period end using the most probable autcome assessment whether the scheme will
De equity or cash-settled. As a result the 2019 comparatives have been restated in order to recognise a share based
payment liability of $0.5 million. See note 2 for further details.

Borrowings
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Current borrowings . ~ . 1,479,876 278,778

The borrowings recocgnised at 31 December 2020 are detaifed in note 20 of the consolidated financial statements.

Derivative liability

The derivative liability recognised at 3t December 2020 is detailed in section h of note 2i to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share capital
Share capital is disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial staterments.
Employee and Director costs

The average monthly number of empioyees was 9 (2018: 9}, which is comprised entirely of Directors and key
management personnel. Employee costs were as follows:

2020 2019

$°000 $'000

Restated

Wages and salaries 6,325 5,908
Social security costs 683 475
Pension costs 176 218
Contingent cash settled share-based paymentscheme ~ ~~~ _ _~  {782)  __ (3824]
Total e BAD2_ 2777

During the year termination expenses of $2.7 million (2019: $nil) were recognised. Rermuneration of the highest paid
Directar is disclosed in note & of the consolidated financial statements.

During the current year a cradit was recognised for the contingent cash settled share-based payment scheme,
following the release of the share-based payment liability inta the income statement followlng the review of the fair
value of the scheme optigns in the current financial year. The prior year comparative figure for the contingent cash
settlement share-based gayment scheme was restated following a review of the scheme’s vesting assumgtions,
resulting in a credit being recognised in the pricr period comparatives for the release of the share based payment
reserve, See note 2 for further details.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1.

12.

13.

Long-term incentive schemes

During the year the Company recognised a debit of $0.2 million (2019: $0.2 million restateq) for the recognition of
the IFRS 2 expense in relation to the share-based payment liability incurred for 7 employees of the entity (2019: 7
employees). Fallowing & re-evaluation of the scherne options the share based payment liability was released to the
income statement in full in the current period, recognising a credit of $1.0 million through the income statement
{2012: $4.0 million credit for the release of the share based payment reserve). A debit te investments in subsidiaries
of $0.3 miliion was recognised for capital contributions to subsidiaries with employees as members of the scheme
(2019: $0.3 miltion restated). Subsequent to the re-evaluation of the scheme in the current year, an amount $2.7
million of capital contributions recognised in investments in subsidiaries was released to the income statement
{2015: $nil).

Following review of the contractual decumentation pertaining to the G-shares, management reassessed their
histaric juggement sround the Group's share-based payrment arrangement for growth shares ("G-shares”) issued
to employees was equity-settled and have determined based on its terms that it is more accurstely accounted for
as a cantingent cash-settled scheme, and have also identified an ervor in the application of the vesting conditions
to the charge to be calcuiated for 2018. Following the review of the vesting assumptions in 2013, the G-shares
scheme which was formerly treated as an equity-settled share-based payment scheme, is now treated as a
contingent cash-settled share-based payment scheme and assessed at each period end using the most probable
outcome assessment whether the scheme will be equity or cash-settled. See note 2 for further details.

During the current year $nil (2019; $nil) was paid to or receivable by Directors in relation ta long term incentive
schemes inrespect of qualifying services.

Subsequent events
Subsequent events are disclosed innote 3310 the consolidated financial statements, other than that detailed below.
Sale and dissolution of subsidiaries

Subsequent to the balance sheet date on 27 April 2021, DAZN Brands Limited, an indirect subsidiary was dissolved
as part of ongaing activities to simplify the DAZN Group structure.

Company name Dissolved or sold Effective date
DAZNBrandsLimited __ Dissoed  Zg402)
A_Ctivaweb SAS R B ) L .S_Och _ o _02.’09/2021 o
Maqkolik Internet Hitzmetieri Ticaret A.S: o _ Sold szg&_a{;qzr

Perform South America Limited Bissolved 131272024

Change in direct holdings of the Company

On 30 December 2020, DAZN Group Limited contributed ail of its 100% shareholding inimmediate subsidiary DAZN
Sports Media Limited to DAZCAY Ltd. In exchange DAZCAY Ltd issued 1,000 shares to DAZN Group Limited, of a total
of 1,003 shares in issue. DAZCAY Ltd is a company incorposated in the Cayman Islands and has a registered office
care of Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-8008, Cayman Islands.

Uitimate controlling party

The uitimate controliing party s discigsed in note 32 to the cansolidated financial statemants.
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